
 

 

 AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING 

CITY OF ROCKLIN PLANNING COMMISSION 

DATE: August 10, 2017 

TIME:  6:30 PM 

PLACE:    Council Chambers, 3970 Rocklin Road 

www.rocklin.ca.us 

 

 

 

MEETING PROCEDURES AND STANDARDS OF DECORUM 

Citizens may address the Planning Commission on any items on the agenda, when the item is considered.  Citizens 

wishing to speak may request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand and stepping to the 

podium when requested to do so.  Although not required, speakers are requested to identify themselves by stating their 

name and city of residence for the official record. 

 

For items not listed on the agenda, any person may do so under “Citizens Addressing the Planning Commission on non-

agenda items.” Three to five-minute time limits may be placed on citizen comments.  As a reminder, the Brown Act 

does not permit the Commission to take action on items not on the agenda. 

 

All remarks shall be addressed to the Commission as a body and not to any member thereof, or to staff, or to the public. 

No person, other than a member of the Commission, and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into 

any discussion without the permission of the presiding officer. 

 

Whenever any group of persons wishes to address the Commission on the same subject matter, it shall be proper for 

the Chairman to request that a spokesperson be chosen. 

 

Any person who disrupts the meeting of the Commission, may be barred by the Chairman from further audience before 

the Commission during that meeting. 

 

WRITINGS RECEIVED AFTER AGENDA POSTING 

Any writing related to an agenda item for the open session of this meeting distributed to the Planning Commission less 

than 72 hours before this meeting is available for inspection at City Hall, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, during normal 

business hours. These writings will also be available for review at the planning commission meeting in the public access 

binder located on the table at the back of the Council Chambers. If you have questions related to this agenda, please 

call 916-625-5160. 

 

WRITTEN MATERIAL INTRODUCED INTO THE RECORD 

Any citizen wishing to introduce written material into the record at the hearing on any item is requested to provide a 

copy of the written material to the Planning Department prior to the hearing date so that the material may be 

distributed to the Planning Commission prior to the hearing. 

 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Rocklin encourages those with disabilities to 

participate fully in the public hearing process.  If you have a special need in order to allow you to attend or participate in 

our public hearing process or programs, please contact our office at (916) 625-5160 well in advance of the public 

hearing or program you wish to attend so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. 

 

COURT CHALLENGES AND APPEAL PERIOD 

Packet Pg. 1



Agenda of August 10, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

Court challenges to any public hearing items may be limited to only those issues which are raised at the public hearing 

described in the notice or in written correspondence delivered to the City at or prior to the public hearing. (Government 

Code Section 65009) 

 

There is a 10-day appeal period for most Planning Commission decisions.  However, a Planning Commission approval of 

a tentative parcel map has a 15-day appeal period.  Appeals can be made by any interested party upon payment of the 

appropriate fee and submittal of the appeal request to the Rocklin City Clerk or the Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin. 

 

ELECTRONIC PRESENTATIONS 

All persons with electronic presentations for public meetings will be required to bring their own laptop or other form of 

standalone device that is HDMI or VGA compatible.  It is further recommended that presenters arrive early to test their 

presentations.  The City is not responsible for the compatibility or operation of non-city devices or the functionality of 

non-city presentations. 

 

FURTHER INFORMATION 

Any person interested in an agenda item may contact the Planning Staff prior to the meeting date, at 3970 Rocklin 

Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 or by phoning (916) 625-5160 for further information. 

 

POSTING OF AGENDA 

In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) this agenda was posted on the City’s bulletin board at City 

Hall, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, and City of Rocklin website at www.rocklin.ca.us.  

 

AGENDA 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

1. Meeting called to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Minutes 

5. Correspondence 

6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items 

 

CONSENT ITEMS 

  

 None 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

7. THIS ITEM IS BEING CONTINUED TO AUGUST 15, 2017 

 

STANFORD TERRACE CONDOMINIUMS 

SUBDIVISION MAP, SD-2013-05 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR-2013-12 

 

This application is a request for a re-approval of a prior Design Review and Tentative Subdivision Map to develop 

119 townhomes on 7.3+/- acres.  The subject property is approximately 7.3 +/- acres and is generally located on 

Stanford Ranch Road near the southwest intersection of Stanford Ranch Rd. and Sunset Blvd. APN 017-460-003. 

Packet Pg. 2



Agenda of August 10, 2017 

Page 3 

 

 

The property is zoned Planned Development 20 units per acre (PD-20).  The General Plan designation is High 

Density Residential (HDR). 

 

A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council 

through Resolution No. 2014-234.  The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of 

the Government Code related to hazardous wastes. 

 

The applicant is Chris Scerri with Golden State Lumber, Inc. The property owner is Golden State Lumber, Inc. 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval A Tentative 

Subdivision Map (Stanford Terrace Condominiums / SD-2013-05) 

 

b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval A Design Review 

For Multi-Family Residential Homes (Stanford Terrace Condominiums / DR-2013-12) 

 

8. ROCKLIN STATION 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2016-0006 

OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT, TRE2016-0003 

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL2016-0003 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2016-0005 

 

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review, Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit, and a Tentative 

Parcel Map to re-divide the existing four parcels into five commercial parcels and to allow the construction of a 

commercial center including an automotive service use, retail space, and restaurant spaces, some with drive-

through window service and/or outdoor dining, and associated site improvements, including parking and 

landscaping, and a freeway pylon sign exceeding 30 feet in height.  The subject site is located on the southwest 

corner of the Interstate 80 off-ramp and Sierra College Boulevard.  APNs 045-051-015, -019, -020, -021. The 

property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial 

(RC). 

 

Notice is hereby given that the City of Rocklin will consider adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the 

development project described above. The review period for the Mitigated Negative Declaration begins on July 6, 

2017 and ends at 5:00 p.m. on August 4, 2017. The environmental document is available for review during 

normal business hours at the City of Rocklin Community Development Department, Planning Division, located at 

3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 and online at 

http://www.rocklin.ca.us/depts/develop/planning/currentenvirondocs.asp. Written comments regarding the 

environmental document may be submitted to the attention of the Environmental Coordinator at the mailing 

address above or e-mailed to planner@rocklin.ca.us. 

 

The applicant is Sam Thomas of Thomas Sierra, LLC.  The property owners are Cecil Finegold Family Receiving 

Trust and Cecil Finegold Charitable Remainder Trust. 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Mitigated Negative Declaration 

Of Environmental Impacts (Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006/TRE2016-0003, U2016-0005, DL2016-0003) 

 

b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Design Review And An Oak Tree 

Preservation Plan Permit (Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006/TRE2016-0003) 

 

Packet Pg. 3



Agenda of August 10, 2017 

Page 4 

 

 

c. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Conditional Use Permit For A 

Freeway-Oriented Sign That Exceeds The Maximum Height Allowed By The City Of Rocklin Municipal Code 

(17.75.050) (Rocklin Station / U2016-0005) 

 

d. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Tentative Parcel Map (Rocklin 

Station / DL2016-0003) 

 

9. GRACEPOINT ADVENTIST CHURCH SANCTUARY ADDITION TIME EXTENSION 

DESIGN REVIEW, DR2014-0015 

VARIANCE, V2014-0020 

 

This application is a request for approval of a one-year extension of time for a previously approved Design 

Review, DR2014-0015, and Variance, V2014-0020), which allows for the development of a 23,910 square foot 

sanctuary addition to the existing church building with enhanced entry, a new driveway, new signage and new 

site landscaping. The approved variance allows the height to exceed the thirty-foot (30’) maximum, specified in 

the C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district, by eight feet (8’)  for a total maximum height allowed of 

thirty-eight feet (38’). The subject property is 3500 Sunset Boulevard, is located on the southerly corner of the 

intersection of Springview Drive and Sunset Boulevard.  APN 016-030-023.The property is zoned Neighborhood 

Commercial (C-1) and Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Business 

Professional (BP) and Retail Commercial (RC). 

 

The project was previously determined to be exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

Guidelines through Planning Commission Resolution PC-2015-28. 

 

The property owner is Northern California Conference Association of Seventh Day Adventist.  The applicant is 

Steve Jones of Kelly Architects. 

 

a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Two-Year Time Extension For 

Design Review, Dr2014-0015, (Pc-2015-29) And Variance, V2014-0020 (Pc-2015-30) To Allow The 

Development Of A Sanctuary Addition To An Existing Church Building And To Exceed The 30-Foot Height 

Limit (Gracepoint Adventist Church Time Extension / Dr2014-0015 And V2014-0020) 

 

NON PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

10. Informational Items and Presentations 

11. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners 

12. Reports from City Staff 

13. Adjournment 

 

 

Packet Pg. 4



 
 

City of Rocklin Economic & Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Rocklin Station 
Design Review, DR2016-0006 

Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit, TRE2016-0003 
Conditional Use Permit, U2016-0005 
Tentative Parcel Map, DL2016-0003 

 
 

August 10, 2017 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 

Staff recommends the Planning Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS (ROCKLIN STATION / DR2016-
0006/TRE2016-0003, U2016-0005, DL2016-0003) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN 
REVIEW AND AN OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT (ROCKLIN STATION / DR2016-
0006/TRE2016-0003) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A COMMERCIAL CENTER AND A 50 FOOT HIGH FREEWAY-
ORIENTED SIGN  (ROCKLIN STATION / U2016-0005) 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A TENTATIVE 
PARCEL MAP (ROCKLIN STATION / DL2016-0003) 
 
Proposal/Application Request 

This application is a request for approval of the following entitlements to allow the development of 
a retail commercial center on an approximately 6.6 net acre site: 
 

• A Design Review for the site design, landscaping, architectural designs, colors and 
materials of a proposed commercial center. 

• A Conditional Use Permit to approve a freeway-oriented sign that exceeds the maximum 
height of 30 feet allowed by the Rocklin Municipal Code. 

Packet Pg. 5

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Station 
August 10, 2017 
Page 2 
 

• A Tentative Parcel Map to re-subdivide four parcels of approximately 6.6 net acres into 
five commercial parcels. 

 
The Rocklin Station project proposes the construction of a retail commercial center consisting of 
five buildings with various uses. The project is currently planned to include a 10,224 +/- square foot 
tire store, a 6,602 +/-square foot high turnover sit down restaurant which includes 2,568 +/- square 
feet of general retail space, three fast food restaurants with drive-throughs totaling 9,595 +/- 
square feet, and two fast food restaurants without drive-throughs totaling 3,600 +/- square feet. 
 
Project Applicant and Ownership  

The applicant and owner is Sam Thomas with Thomas Sierra, LLC.  
 
Location, Site Characteristics and Background  

The approximately 6.6 acre project site consists of four parcels located generally at the southwest 
corner of the intersection of Sierra College Boulevard, the Interstate-80 off-ramp /Crossings Drive, 
4660 Sierra College Boulevard. The Assessor Parcel Numbers (APN) are 045-052-015, -019, -020, 
and -021, See Figure 1.  
 
A single family residence was formerly located on the project site but it was demolished several 
years ago. The site generally slopes from north to south and supports oak trees, other native trees, 
and native and non-native grasses. In the southwest tip of the site there is an Elderberry shrub that 
is outside of the proposed development area and is designated to remain. 
 

Figure 1. Project Location 

  

Project Site 

Packet Pg. 6

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Station 
August 10, 2017 
Page 3 
 
Surrounding Uses 

The project site is bound to the west and north by the Interstate 80 east bound off-ramp. East of 
the site, across Sierra College Boulevard, is the Rocklin Crossings retail commercial center. The 
Lifehouse Church is located to the south of the project site.  
 
See Table 1 for surrounding uses and see Figure 2 for the current General Plan and Zoning. 
 

Table 1.  Surrounding Uses 

 Current Use Current General Plan / Zoning 

Project 
Site 

Vacant 
 

 
Retail Commercial (RD) / 

Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) 
 

North Interstate 80 Off-Ramp Caltrans Right-of-Way 

South Lifehouse Church Retail Commercial (RD) / 
Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) 

East 
Sierra College Boulevard /  

Rocklin Crossings 
Commercial Center 

Retail Commercial (RD) / 
Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) 

West Interstate 80 Off-Ramp Caltrans Right-of-Way 

 

Figure 2. Current General Plan/Zoning 

 
  

Med High Density 
Residential 

Retail Commercial 

Retail Commercial 

High Density Residential 

Recreation -Conservation 

Med. Density Residential 

Packet Pg. 7

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Station 
August 10, 2017 
Page 4 
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 

The project site is designated Retail Commercial (RC) in the current General Plan. The site is zoned 
Planned Development Commercial (PD-C) in the Sierra College Area General Development Plan 
(Ordinance 857). The site is also within the Automotive Overlay Zone which allows an automobile 
shop (light) (such as a tire sales and installation/repair shop) by right when certain conditions are 
met (17.57.050.B). A conditional use permit is required for a freeway-oriented sign that exceeds 
the maximum height allowed in the Municipal Code (17.75.060). The proposed retail commercial 
center requires the approval of a Design Review entitlement for the project architecture, signage, 
site layout, and landscaping. 
 
Staff has reviewed the proposed project and found that, subject to the approval of a design review 
and conditional use permit, it is consistent with both the zoning and General Plan. 
 
Tentative Parcel Map 

The project proposes to subdivide the approximately 6.6 net acre site into five commercial parcels. 
The tentative parcel map would also establish access and public utility easements needed across 
and between the newly created parcels. A standard condition of approval would require reciprocal 
parking and access easements on all five parcels for the proposed development to function as a 
cohesive commercial center. A draft condition of approval would also require a reciprocal access 
easement be recorded in favor of the Lifehouse Church property to the south, to facilitate a future 
secondary access, at such time as the Church property is redeveloped. 
 
Conditional Use Permit 

Municipal Code section 17.75.060.D. requires that Freeway-Oriented Signs obtain a conditional use 
permit and generally conform to a height limit of thirty feet. A taller sign may be allowed by 
conditional use permit provided that the applicant is able to demonstrate that the visibility of a 
thirty foot tall sign would be significantly blocked by a freeway overcrossing, ramps, trees or 
similar. The applicant worked with staff to utilize the Procedure for Determining Allowed Height set 
forth in the Municipal Code to verify that the requested fifty foot sign height would allow the sign 
to be visible over the nearby Sierra College Boulevard freeway overcrossing and associated on- and 
off-ramps. Subject to the approval of the requested Conditional Use Permit to allow a freeway-
oriented sign at a height of fifty feet, the proposed freeway sign would be consistent with the 
Municipal Code. 

Design Review 

The project is comprised of five buildings with two stand-alone drive-through fast food restaurants 
(Chick Fil A and Del Taco); a Shops building that includes a third drive-through fast food restaurant 
(Habit Burger), and space for another restaurant and/or retail space; a tire store (Les Schwab); and 
a sit-down restaurant with retail space (Cracker Barrel). 
 
Access and Off-site Improvements  
Access is provided from a main entry off of Sierra College Boulevard west through the center of the 
parking areas. This entrance is proposed to be signalized and the project is required to modify the 

Packet Pg. 8

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Station 
August 10, 2017 
Page 5 
 
intersection of the project entry with Sierra College Boulevard and Schriber Way. The draft 
conditions also include the requirement for this signal to be synchronized with several nearby 
signals on Sierra College Boulevard, including the Caltrans signal at the Interstate 80 off ramp at 
Crossings Drive just to the north and to provide monitoring, reporting, and signal timing 
adjustments for approximately one year after the identified tenants have opened to optimize 
traffic flow. The project is also obligated to improve Sierra College Boulevard by widening an 
auxiliary/right turn lane across the Lifehouse Church property south to the existing Dominguez 
Road extension. As the City does not currently have all of the right of way needed to accommodate 
this off-site improvement, the applicant will be conditioned to enter into an agreement to pay the 
project’s fair-share costs in lieu of constructing the improvements. 
 
Eventually, a secondary access to the Dominguez Road extension would be provided for the center 
by construction of a future access, currently proposed to start near the Cracker Barrel building, 
across the existing Lifehouse Church property. The project is also conditioned to construct or 
contribute fair-share in-lieu fees for the future construction of this access. The project is also 
conditioned to record a reciprocal access easement in favor of the Lifehouse Church property upon 
the future redevelopment of that property.  
 
Site Layout and Parking 
The buildings are positioned to maximize visibility from Interstate 80 and Sierra College Boulevard 
with a majority of the parking areas located within the interior of the site. The drive-through lanes 
and locations provide adequate vehicle stacking. The project is required to provide 248 parking 
spaces and 274 parking spaces are proposed, which affords a surplus of 26 parking spaces for the 
center.  
 
Pedestrian Amenities and Public Art Installation 
The center provides several site amenities geared towards pedestrians. Four of the proposed 
restaurants include outdoor dining areas. Speed tables, a traffic calming device, are proposed in the 
drive aisle at either end of the Shops building to slow down traffic near the two pedestrian 
walkways linking the north and south sides of the site. One pedestrian path connects the Shops 
building to Chick Fil A and Del Taco and the other crosses the main driveway further west and 
continues north through the center of the parking lot to Del Taco and Les Schwab under a trellis 
with vines. Adjacent to the main entry, a separated sidewalk meanders from Sierra College 
Boulevard through an art plaza that also provides seating and a gathering space before continuing 
on to the Shops building. An interpretive granite quarry cart public art installation, approved by the 
Parks, Recreation and Arts Commission, will be located in the art plaza . 
 
Landscaping and Fencing 
The proposed on-site landscaping as shown in the landscape plan is consistent with the City’s 
Design Review Criteria employing a mix of various species of trees, shrubs, and groundcovers. The 
project is conditioned to provide verification that the proposed landscaping will comply with the 
parking lot shade requirement to achieve 50% shading at maturity (15 years). A draft condition is 
also included to ensure that the protected Elderberry shrub is shown on the final landscape plans 
provided with the building permit(s) and adequately provides for an exclusion area around the 

Packet Pg. 9

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Station 
August 10, 2017 
Page 6 
 
shrub. A chain link fence is proposed on top of the retaining wall along the southern property line; 
use of chain link fencing is not consistent with the Design Review Criteria, therefore, a condition of 
approval has been included to require a tubular steel fence in lieu of the proposed chain link. 
 
Building Architecture 
Through the entitlement review process, Staff worked with the applicant to revise and refine the 
various buildings’ architecture with a goal of retaining the individuality of each corporate tenant, 
while providing some continuity between the buildings. In addition to using a consistent paint and 
material color palette, the cornice and tower elements have been revised to be more uniform in 
design and proportion amongst all the buildings to provide an element that ties all the architecture 
together. Also, consistent exterior building light fixtures are being used on three of the four 
restaurants and the Les Schwab building. Cracker Barrel is architecturally dissimilar from the rest of 
the center since it is a well-known and unique destination restaurant with a distinct Southern 
country theme. Nevertheless, Cracker Barrel also worked with Staff to add faux windows with 
spandrel glass on the east and west elevations that provide relief and interest to what would have 
been nearly blank walls that did not comply with the Design Guidelines. 
 
Signage  
Signage for the center is conditioned to comply with the Sign Ordinance and the Design Review 
Criteria for signs. Several signs presented in the sign package in Exhibit B will or may need to be 
modified to comply with Code and Design Review Criteria. The Sign Ordinance does not allow logos 
on directional signs and directional signs are limited to a maximum of three square feet (Habit 
Burger and Del Taco). Allowable sign area is based on the linear frontage of a building elevation 
which may affect the size of the proposed Chick Fil A building sign. The Sign Ordinance also limits 
menu boards to forty square feet and eight feet tall.  These are relatively minor adjustments that 
would be addressed when tenants come forward to obtain sign permits. 
 
Staff has determined that the architecture, colors and materials, landscaping and site design of the 
proposed center, as modified by the recommended conditions of approval, are consistent with the 
Citywide Design Review Criteria. 
 
Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit 

Within its boundaries, the project site includes a total of 385 native oak trees. Of these, 176 are not 
subject to mitigation as they are less than 6inches in diameter at breast height or are dead, dying, 
or diseased. The remaining 209 oak trees are subject to mitigation as set forth in the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration prepared for the project.  
 
Environmental Determination 

Consistent with the requirements of CEQA, an Initial Study was prepared to determine the Rocklin 
Station project’s potential impacts on the environment. The study found that the project could 
have significant impacts with regard to Biological and Cultural Resources; however, it was also able 
to identify mitigation measures that would reduce each of these potential impacts to a less than 
significant level. Therefore, a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) of environmental impacts was 
prepared for the project. 

Packet Pg. 10

Agenda Item #8.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Rocklin Station 
August 10, 2017 
Page 7 
 
 
Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the Rocklin Station project as proposed 
and conditioned. 
 
Prepared by Dara Dungworth, Senior Planner 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Rocklin Station\Meeting Packets\PC 8-10-17\01 Rocklin Station PC SR - final.docx 

Packet Pg. 11

Agenda Item #8.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A MITIGATED NEGATIVE 

DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
Rocklin Station 

(DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-0003) 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Rocklin's Environmental Coordinator prepared an Initial Study on 
the Rocklin Station project (DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-0003) (the 
"Project") which identified potentially significant effects of the Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, revisions to and/or conditions placed on the Project, were made or agreed to 
by the applicant before the mitigated negative declaration was released for public review, were 
determined by the environmental coordinator to avoid or reduce the potentially significant 
effects to a level that is clearly less than significant and that there was, therefore, no substantial 
evidence that the Project, as revised and conditioned, would have a significant effect on the 
environment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Initial Study and mitigated negative declaration of environmental 
impacts were then prepared, properly noticed, and circulated for public review. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. Based on the Initial Study, the revisions and conditions incorporated into 

the Project, the required mitigation measures, and information received during the public 
review process, the Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds that there is no substantial 
evidence that the Project, as revised and conditioned, may have a significant effect on the 
environment. 

 
Section 2. The mitigated negative declaration reflects the independent judgment of 

the Planning Commission. 
 
Section 3. All feasible mitigation measures identified in the City of Rocklin General 

Plan Environmental Impact Reports which are applicable to this Project have been adopted and 
undertaken by the City of Rocklin and all other public agencies with authority to mitigate the 
project impacts or will be undertaken as required by this project. 

 
Section 4. The statements of overriding considerations adopted by the City Council 

when approving the City of Rocklin General Plan Update are hereby readopted for the purposes 
of this mitigated negative declaration and the significant identified impacts of this project 
related to aesthetics, air quality, traffic circulation, noise, cultural and paleontological 
resources, biological resources, and climate change and greenhouse gases.  

Packet Pg. 12

Agenda Item #8.a.



 
Section 5. A mitigated negative declaration of environmental impacts and 

Mitigation Monitoring Program prepared in connection with the Project, attached hereto as 
Attachment 1 and incorporated by this reference, are recommended for approval for the 
Project. 

 
Section 6. The Project Initial Study is attached as Attachment 1 and is incorporated 

by reference. All other documents, studies, and other materials that constitute the record of 
proceedings upon which the Planning Commission has based its decision are located in the 
office of the Rocklin Economic and Community Development Director, 3970 Rocklin Road, 
Rocklin, California 95677. The custodian of these documents and other materials is the Rocklin 
Economic and Community Development Director. 

 
Section 7. Upon approval of the Project by the Planning Commission, the 

environmental coordinator shall file a Notice of Determination with the County Clerk of Placer 
County and, if the project requires a discretionary approval from any state agency, with the 
State Office of Planning and Research, pursuant to the provisions of section 21152(a) of the 
Public Resources Code and the State EIR Guidelines adopted pursuant thereto. 
 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _____, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
  
NOES:  Commissioners:  
 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
  
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary    
 

Packet Pg. 13

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 2  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 

 
ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CITY OF ROCKLIN       
3970 Rocklin Road 
Rocklin, California 95677 
(916) 625-5160 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 

INITIAL STUDY AND ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST 
 

Rocklin Station 
 

DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-0003 
 
 
 

Southwest corner of Sierra College Boulevard and Interstate 80  
in the City of Rocklin 

APN’s 045-052-015, -019, -020, -021  
 
 

July 6, 2017 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
 

David Mohlenbrok, Environmental Services Manager, (916) 625-5162 
 

CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 

This Initial Study has been prepared by the City of Rocklin, as Lead Agency, under the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Any questions regarding this document should 
be addressed to David Mohlenbrok at the City of Rocklin Economic and Community 
Development Department, Planning Division, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, California 95677 
(916) 625-5160.  

 
 

APPLICANT/OWNER: 
 

The applicant is Thomas Sierra, LLC and the  
property owner is Thomas Sierra, LLC. 

 

Packet Pg. 14

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 3  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

SECTION 1. INTRODUCTION 
A. Purpose of an Initial Study 

 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) was enacted in 1970 for the purpose of 
providing decision-makers and the public with information regarding environmental effects of 
proposed projects; identifying means of avoiding environmental damage; and disclosing to the 
public the reasons behind a project’s approval even if it leads to environmental damage. The 
City of Rocklin has determined the proposed project is subject to CEQA and no exemptions 
apply. Therefore, preparation of an initial study is required.  
 
An initial study is a preliminary analysis conducted by the lead agency, in consultation with 
other agencies (responsible or trustee agencies, as applicable), to determine whether there is 
substantial evidence that a project may have a significant effect on the environment. If the 
initial study concludes that the project, with mitigation, may have a significant effect on the 
environment, an environmental impact report should be prepared; otherwise the lead agency 
may adopt a negative declaration or mitigated negative declaration.  
 
This Initial Study (IS) has been prepared in accordance with CEQA (Public Resources Code 
§21000 et seq.), the State CEQA Guidelines (Title 14, California Code of Regulations, §15000 et 
seq.), and the City of Rocklin CEQA Guidelines (1981, amended July 31, 2002). 
 
This Initial Study has been prepared to identify and assess the anticipated environmental 
impacts of the Rocklin Station project. The document relies on a combination of a previous 
environmental document and site-specific studies to address in detail the effects or impacts 
associated with the proposed project. In particular, this Initial Study assesses the extent to 
which the impacts of the proposed project have already been addressed in the certified Final 
Environmental Impact Report for the Rocklin General Plan, as adopted by the Rocklin City 
Council on October 9, 2012 (the “General Plan EIR”). 

B. Document Format 
 
This Initial Study is organized into five sections as follows: 
 
Section 1, Introduction: provides an overview of the project and the CEQA environmental 
documentation process. 
 
Section 2, Summary Information and Determination: Required summary information, listing of 
environmental factors potentially affected, and lead agency determination. 
 
Section 3, Project Description: provides a description of the project location, project 
background, and project components. 
 

Packet Pg. 15

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 4  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Section 4, Evaluation of Environmental Impacts: provides a detailed discussion of the 
environmental factors that would be potentially affected by this project as indicated by the 
screening from the CEQA Guidelines Appendix G checklist. 
 
Section 5, References: provides a list of reference materials used during the preparation of this 
Initial Study. The reference materials are available for review during normal business hours at 
the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and can also be found 
on the City’s website under Planning Department, Current Environmental Documents. 

C. CEQA Process 
 
To begin the CEQA process, the lead agency identifies a proposed project. The lead agency then 
prepares an initial study to identify the preliminary environmental impacts of the proposed 
project. This document has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) to analyze the possible environmental impacts of the project 
so that the public and the City of Rocklin decision-making bodies (Planning Commission, and/or 
City Council) can take these impacts into account when considering action on the required 
entitlements. 
 
During the project approval process, persons and/or agencies may address either the 
Environmental Services staff or the City Council regarding the project. Public notification of 
agenda items for the City Council is posted 72 hours prior to the public meeting. The Council 
agenda can be obtained by contacting the Office of the City Clerk at City Hall, 3970 Rocklin 
Road, Rocklin, CA 95667or via the internet at http://www.rocklin.ca.us. 
 
Within five days of project approval, the City will file a Notice of Determination with the County 
Clerk. The Notice of Determination will be posted by the County Clerk within 24 hours of 
receipt. This begins a 30-day statute of limitations on legal challenges to the approval under 
CEQA. The ability to challenge the approval in court may be limited to those persons who 
objected to the approval of the project, and to issues that were presented to the lead agency 
by any person, either orally or in writing, during the public comment period.  

Packet Pg. 16

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 5  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

SECTION 2.  INITIAL STUDY SUMMARY AND DETERMINATION 
A. Summary Information 

 
Project Title: 
Rocklin Station 
 
Lead Agency Name and Address:  
City of Rocklin, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 
 
Contact Person and Phone Number: 
David Mohlenbrok, Environmental Services Manager, 916-625-5162 
 
Project Location: 
The project site is generally located on the southwest corner of Sierra College Boulevard and 
Interstate 80, in the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 045-052-015, -019, -020, 
and -021. 
 
Project Sponsor’s Name: 
The applicant is Thomas Sierra, LLC and the property owner is Thomas Sierra, LLC. 
 
Current General Plan Designation: Retail Commercial (RC) 
 
Proposed General Plan Designation: Retail Commercial (RC) 
 
Current Zoning: Planned Development-Commercial (PD-C) 
 
Proposed Zoning: Planned Development-Commercial (PD-C) 
 
Description of the Project: 
The Rocklin Station project proposes the construction of a retail commercial center on an 
approximately 6.64 +/- acre site in the City of Rocklin. This project will require Design Review, 
Tentative Parcel Map, Conditional Use Permit and Oak Tree Preservation Permit entitlements. 
For more detail please refer to the Project Description set forth in Section 3 of this Initial Study. 
 
Surrounding Land Uses and Setting: 
The proposed project site is vacant and is bound by I-80 to the north and west, Sierra College 
Boulevard to the east, and Lifehouse Church to the south. To the east of Sierra College 
Boulevard is the Rocklin Crossings commercial center. To the west of I-80 is the Rocklin 
Commons commercial center. To the south of the Lifehouse Church are a few single family 
residences, vacant land designated as Retail Commercial and Recreation/Conservation, and 
Sierra Community College. 

Packet Pg. 17

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 6  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
Other Actions Which May Be Required For Project Implementation (e.g., Permits, Financing 
Approval, or Participation Agreement):  
• Rocklin Engineering Division approval of Improvement Plans 
• Rocklin Building Inspections Division issuance of Building Permits 
• Placer County Water Agency construction of water facilities 
• South Placer Municipal Utility District construction of sewer facilities 
• U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Section 404 wetlands permit 
• Regional Water Quality Control Board, Section 401 water quality certification 
• California Department of Fish and Wildlife, Streambed Alteration Agreement 

 
B. Environmental Factors Potentially Affected: 

 
Those factors checked below involve impacts that are “Potentially Significant”: 
 

 Aesthetics  Agriculture Resources  Air Quality 
 Biological Resources  Cultural Resources  Geology/Soils 
 Greenhouse Gas Emissions  Hazards & Hazardous Materials  Hydrology/Water Quality 
 Land Use/Planning  Mineral Resources  Noise 
 Population/Housing  Public Services  Recreation 
 Transportation/Traffic  Tribal Cultural Resources  Utilities/Service Systems 
 Mandatory Findings of Sig. X None After Mitigation   

  

Packet Pg. 18

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 7  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

C. Determination:  
 
On the basis of this Initial Study: 
 

 I find that the proposed project WILL NOT have a significant effect on the 
environment, and a NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 

 

X I find that as originally submitted, the proposed project could have a significant 
effect on the environment; however, revisions in the project have been made by 
or agreed to by the project proponent which will avoid these effects or mitigate 
these effects to a point where clearly no significant effect will occur. A MITIGATED 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared. 

 

 

 I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, 
and an ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required. 
 

 

  
 I find that the proposed project MAY have a “potentially significant impact” or 

“potentially significant unless mitigated” impact on the environment, but at least 
one effect 1) has been adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to 
applicable legal standards, and 2) has been addressed by mitigation measures 
based on the earlier analysis as described on the attached Environmental 
Checklist. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, to analyze the 
effects that remain to be addressed. 

 

 

 I find that although the proposed project could have a significant effect on the 
environment, because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed 
adequately in an earlier EIR or (MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION pursuant to 
applicable standards, and (b) have been avoided or mitigated pursuant to that 
earlier EIR or (MITIGATED) NEGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or 
mitigation measures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further 
is required. 

 

 

 
 
__________________________________________ ________________________ 
Marc Mondell        Date 
Director of Economic and Community Development 
       
 

Packet Pg. 19

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 8  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

SECTION 3.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
A. Project Location 

 
The project site is generally located on the southwest corner of Sierra College Boulevard and I-
80 in the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 045-052-015, -019, -020, and -021 
(Please see Attachment A, Vicinity Map). 
 
The City of Rocklin is located approximately 25 miles northeast of Sacramento, and is within the 
County of Placer. Surrounding jurisdictions include: unincorporated Placer County to the north 
and northeast, the City of Lincoln to the northwest, the Town of Loomis to the east and 
southeast, and the City of Roseville to the south and southwest. 

B. Description 
 
The Rocklin Station project proposes the construction of a retail commercial center consisting 
of five buildings on a 6.64 +/- acre site in the City of Rocklin. The project is currently planned to 
include a 10,224 +/- square foot tire store, a 6,602 +/-square foot high turnover sit down 
restaurant which includes 2,568 +/- square feet of general retail space, three fast food 
restaurants with drive-throughs totaling 9,595 +/- square feet, and two fast food restaurants 
without drive-throughs totaling 3,600 +/- square feet. This project will require the following 
entitlements from the City of Rocklin: a Design Review for the site design, landscaping, 
architectural designs, colors and materials; a Tentative Parcel Map to subdivide four existing 
parcels into five retail commercial parcels; a Conditional Use Permit for the project’s freeway 
sign to exceed 30 feet in height, and an Oak Tree Preservation Plan to address the preservation, 
removal and mitigation of oak trees on the project site.  
 
Access to the project would be from Sierra College Boulevard and a proposed new signalized 
intersection at the project’s driveway on Sierra College opposite Schriber Way. In the future, 
the project will also have access to Dominguez Road through the adjacent Lifehouse Church 
property. The project site is vacant and it is anticipated that site development will involve 
clearing and grading of the site, trenching and digging for underground utilities and 
infrastructure, and ultimately the construction of new roadways, driveways, buildings, and 
landscaping. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 20

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 9  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

SECTION 4.  EVALUATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS 
A. Explanation of CEQA Streamlining and Tiering Utilized in this Initial Study 

 
This Initial Study will evaluate this project in light of the previously approved General Plan EIR, 
which is hereby incorporated by reference. This document is available for review during normal 
business hours at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and 
can also be found on the City’s website under Planning Department, Publications and Maps. 
 
CEQA Guidelines Section 15183 provides a means of streamlining analysis for qualifying 
projects. Under Section 15183, effects are not considered “peculiar to the project or the parcel” 
if they are addressed and mitigated by uniformly applied development policies and standards 
adopted by the City to substantially mitigate that effect (unless new information shows that the 
policy or standard will not mitigate the effect). Policies and standards have been adopted by 
the City to address and mitigate certain impacts of development that lend themselves to 
uniform mitigation measures. These policies and standards include those found in the Oak Tree 
Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal Code, Chapter 17.77), the Flood Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal 
Code, Chapter 15.16), the Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 15.28), the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30), and the Goals and Policies of the Rocklin General Plan. Where 
applicable, the Initial Study will state how these policies and standards apply to the project. 
Where the policies and standards will substantially mitigate the effects of the proposed project, 
the Initial Study concludes that these effects are “not peculiar to the project or the parcel” and 
thus need not be revisited in the text of the environmental document for the proposed project. 
 
This Initial Study has also been prepared pursuant to CEQA Guidelines sections 15063 and 
15168. Section 15063 sets forth the general rules for preparing Initial Studies. One of the 
identified functions of an Initial Study is for a lead agency to “[d]etermine, pursuant to a 
program EIR, tiering, or another appropriate process, which of a project’s effects were 
adequately examined by an earlier EIR or negative declaration… The lead agency shall then 
ascertain which effects, if any, should be analyzed in a later EIR or negative declaration.” (CEQA 
Guidelines, section 15063, subd. (b)(1)(C).). Here, the City has used this initial study to 
determine the extent to which the General Plan EIR has “adequately examined” the effects of 
the proposed project. 
 
Section 15168 sets forth the legal requirements for preparing “program EIRs” and for reliance 
upon program EIRs in connection with “[s]ubsequent activities” within the approved program. 
(See Citizens for Responsible Equitable Environmental Development v. City of San Diego 
Redevelopment Agency (2005) 134 Cal.App.4th 598, 614-617.) The General Plan EIR was a 
program EIR with respect to its analysis of impacts associated with eventual buildout of future 
anticipated development identified by the General Plan. Subdivision (c) of section 15168 
provides as follows: 

Packet Pg. 21

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 10  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
(c) Use with Later Activities. Subsequent activities in the program must be examined in light 

of the program EIR to determine whether an additional environmental document must 
be prepared. 

 
(1) If a later activity would have effects that were not examined in the program EIR, 

a new Initial Study would need to be prepared leading to either an EIR or a 
Negative Declaration. 

 
(2) If the agency finds that pursuant to Section 15162, no new effects could occur or 

no new mitigation measures would be required, the agency can approve the 
activity as being within the scope of the project covered by the program EIR, and 
no new environmental document would be required. 

 
(3) An agency shall incorporate feasible mitigation measures and alternatives 

developed in the program EIR into subsequent actions on the project. 
 

(4) Where the subsequent activities involve site specific operations, the agency 
should use a written checklist or similar device to document the evaluation of 
the site and the activity to determine whether the environmental effects of the 
operation were covered in the program EIR. 

 
Consistent with these principles, this Initial Study serves the function of a “written checklist or 
similar device” documenting the extent to which the environmental effects of the proposed 
project “were covered in the program EIR” for the General Plan. As stated below, the City has 
concluded that the impacts of the proposed project are “within the scope” of the analysis in the 
General Plan EIR. Stated another way, these “environmental effects of the [site-specific project] 
were covered in the program EIR.” Where particular impacts were not thoroughly analyzed in 
prior documents, site-specific studies were prepared for the project with respect to impacts 
that were not “adequately examined” in the General Plan EIR, or were not “within the scope” of 
the prior analysis. These studies are hereby incorporated by reference and are available for 
review during normal business hours at the Rocklin Economic and Community Development 
Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 and can also be found on the City’s website 
under Planning Department, Current Environmental Documents. The specific studies are listed 
in Section 5, References.  
 
The Initial Study is a public document to be used by the City decision-makers to determine 
whether a project may have a significant effect on the environment. If the City as lead agency, 
finds substantial evidence that any effects of the project were not “adequately examined” in 
the General Plan EIR or were not “within the scope” of the analysis in that document AND that 
these effects may have a significant effect on the environment if not mitigated, the City would 
be required to prepare an EIR with respect to such potentially significant effects. On the other 
hand, if the City finds that these unaddressed project impacts are not significant, a negative 

Packet Pg. 22

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 11  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

declaration would be appropriate. If in the course of analysis, the City identified potentially 
significant impacts that could be reduced to less than significant levels through mitigation 
measures to which the applicant agrees, the impact would be considered to be reduced to a 
less than significant level, and adoption of a mitigated negative declaration would be 
appropriate. 

B. Significant Cumulative Impacts; Statement of Overriding Considerations 
 
The Rocklin City Council has previously identified the following cumulative significant impacts as 
unavoidable consequences of urbanization contemplated in the Rocklin General Plan, despite 
the implementation of all available and feasible mitigation measures, and on that basis has 
adopted a statement of overriding considerations for each cumulative impact: 
 
1. Air Quality: 
 
Development in the City and the Sacramento Valley Air Basin as a whole will result in the 
following: violations of air quality standards as a result of short-term emissions from 
construction projects, increases in criteria air pollutants from operational air pollutants and 
exposure to toxic air contaminants, the generation of odors and a cumulative contribution to 
regional air quality impacts. 
 
2. Aesthetics/Light and Glare: 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in substantial 
degradation of the existing visual character, the creation of new sources of substantial light and 
glare and cumulative impacts to scenic vistas, scenic resources, existing visual character and 
creation of light and glare. 
 
3. Traffic and Circulation: 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in impacts to 
segments and intersections of the state/interstate highway system. 
 
4. Noise 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in impacts associated 
with exposure to surface transportation and stationary noise sources, and cumulative 
transportation noise impacts within the Planning area. 
 
5. Cultural and Paleontological Resources 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in cumulative 
impacts to historic character. 

Packet Pg. 23

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 12  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
6. Biological Resources 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in the loss of native 
oak and heritage trees, the loss of oak woodland habitat, and cumulative impacts to biological 
resources. 
 
7. Climate Change and Greenhouse Gases 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in the generation of 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

C. Mitigation Measures Required and Considered 
 
It is the policy and a requirement of the City of Rocklin that all public agencies with authority to 
mitigate significant effects shall undertake or require the undertaking of all feasible mitigation 
measures specified in the prior environmental impact reports relevant to a significant effect 
which the project will have on the environment. Project review is limited to effects upon the 
environment which are peculiar to the parcel or to the project which were not addressed as 
significant effects in the General Plan EIR or which substantial new information shows will be 
more significant than described in the General Plan EIR. This Initial Study anticipates that 
feasible mitigation measures previously identified in the General Plan has been, or will be, 
implemented as set forth in that document, and evaluates this Project accordingly. 

D. Evaluation of Environmental Checklist: 
 
1) A brief explanation is provided for all answers except “No Impact” answers that are 

adequately supported by the information sources cited in the parentheses following each 
question. A “No Impact” answer is adequately supported if the referenced information 
sources show that the impact simply does not apply to projects like the one involved (e.g., 
the project falls outside a fault rupture zone). A “No Impact” answer is explained where it is 
based on project-specific factors as well as general standards (e.g., the project will not 
expose sensitive receptors to pollutants, based on a project-specific screening analysis). 

 
2) All answers take account of the whole action involved, including off-site as well as on-site 

elements, cumulative as well as project-level impacts, indirect as well as direct impacts, and 
construction as well as operational impacts. 

 
3) If a particular physical impact may occur, then the checklist answers must indicate whether 

the impact is potentially significant, less than significant with mitigation, or less than 
significant. “Potentially Significant Impact” is appropriate if there is substantial evidence 
that an effect may be significant. 

 

Packet Pg. 24

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 13  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

4) Answers of “Less than Significant with Mitigation Incorporated” describe the mitigation 
measures agreed to by the applicant and briefly explain how they reduce the effect to a less 
than significant level. Mitigation measures and supporting explanation from earlier EIRs or 
Negative Declaration may be cross-referenced and incorporated by reference. 

 
5) Earlier analyses may be used where an effect has been adequately analyzed in an earlier EIR 

or negative declaration, and the City intends to use tiering. All prior EIRs and Negative 
Declarations and certifying resolutions are available for review at the Rocklin Economic and 
Community Development Department. In this case, a brief discussion will identify the 
following: 

 
a) Which effects are within the scope of and adequately analyzed in an earlier document 

pursuant to applicable legal standards, and whether such effects are addressed by 
mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis; and 

 
b) For effects that are “Less than Significant with Mitigation Measures Incorporated,” the 

mitigation measures which are incorporated or refined from the earlier document and 
the extent to which they address site-specific conditions for the project. 

  

Packet Pg. 25

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 14  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

E. Environmental Checklist 
Aesthetics  
I.
   AESTHETICS  

 Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for which 
General Plan EIR is 

Sufficient 

a) Have a substantial adverse 
effect on a scenic vista?  

   X  

b) Substantially degrade the 
existing visual character or 
quality of the site and its 
surroundings? 

  X   

c) Substantially damage scenic 
resources, including, but not 
limited to, trees, rock 
outcroppings, and historic 
buildings within a state 
scenic highway. 

   X  

d) Create a new source of 
substantial light or glare 
which would adversely affect 
day or nighttime views in the 
area?  

  X   

 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts:   
 
The development of a retail commercial center on a 6.64 +/- acre site will change the existing 
visual nature or character of the project site and area. The development of the project site 
would create new sources of light and glare typical of urban development. As discussed below, 
impacts to scenic vistas or viewsheds would not be anticipated. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to the visual character of the Planning Area as a result of 
the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan.  When previously 
undeveloped land becomes developed, aesthetic impacts include changes to scenic character 
and new sources of light and glare (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 
4.3-1 through 4.3-18).  Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the 
General Plan in the Land Use and the Open Space, Conservation, and Recreation Elements, and 

Packet Pg. 26

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 15  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

include policies that encourage the use of design standards for unique areas and the protection 
of natural resources, including open space areas, natural resource areas, hilltops, waterways 
and oak trees, from the encroachment of incompatible land use. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite the goals and policies addressing visual character, 
views, and light and glare, significant aesthetic impacts will occur as a result of development 
under the General Plan and further, that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than 
significant level.  Specifically, the General Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General 
Plan will change and degrade the existing visual character, will create new sources of light and 
glare and will contribute to cumulative impacts to scenic vistas, scenic resources, existing visual 
character and creation of light and glare.  Findings of fact and a statement of overriding 
consideration were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these cumulative impacts, 
which were found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for aesthetic/visual impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Scenic Vista - No Impact. While vacant or mostly vacant areas have a natural aesthetic 
quality, there are no designated scenic vistas within the City of Rocklin or Planning Area. 
Alteration of mostly vacant and undeveloped areas of the project site through the construction 
of a retail commercial center would change the visual quality of the project site and 
surrounding area. However, since there are no designated scenic vistas, no impact would occur 
in this regard. 
 
b. Visual Quality – Less than Significant. The construction of a retail commercial center is 
consistent with the type of development contemplated and analyzed for this area of Rocklin 
within the Rocklin General Plan EIR. The General Plan EIR analysis included the development of 
this site with retail commercial development. The building structures that are anticipated are of 
consistent height and scale with the zoning and land use designations of the site and with 
surrounding existing retail commercial development and anticipated future development, and 
there are no unusual characteristics of the project which would introduce incompatible 
elements or create aesthetic impacts not considered in the prior EIR. Existing buildings in the 
area include one-story and multi-story retail commercial buildings. These buildings and the 
anticipated future development of buildings within the nearby and adjacent retail commercial 
land use designations are collectively all of similar size and scale to the proposed project. All 
development in the Rocklin Planning Area is subject to existing City development standards set 

Packet Pg. 27

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 16  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

forth in the City’s Zoning Ordinance which helps to ensure that development form, character, 
height, and massing are consistent with the City’s vision for the character of the community. 
 
The change in the aesthetics of the visual nature or character of the site and the surroundings is 
consistent with existing surrounding development and future nearby development that is 
anticipated by the City’s General Plan. As noted above, the General Plan EIR concluded that 
development under the General Plan will result in significant unavoidable aesthetic impacts and 
a Statement of Overriding Consideration was adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to 
these cumulative impacts. The project does not result in a change to the finding because the 
site would be developed with typical urban uses that are consistent and compatible with 
surrounding existing and anticipated future development and the proposed project is 
consistent with the Retail Commercial land use designation that was assumed in the General 
Plan EIR analysis. 
 
c. Scenic Highway and Scenic Resources – No Impact. The proposed project is not located 
adjacent to or within the proximity of a state listed scenic highway (Interstate 80 is located 
nearby but is not a state listed scenic highway). Therefore, the proposed project would not 
substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to trees, rock outcroppings, 
and historic buildings within a state scenic highway.  
 
d. Light and Glare – Less than Significant. There are no specific features within the proposed 
project that would create unusual light and glare. New and/or increased sources of light and 
glare would be introduced to the project area however implementation of City Design Review 
guidelines and the General Plan policies addressing light and glare would also ensure that no 
unusual daytime glare or nighttime lighting is produced. The General Plan EIR acknowledged 
that impacts associated with increased light and glare would not be eliminated entirely, and the 
overall level of light and glare in the Planning Area would increase in general as urban 
development occurs and that increase cannot be fully mitigated. As noted above, the General 
Plan EIR concluded that development under the General Plan will result in significant 
unavoidable aesthetic impacts and a Statement of Overriding Consideration was adopted by 
the Rocklin City Council in regard to these cumulative impacts. The project does not result in a 
change to the finding because the site would be developed with typical urban uses that are 
consistent and compatible with surrounding existing and anticipated future development and 
the proposed project is consistent with the Retail Commercial land use designation that was 
assumed in the General Plan EIR analysis.  

Packet Pg. 28

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 17  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

II. 
AGRICULTURAL RESOURCES 

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead 
agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) 
prepared by the California Dept. of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts 
on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including 
timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled 
by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state’s inventory of 
forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment 
project; and forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the 
California Air Resources Board. Would the project:  

 
  

   Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant With 

Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for which 
General Plan EIR 

is Sufficient 

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique 
Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide 
Importance (Farmland), as shown on 
the maps prepared pursuant to the 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring 
Program of the California Resources 
Agency, to non-agricultural use?  

   X  

b)  Conflict with existing zoning for 
agricultural use, or a Williamson Act 
contract?  

   X  

c)     Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause 
rezoning of, forest land (as defined in 
Public Resources Code section 12220 
(g)), timberland (as defined by Public 
Resources Code section 4526), or 
timberland zoned Timberland 
Production (as defined by 
Government Code section 51104 (g))? 

   X  

d)    Result in the loss of forest land or 
conversion of forest land to non-
forest use? 

   X  

e) Involve other changes in the existing 
environment which, due to their 
location or nature, could result in 
conversion of Farmland, to non-
agricultural use or conversion of 
forest land to non-forest use?  

   X  

Agricultural Resources

Packet Pg. 29

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 18  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
There are no agricultural or forestry impacts for the project or project site due to a lack of these 
resources on the project site, as further discussed below. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., b., and c. Farmland, Williamson Act, Cumulative Loss of Farmland - No Impact. The 
Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program (FMMP) land classifications system monitors and 
documents land use changes that specifically affect California’s agricultural land and is 
administered by the California Department of Conservation (CDC). The FMMP land classification 
system is cited by the State CEQA Guidelines as the preferred information source for 
determining the agricultural significance of a property (CEQA Guidelines, Appendix G).  The 
CDC, Division of Land Resource Protection, Placer County Important Farmland Map of 2014 
designates the project site as grazing land. This category is not considered Important Farmland 
under the definition in CEQA of “Agricultural Land” that is afforded consideration as to its 
potential significance (See CEQA Section 21060.1[a]), nor is it considered prime farmland, 
unique farmland, or farmland of statewide importance; therefore  the proposed project would 
not convert farmland to a non-agricultural use. Also, the project site contains no parcels that 
are under a Williamson Act contract. Because the project would not convert important 
farmland to non-agricultural uses, would not conflict with existing agricultural or forestry use 
zoning or Williamson Act contracts, or involve other changes that could result in the conversion 
of important farmlands to non-agricultural uses, there would be no agricultural use impacts. 
 
d. and e. Conversion of Forest Land – No Impact. The project site contains no parcels that are 
considered forestry lands or timberland. Because the project would not conflict with existing 
forestry use zoning or involve other changes that could result in the conversion of forest lands 
to non-forest uses, and there would be no impact on forestry resources. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 30

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 19  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

III. 

 
 AIR QUALITY 
 Where available, the 
significance criteria 
established by the 
applicable air quality 
management or air 
pollution control district 
may be relied upon to 
make the following 
determination. Would the 
project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for which 
General Plan EIR is 

Sufficient 

a) Conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of applicable 
air quality plan?  

  X   

b) Violate any air quality 
standard or contribute 
substantially to an existing or 
projected air quality 
violation?  

  X   

c) Result in a cumulatively 
considerable net increase of 
any criteria pollutant for 
which the project region is 
non-attainment under an 
applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard 
(including releasing emissions 
which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone 
precursors)?  

  X   

d)  Expose sensitive receptors to 
substantial pollutant 
concentrations?  

  X   

e) Create objectionable odors 
affecting a substantial 
number of people?  

  X   

Air Quality 
  

Packet Pg. 31

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 20  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
In the short-term, air quality impacts from the proposed project will result from construction 
related activities associated with grading and excavation to prepare the site for the installation 
of utilities and above ground structures and improvements.  
 
In the long term, air quality impacts from the proposed project will result from vehicle trip 
generation to and from the project site and the resultant mobile source emissions of air 
pollutants (primarily carbon monoxide and ozone precursor emissions). 
 
As discussed below, a retail commercial development of this type would not be expected to 
create objectionable odors. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to regional air quality as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included 8-hour ozone 
attainment, short-term construction emissions, operational air pollutants, increases in criteria 
pollutants, odors, and regional air quality impacts. (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft 
EIR, 2011, pages 4.2-1 through 4.2-43). Mitigation measures to address these impacts are 
incorporated into the General Plan in the Land Use, the Open Space, Conservation, and 
Recreation, and the Circulation Elements, and include policies that encourage a mixture of land 
uses, provisions for non-automotive modes of transportation, consultation with the Placer 
County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD), and the incorporation of stationary and mobile 
source control measures.  
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals and policies, significant air quality 
impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, that these 
impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General Plan EIR 
found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan and other development within the Sacramento 
Valley Air Basin (SVAB) as a whole will result in the following: violations of air quality standards 
as a result of short-term emissions from construction projects, increases in criteria air 
pollutants from operational air pollutants and exposure to toxic air contaminants, the 
generation of odors and a cumulative contribution to regional air quality impacts. Findings of 
fact and a statement of overriding consideration were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in 
regard to these impacts, which were found to be significant and unavoidable. The project does 
not result in a change to this finding because the site is being developed with a Retail 
Commercial land use that is consistent with the land use that was anticipated by and analyzed 
within the General Plan EIR. 
 

Packet Pg. 32

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 21  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards:   
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for air quality impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be applied to 
the future development. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions:  
 
a., b. and c. Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan, 
Violate any air quality standard or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air 
quality violation, and result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria 
pollutant for which the project region is nonattainment under an applicable federal or state 
ambient air quality standard (including releasing emissions which exceed quantitative 
thresholds for ozone precursors) – Less Than Significant Impact.  The proposed project area is 
located within the Sacramento Valley Air Basin (SVAB) and is under the jurisdiction of the Placer 
County Air Pollution Control District (PCAPCD). The SVAB is designated nonattainment for the 
federal particulate matter 2.5 microns in diameter (PM2.5) and the State particulate matter 10 
microns in diameter (PM10) standards, as well as for both the federal and State ozone 
standards. The federal Clean Air Act requires areas designated as federal nonattainment to 
prepare an air quality control plan referred to as the State Implementation Plan (SIP). The SIP 
contains the strategies and control measures for states to use to attain the national ambient air 
quality standards (NAAQS). The SIP is periodically modified to reflect the latest emissions 
inventories, planning documents, rules, and regulations of air basins as reported by the 
agencies with jurisdiction over them. In compliance with regulations, the PCAPCD periodically 
prepares and updates air quality plans that provide emission reduction strategies to achieve 
attainment of the NAAQS, including control strategies to reduce air pollutant emissions via 
regulations, incentive programs, public education, and partnerships with other agencies. 
 
The current applicable air quality plan for the proposed project area is the Sacramento Regional 
8-Hour Ozone Attainment and Reasonable Further Progress Plan (Ozone Attainment Plan), 
adopted September 26, 2013. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) determined 
the Plan to be adequate and made such findings effective August 25, 2014. On January 9, 2015, 
the USEPA approved the 2013 Ozone Attainment Plan.  
 
The 2013 Ozone Attainment Plan demonstrates how existing and new control strategies would 
provide the necessary future emission reductions to meet the CAA requirements, including the 
NAAQS. It should be noted that in addition to strengthening the 8-hour ozone NAAQS, the 
USEPA also strengthened the secondary 8-hour ozone NAAQS, making the secondary standard 
identical to the primary standard. The SVAB remains classified as a severe nonattainment area 
with an attainment deadline of 2027. On October 26, 2015 the USEPA released a final 
implementation rule for the revised NAAQS for ozone to address the requirements for 

Packet Pg. 33

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 22  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

reasonable further progress, modeling and attainment demonstrations, and reasonably 
available control measures (RACM) and reasonably available control technology (RACT). With 
the publication of the new NAAQS ozone rules, areas in nonattainment must update their 
ozone attainment plans and submit new plans by 2020/2021. 
 
A conflict with, or obstruction of, implementation of the 2013 Plan could occur if a project 
generates greater emissions than what has been projected for the site in the emission 
inventories of the 2013 Plan. Emission inventories are developed based on projected increases 
in population, employment, regional vehicle miles traveled (VMT), and associated area sources 
within the region, which are based on regional projections that are, in turn, based on the City’s 
General Plan and zoning designations for the region. The proposed project is consistent with 
the Rocklin General Plan and zoning designations, and given that the 2013 Plan accounts for 
planned land uses consistent with adopted plans, this project will not conflict with or obstruct 
implementation of the 2013 Plan. 
 
Construction activities, including grading, generate a variety of air pollutants; the most 
significant of which would be dust (PM10). To address short-term construction impacts, the City 
of Rocklin requires project applicants to incorporate into their project description a listing of 
mitigation measures recommended by the Placer County Air Pollution Control District by 
signing the City’s “Mitigation for Air Quality Impacts” form. These mitigation measures include 
the preparation of a dust control plan prior to the commencement of grading for approval by 
the City Engineer and the Placer County Air Pollution Control District. The dust control plan shall 
specify measures to reduce dust pollution during all phases of construction. The City’s 
“Mitigation for Air Quality Impacts” form and the associated short-term air quality mitigation 
measures are hereby incorporated by reference into this document. The specific measures 
noted on the City’s “Mitigation for Air Quality Impacts” form are as follows: 
 

1. The project shall conform with the requirements of the Placer County APCD. 
2. Prior to commencement of grading, the applicant shall submit a dust control plan for 

approval by the City Engineer and the Placer County Air Pollution Control District. The 
plans shall specify measures to reduce dust pollution during all phases of construction. 

3. Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 25 m.p.h. or less. 
4. All grading operations shall be suspended when wind speeds exceed 25 m.p.h. 
5. All trucks leaving the site shall be washed off to eliminate dust and debris. 
6. All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean condition. 
7. All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 
8. If fill dirt is brought to the construction site or exported from the site, tarps or soil 

stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to minimize dust problems. 
9. Apply water or dust palliatives on all exposed earth surfaces as necessary to control 

dust. Construction contracts shall include dust control treatment as frequently as 
necessary to minimize dust. 

10. Construction equipment shall be properly maintained and tuned. 
11. Utilize low emission mobile construction equipment where possible. 

Packet Pg. 34

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 23  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

12. Open burning will be allowed only with the approval of the Placer County APCD. 
 
The requirement for the proposed project to incorporate into the project description a listing of 
mitigation measures has been met with this application. In addition, the project is required to 
comply with all PCAPCD rules and regulations for construction, including Rule 202 related to 
visible emissions, Rule 218 related to architectural coatings, Rule 228 related to fugitive dust, 
and Regulation 3 related to open burning. 
 
Compliance with the PCAPCD rules and regulations would help to ensure that the project’s 
emissions would not substantially contribute to the PCAPCD’s non-attainment status for ozone 
or PM. Therefore, construction activities associated with development of the proposed project 
would not substantially contribute to the PCAPCD’s non-attainment status for ozone or PM. 
Because construction of the proposed project would comply with the rules and regulations for 
construction, development of the proposed project would not violate any air quality standard 
or contribute substantially to an existing or projected air quality violation and a less than 
significant short-term construction air quality impact would be anticipated. 
 
The General Plan EIR identified a cumulative contribution to regional air quality impacts as a 
significant and unavoidable impact, and the City of Rocklin adopted Findings of Fact and a 
Statement of Overriding Considerations in recognition of this impact. The project does not 
result in a change to this finding because the site is being developed with Retail Commercial 
land uses that were included and analyzed as a part of the General Plan EIR. 
 
d. Sensitive Receptors – Less than Significant. Land uses considered sensitive to air quality are 
generally those that include uses where exposure to pollutants could result in health-related 
risks to individuals. Sensitive receptors are people, or facilities that generally house people 
(e.g., schools, hospitals, residences) that may experience adverse effects from long-term 
exposure to unhealthful concentrations of air pollutants. The proposed project involves the 
development of retail commercial uses; thus, the project would not introduce sensitive 
receptors to the area. The nearest existing sensitive receptors to the project site are the church 
and single family residences located to the south of the project site. Emissions of CO would 
result from the incomplete combustion of carbon-containing fuels such as gasoline or wood and 
are particularly related to traffic levels. The project site is already planned for urban 
development; thus traffic on the surrounding roadways and intersections would not increase 
more than already anticipated for the area due to project implementation. Accordingly, CO 
levels at nearby intersections would not be expected to be higher than anticipated for the area. 
It should be noted that as older, more polluting vehicles are retired and replaced with newer, 
cleaner vehicles, the overall rate of emissions of CO for vehicle fleet throughout the State has 
been, and is expected to continue, decreasing. Therefore, emissions of CO would likely 
decrease from current levels over the lifetime of the project.  
 
Per PCAPCD guidance, if a project will degrade an intersection in the project vicinity from an 
acceptable Level of Service (LOS) (e.g., LOS A, B, C, or D) to an unacceptable LOS (e.g., LOS E or 

Packet Pg. 35

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 24  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

F), or if the project will substantially worsen an already existing LOS F, then the project has the 
potential to cause a CO intersection hotspot. The Traffic Impact Analysis Report for Rocklin 
Station (Abrams Associates, June 27, 2017) examined Level of Service (LOS) for five study 
intersections affected by the project. The analysis showed that all five study intersections 
would not be degraded to an unacceptable LOS by the project; therefore the project would not 
generate localized concentrations of CO that would exceed standards. 
 
In addition to the CO emissions discussed above, Toxic Air Contaminants (TACs) are also a 
category of environmental concern. The California Air Resources Board (CARB) Air Quality and 
Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective (Handbook) provides recommendations 
for siting new sensitive land uses near sources typically associated with significant levels of TAC 
emissions, including, but not limited to, freeways and high traffic roads, distribution centers, 
and rail yards. CARB has identified diesel particulate matter (DPM) from diesel-fueled engines 
as a TAC. High volume freeways/roadways, stationary diesel engines, and facilities attracting 
heavy and constant diesel traffic were identified as having the highest associated health risks 
from DPM. Health risks from TACs are a function of both the concentration of emissions and 
the duration of exposure. Health-related risks associated with DPM in particular are primarily 
associated with long-term exposure and associated risk of contracting cancer. 
 
Due to the retail commercial nature of the project, relatively few vehicle trips associated with 
the proposed project would be expected to be composed of heavy-duty diesel-fueled trucks 
and their associated emissions. The project does not involve long-term operation of any 
stationary diesel engine or other on-site stationary source of TACs. In addition, emissions of 
DPM resulting from construction equipment and vehicles are minimal and temporary, affecting 
a specific receptor for a period of weeks or perhaps months, and would be regulated through 
compliance with PCAPCD’s rules and regulations. 
 
For freeways and roads with high traffic volumes, Table 4-1 of the CARB Handbook 
recommends “Avoid siting new sensitive land uses within 500 feet of a freeway, urban roads 
with 100,000 vehicles/day, or rural roads with 50,000 vehicles/day.” The proposed project does 
not consist of sensitive land uses therefore, the proposed project would not result in the 
exposure of sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations and the impact will be 
less than significant.  
 
e. Odors – Less Than Significant Impact. Odors are generally regarded as an annoyance rather 
than a health hazard.  Due to the subjective nature of odor impacts, the number of variables 
that can influence the potential for an odor impact, and the variety of odor sources, 
quantitative methodologies to determine the presence of a significant odor impact do not exist.  
Certain land uses such as wastewater treatment facilities, landfills, confined animal facilities, 
composting operations, food manufacturing plants, refineries, and chemical plants have the 
potential to generate considerable odors. The proposed project does not involve such land uses 
nor is it located near any such land uses. Although less common, emissions of DPM from heavy-
duty diesel truck traffic could result in objectionable odors. While the proposed project would 

Packet Pg. 36

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 25  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

increase the total amount of vehicle trips in the area, the increase in area vehicle activity would 
not necessarily create an increase in heavy-duty diesel truck traffic, because the traffic increase 
would be a result of increased retail commercial land uses. Retail commercial land uses are not 
typically associated with heavy-duty diesel truck traffic, and thus the increase in daily trips 
attributable to retail commercial land uses would mainly involve single passenger vehicles that 
are not typically considered to be sources of objectionable odors.  
 
In addition, PCAPCD Rule 205, Nuisance, addresses the exposure of “nuisance or annoyance” air 
contaminant discharges, including odors, and provides enforcement of odor control. Rule 205 is 
complaint-based, where if public complaints are sufficient to cause the odor source to be a 
public nuisance, then the PCAPCD is required to investigate the identified source as well as 
determine an acceptable solution for the source of the complaint, which could include 
operational modifications to correct the nuisance condition. Thus, although not anticipated, if 
odor or air quality complaints are made upon the future development under the proposed 
project, the PCAPCD would be required to ensure that such complaints are addressed and 
mitigated, as necessary. 
 
Because the proposed project does not include the development of odor-generating land uses 
or development in proximity to odor-generating land uses, and because the increase in project 
area traffic would be largely through increased use of single passenger vehicles rather than 
heavy-duty diesel trucks, the proposed project would not be anticipated to create 
objectionable odors in the project area. Therefore, the proposed project would result in a less 
than significant impact related to objectionable odors.   

Packet Pg. 37

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 26  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

IV.  
  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 
 Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either 
directly or through habitat modifications, 
on any species identified as a candidate, 
sensitive, or special status species in local 
or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or 
by the California Department of Fish and 
Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?  

 X    

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any 
riparian habitat or other sensitive natural 
community identified in local or regional 
plans, policies, regulations or by the 
California Department of Fish and Game or 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?  

   X  

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on 
federally protected wetlands as defined by 
Section 404 of the Clean Water Act 
(including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal 
pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, 
filling, hydrological interruption, or other 
means?  

 X    

d) Interfere substantially with the movement 
of any native resident or migratory fish or 
wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or 
impede the use of native wildlife nursery 
sites?  

  X   

e) Conflict with any local policies or 
ordinances protecting biological resources, 
such as a tree preservation policy or 
ordinance?  

 X    

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted 
Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Community Conservation Plan, or other 
approved local, regional, or state habitat 
conservation plan?  

   X  

Biological Resources 

Packet Pg. 38

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 27  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project will modify habitats through the removal of native and other plant 
material; the project site does contain oak trees, all of which will be removed with 
implementation of the project. Impacts to wetlands/waters of the U.S. are anticipated to occur 
due to their presence on the site, and impacts to special status animal and plant species are not 
anticipated to occur due to their lack of presence or potential presence on the project site. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to the biological resources of the Planning Area as a result 
of the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan.  These impacts 
included special-status species, species of concern, non-listed species, biological communities 
and migratory wildlife corridors (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 
4.10-1 through 4.10-47).  Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into 
the General Plan in the Open Space, Conservation and Recreation Element, and include policies 
that encourage the protection and conservation of biological resources and require compliance 
with rules and regulations protecting biological resources, including the City of Rocklin Oak Tree 
Preservation Ordinance. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals, policies and rules and regulations 
protecting biological resources, significant biological resources impacts will occur as a result of 
development under the General Plan and further, that these impacts cannot be reduced to a 
less than significant level.  Specifically the General Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin 
General Plan will impact sensitive biological communities, will result in the loss of native oak 
and heritage trees, will result in the loss of oak woodland habitat and will contribute to 
cumulative impacts to biological resources.  Findings of fact and a statement of overriding 
considerations were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were 
found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards:   
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for biological resources impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 39

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 28  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
  
The firm of LSA Associates, Inc., a Sacramento area consulting firm with recognized expertise in 
biological resources, prepared a biological assessment for the Rocklin Station project. Their 
report, dated June 2017 is available for review during normal business hours at the City of 
Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated into this 
Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the documentation 
and is also aware that LSA Associates, Inc. has a professional reputation that makes their 
conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review of the 
analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the LSA Associates, 
Inc. report, which is summarized below. 
 
The firm of Traverso Tree Service, a California consulting firm with recognized expertise in 
arboriculture, prepared an arborist report for the Rocklin Station project. Their reports, dated 
June 1, 2016 and June 23, 2017 are available for review during normal business hours at the 
City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and are incorporated into 
this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the 
documentation and is also aware that Traverso Tree Service has a professional reputation that 
makes their conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review 
of the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the Traverso 
Tree Service reports, which are summarized below. 
 
Project Site Description 
 
Vegetation on the 6.64 +/- acre project site is predominantly composed of mixed oak woodland 
and annual grassland. Topography on the property is generally flat and gradually slopes north 
to south through the property. Elevations range from 320 to 240 feet above mean sea level. 
Water entering the property at the north boundary is collected in a culvert that flows out to the 
southeast boundary and ultimately discharges the water into Secret Ravine, a perennial 
tributary to Dry Creek. A gravel driveway runs east-west to the remains of an old residence 
located in the central portion of the property. Surrounding land uses include a church to the 
south, retail uses to the east, and the I-80 freeway along the northern and western property 
boundaries. Lands in the vicinity of the property are predominantly developed.  
 
Biological Assessment Overview 
 
As part of the assessment of the project site’s biological resources, queries of the California 
Natural Diversity Database (CNDDB), United States Fish and Wildlife (USFWS) species lists and 
California Native Plant Society (CNPS) Inventory and other literature reviews were conducted to 
provide updated information on special-status plant and wildlife species within the project 
region, referencing the Auburn, Gold Hill, Lincoln, Pilot Hill, Rocklin and Roseville 7.5-minute 
quadrangles. Biological site visits were made on September 3, 2015 and June 1, 2017 to 
determine: 1) plant communities present in the study area; 2) if existing conditions provided 

Packet Pg. 40

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 29  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

suitable habitat for any special-status plant or wildlife species, and 3) if sensitive habitats are 
present. Existing biological resources of the project site are summarized below, focusing on the 
potential for occurrence of special-status species and other sensitive resources. 
 
A. Biological Communities 
 
The vegetation communities found on the site are annual grassland, occupying approximately 
3.57 acres, and mixed oak woodland, occupying approximately 3.07 acres. Aquatic resources on 
the property include two areas where seasonal wetlands occur.  
 
B. Special-Status Plant and Animal Species 
 
Special-status plant and animal species are those that have been afforded special recognition 
by federal, State, or local resources or organizations. Listed and special-status species are of 
relatively limited distribution and may require specialized habitat conditions.  
 
Plants 
 
No special-status plant species were observed during the field surveys. As a result, special 
status plant species are considered absent from the project site. The project site is not located 
within critical habitat for any special status plants. 
 
Wildlife 
 
Species that require specific habitat not present in the vicinity of the property were eliminated 
as potentially occurring and are not discussed further. Seven special status species that were 
determined likely to occur on the property, or otherwise warrant further discussion, are noted 
below: 
 
 
1) Townsend’s big-eared bat – The oaks on the property do not have the right type/size of leaf 

to provide roosting habitat and it’s unlikely that the trees provide suitable cavity nest sites. 
Bat use of the site is likely limited to foraging. No bats or sign (e.g., guano, urine staining) 
were observed during the 2015 site survey; however focused surveys were not conducted. 
Due to the presence of potential foraging habitat and a known occurrence within 10 miles 
of the property, there is a low potential for Townsend’s big-eared bat to occur on the 
property. 
 

2) Grasshopper sparrow – Suitable foraging and nesting habitat is present within the property; 
however, there is no known occurrence within 10 miles of the property, and the annual 
grasslands have been heavily grazed. Grasshopper sparrow is considered absent from the 
property. 

 

Packet Pg. 41

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 30  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

3) Western burrowing owl – No suitable nesting areas (burrows 4 inches in diameter or 
greater) occur on the property and the open area within the grassland habitat is too small 
to support burrowing owls, however, this species is known to be locally migratory and 
potential habitat is present on the property. No burrowing owl or associated sign (e.g., 
whitewash, pellets) were observed on the property during the field survey. Burrowing owl is 
considered absent from the property. 

 
4) Swainson’s hawk – Although Swainson’s hawk is known to inhabit mixed oak woodlands, 

the canopy of the property is too dense to support foraging or nesting. The CNDDB contains 
one record for Swainson’s hawk within 10 miles of the property; however, no Swainson’s 
hawk or associated sign was observed during the field survey. Swainson’s hawk is 
considered absent from the property. 

 
5) White-tailed kite – Although the white-tailed kite is known to nest in mature valley oak 

trees, the canopy cover within the oak woodland is too dense and the open area within the 
grassland is too small to provide suitable foraging and nesting habitat for this species. There 
are no CNDDB records for white-tailed kites within 10 miles of the property and this species 
was not observed during the 2015 survey. White-tailed kite is considered absent from the 
property. 

 
6) Western spadefoot – The property is located within the known range for western 

spadefoot. This species typically occurs in grasslands and vernal pools complexes located on 
the valley floor and lower slopes of the foothills. There are four CNDDB records for western 
spadefoot within 10 miles of the property, the closest of which is approximately 6.5 miles 
southwest in an unnamed tributary to Pleasant Grove Creek. However, the seasonal 
wetlands on the property are not depressional and therefore not suitable for spadefoot. 
Western spadefoot is considered absent from the property. 

 
7) Valley Elderberry Longhorn Beetle (VELB) – An elderberry shrub was observed in the 

southwest corner of the property during the field survey. The observed shrub contained 
four stems ranging from 1-3 inches in diameter; three stems ranging from 3-5 inches in 
diameter, and one stem greater than 5 inches in diameter. All stems were measured at 
ground level. Exit holes were observed on the shrub. During a subsequent survey in June 
2017 it was observed that the condition of the shrub had deteriorated substantially such 
that only the bottom 3-4 feet of the largest stem was still alive. VELB is considered 
potentially present on the property, but the portion of the site where the elderberry bush is 
located is not proposed to be developed.  

 
  

Packet Pg. 42

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 31  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

C. Hydrology and Jurisdictional Waters of the U.S. 
 
The site includes 0.023 acres of potential seasonal wetlands and other waters of the U.S., in the 
north shoulder of the gravel driveway and in the eastern section of the property. The seasonal 
wetlands are in poor quality, consisting of disturbed seasonal wetlands associated with 
roadside runoff from Sierra College Boulevard and the I-80 eastbound off-ramp.  
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Effect on Protected Species – Less Than Significant With Mitigation. Wildlife using this areas 
will be displaced to adjacent habitat (to the south), ultimately leading to locally reduced wildlife 
populations. The loss of habitat in this region will contribute to the regional cumulative loss of 
wildlife habitat, including habitat for special status species.  
 
Development could result in direct impacts to Townsend’s big-eared bat foraging habitat; 
however due to the small area of impact relative to the amount of foraging habitat in the 
region, the loss of Townsend’s big-eared bat foraging habitat on the property is not substantial. 
 
The site is located in a partly developed, suburban environment. As such, it provides habitat to 
rodents, small mammals, birds and bats, typical of a suburban area. Tree-nesting raptor species 
forage and nest in a variety of habitats throughout Placer County and the mature trees on and 
adjacent to the project site do provide suitable nesting habitat.  
 
To address the potential impacts to nesting raptors and migratory birds, the following 
mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-1 The applicant/developer shall attempt to time the removal of potential nesting habitat for 
raptors and migratory birds to avoid the nesting season (February - August).  
 
If tree and vegetation removal and/or project grading or activities occur during the nesting 
season for raptors and migratory birds (February-August), the developer and/or contractor shall 
hire a qualified biologist approved by the City to conduct pre-construction surveys no more than 
14 days prior to initiation of tree and vegetation removal activities. The survey shall cover all 
areas of suitable nesting habitat within 500 feet of project activity and shall be valid for one 
construction season. Prior to the start of tree and vegetation removal activities, documentation 
of the survey shall be provided to the City of Rocklin Public Services Department and if the 
survey results are negative, no further mitigation is required and necessary structure removal 
may proceed. If there is a break in demolition activity of more than 14 days, then subsequent 
surveys shall be conducted. 
 
If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts shall be avoided by the 
establishment of appropriate buffers. The biologist shall consult with the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the City to determine the size of an appropriate buffer area 

Packet Pg. 43

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 32  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

(CDFW guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot buffers). Monitoring of the nest by a 
qualified biologist may be required if the activity has the potential to adversely affect an active 
nest. 
 
If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-breeding season (September- 
January), a survey is not required and no further studies are necessary. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts to nesting raptors and migratory birds to a less than significant 
level. 
 
The project site contains an elderberry shrub which could provide habitat for VELB; however 
the portion of the site where the shrub is located is outside of the footprint of the project. To 
ensure protection of the elderberry shrub and VELB habitat during construction activities, the 
following mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV-2. The applicant/developer shall implement the following avoidance measures during 
construction activities. 
 
1. The area around the elderberry shrub to be avoided during construction activities will be 

fenced and/or flagged as close to construction limits as feasible. 
2. Where feasible, ground disturbing activities will not encroach within 20 feet from the 

dripline of an elderberry shrub. 
3. A qualified biologist will provide training for all contractors, work crews, and any onsite 

personnel on the status of the VELB, its host plant and habitat, the need to avoid damaging 
the elderberry shrub, and the possible penalties for noncompliance. 

4. A qualified biologist will monitor the work area at project appropriate intervals to assure 
that all avoidance and minimization measures are implemented. 

5. As feasible, all activities that could occur within 165 feet of an elderberry shrub will be 
conducted outside of the flight season of the VELB (March - July). 

6. Trimming, if required (unlikely due to the declining health of the elderberry shrub) will occur 
between November and February and will avoid the removal of any branches or stems that 
are ≥ 1 inch in diameter. Measures to address regular and/or large scale maintenance 
(trimming), if necessary, should be established in consultation with the USFWS. 

7. Herbicides will not be used within the drip-line of the elderberry shrub. Insecticides will not 
be used within 30 meters (98 feet) of an elderberry shrub. All chemicals will be applied using 
a backpack sprayer or similar direct application method. 

8. Mechanical weed removal within the drip-line of the shrub will be limited to the season 
when adults are not active (August - February) and will avoid damaging the elderberry 
shrub. 

 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts to VELB habitat to a less than significant level.  

Packet Pg. 44

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 33  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
b. Riparian Habitat and Sensitive Natural Communities – No Impact. The project site is a 
generally flat, open field with scattered trees and 0.023 acres of disturbed seasonal wetlands. 
There is no riparian habitat associated with a stream, river or lake and no sensitive natural 
communities were identified on the project site; therefore no impact to riparian habitat or 
sensitive natural communities is anticipated. 
 
c. Wetlands – Less than Significant With Mitigation. The project site contains 0.023 acres of 
disturbed seasonal wetlands which are subject to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers jurisdiction. 
These wetlands are in poor quality and are associated primarily with roadside runoff from 
Sierra College Boulevard and the I-80 eastbound off-ramp. Correspondence with the U.S. Army 
Corps of Engineers regarding impacts to these wetlands indicated that due to the poor quality 
of the wetlands, no mitigation will be required as part of the Section 404 permitting process, 
however, the 404 permitting process will still need to be completed. To address the potential 
impacts to waters of the U.S. and riparian habitat, the following mitigation measure, agreed to 
by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-3 Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate Section 404 permit will 
need to be acquired for any project-related impacts to waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. 
that would be lost or disturbed should be replaced or rehabilitated on a “no-net-loss” basis in 
accordance with the Corps’ mitigation guidelines. Habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement should be at a location and by methods agreeable to the Corps. In association with 
the Section 404 permit and prior to the issuance of improvement plans, a Section 401 water 
quality certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and a USFWS Biological 
Opinion (if determined necessary) shall be obtained. All terms and conditions of said permits 
shall be complied with. 
 
For potential impacts to riparian habitat, the project may be required to obtain a Section 1600 
Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. If it 
is determined that a SAA is required, the applicant shall obtain one and all terms and conditions 
of the SAA shall be complied with. 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
Public Services Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification, and if 
applicable, a United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement. The applicant 
shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department that they have implemented habitat 
restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. The 
applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department how they have, or intend to, 
comply with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the Section 401 water quality 
certification, and if applicable, the Biological Opinion and Section 1600 Streambed Alteration 
Agreement. 

Packet Pg. 45

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 34  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts to waters of the U.S. and riparian habitat to a less than significant 
level. 
 
d. Fish and Wildlife Movement – Less than Significant. The majority of the surrounding area is 
developed in an urban fashion, including Interstate 80 to the west and north and Sierra College 
Boulevard and retail commercial uses to the east of the project. Due to the proximity of local 
roadways to the site (Interstate 80 and Sierra College Boulevard), the amount of surrounding 
development and the lack of established wildlife corridors and perennial water courses on the 
project site, the proposed project is not anticipated to interfere substantially with the 
movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native 
resident or migratory wildlife corridors or wildlife nursery sites. 
 
e. Local Policies/Ordinances – Less than Significant with Mitigation. The City of Rocklin 
regulates the removal of and construction within the dripline of native oak trees with a trunk 
diameter of 6 inches or more at 4.5 feet above ground level under the Oak Tree Preservation 
Ordinance and the Oak Tree Preservation Guidelines. Seven oak species and five hybrids 
between these species are defined as “native oaks” by the City. Per the City’s oak tree 
ordinance, the diameter at breast height (DBH) of a multiple trunk tree is the measurement of 
the largest trunk only, and heritage trees are defined as native oak trees with a trunk diameter 
of 24 inches or more.  
 
The City of Rocklin commissioned the firm of Phytosphere Research to evaluate, characterize, 
and make recommendations on the City’s urban forest, and from that effort, a 2006 report 
titled “Planning for the Future of Rocklin’s Urban Forest” was produced. One of the findings of 
this report was that the City’s overall tree canopy cover has increased from 11% in 1952 to 18% 
in 2003 (a 63% increase) due to the protection of existing oaks and growth of both new and 
existing trees. This finding supports the City’s on-going practice of requiring mitigation for oak 
tree removal through its Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance as being an effective way to maintain 
or even increase urban forest canopy.  
 
The project site includes a total of 385 native oak trees within the boundaries of the project 
site, comprised of 371 Live Oaks, 9 Blue Oaks and 5 Valley Oaks. Of those 385 total native oak 
trees, 160 are not protected under the City’s Ordinance in that they are too small (i.e., trunk 
diameter is less than 6 inches DBH), resulting in a total of 225 protected oak trees on the 
project site. Of those 225 protected oak trees, 16 have been deemed by the project arborist to 
be in poor health/structure. All of the native oak trees are proposed for removal as a part of the 
development of the Rocklin Station project.  
 
To compensate for the removal of the oak trees on the project site, the following mitigation 
measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 

Packet Pg. 46

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 35  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

IV.-4 Prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, the applicant shall: 
 
a) Clearly indicate on the construction documents that oak trees not scheduled for removal 
will be protected from construction activities in compliance with the pertinent sections of the 
City of Rocklin Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance. 
 
b) To mitigate for the removal of oak trees on the project site, the project arborist shall 
provide the following information: 

 
• The total number of surveyed oak trees; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed because they are sick or dying, and 
• The total, in inches, of the trunk diameters at breast height (TDBH) of all surveyed oak 

trees on the site in each of these categories. 
  

c) The applicant shall pay a fee to be deposited into the City of Rocklin Tree Preservation 
Fund. Payments shall be calculated using the following formula:  
 
Step 1: Trunk Diameter at Breast Height (TDBH) of all Surveyed Trees on the Site X 20% = 
Discount Diameter; 
 
Step 2: TDBH of all Surveyed Trees on the Site to be Removed – Discount Diameter = Total 
Number of Inches of TDBH of Replacement Trees Required, and 
 
Step 3: The applicant shall pay a fee of $48 per inch of TDBH of Replacement Trees Required. 
Such payments shall be made prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, 
with review and approval by the Economic and Community Development Director. 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts related to oak tree removal to a less than significant level. 
 
There are no facts or circumstances presented by the proposed project which create conflicts 
with other local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. 
 
f. Habitat Conservation Plan/Natural Communities Conservation Plan – No Impact The project 
would not conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural 
Conservation Community Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state Habitat Conservation 
Plan because the site is not subject to any such plan; therefore there is no impact related to a 
conflict with a habitat conservation plan or natural communities conservation plan. 
 

Packet Pg. 47

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 36  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

V.   
 CULTURAL RESOURCES 
 Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a)  Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a historical resource as 
defined in §15064.5?  

   X  

b)   Cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of an archaeological resource 
pursuant to §15064.5?  

 X    

c) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique 
paleontological resource or site or unique 
geologic feature?  

 X    

d) Disturb any human remains, including 
those interred outside of dedicated 
cemeteries?  

 X    

Cultural Resources 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project could affect known or unknown/undiscovered historical, archaeological, 
and/or paleontological resources or sites as development occurs. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to historical, cultural and paleontological resources within 
the Planning area as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the 
General Plan. These impacts included potential destruction or damage to any historical, 
cultural, and paleontological resources (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, 
pages 4.8-1 through 4.8-21). Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated 
into the General Plan in the Land Use and Open Space, Recreation and Conservation Elements, 
and include goals and policies that encourage the preservation and protection of historical, 
cultural and paleontological resources and the proper treatment and handling of such 
resources when they are discovered. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that despite these goals and policies, significant cultural 
resources impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, 
that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General 
Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will contribute to cumulative impacts 
to historic character. Findings of fact and a statement of overriding considerations were 

Packet Pg. 48

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 37  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be 
significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
Historically significant structures and sites as well as the potential for the discovery of unknown 
archaeological or paleontological resources as a result of development activities are discussed 
in the Rocklin General Plan. Policies and mitigation measures have been included in the General 
Plan to encourage the preservation of historically significant known and unknown areas.  
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for cultural resources impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of LSA Associates, Inc., a Sacramento area consulting firm with recognized expertise in 
cultural resources, prepared a cultural resource report for the Rocklin Station project. The 
report, dated December 2015, is available for review during normal business hours at the City 
of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated into this 
Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the documentation 
and is also aware that LSA Associates, Inc. has a professional reputation that makes their 
conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review of the 
analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the LSA Associates, 
Inc. report, which is summarized below. 
 
The LSA Associates, Inc. report included records searches of the North Central Information 
Center, archival research, literature and map review, intensive field parcel surveys performed 
by qualified archaeologists, and queries sent to the Native American Heritage Commission and 
Native American contacts.  
 
From these efforts two cultural resources were identified: 1) a historic-period archaeological 
site that includes a gravel driveway, concrete foundations, a well or cistern, a fence line and 
landscaping. This resource severely lacks integrity, as its setting, feeling and association have all 
been compromised. It does not appear eligible for listing in the National Register of Historic 
Places (NRHP) or the California Register of Historic Resources (CRHR) under any criteria and 
does not appear to be a historical resource or a unique archaeological resource for purposes of 
CEQA; 2) a single shed and associated gravel driveway. This resource severely lacks integrity, as 
its setting, feeling and association have all been compromised. It does not appear eligible for 
listing in the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) or the California Register of Historic 
Resources (CRHR) under any criteria and does not appear to be a historical resource or a unique 

Packet Pg. 49

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 38  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

archaeological resource for purposes of CEQA. However; the project site may contain unknown 
cultural resources that could potentially be discovered during construction activities. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Historic Resources – No Impact. CEQA Statutes Section 21084.1 identifies historic resources 
as those listed in or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historic Resources, based on a 
range of criteria, including association with events or patterns of events that have made 
significant contributions to broad patterns of historical development in the United States or 
California, including local, regional, or specific cultural patterns (California Register Criterion 1), 
structures which are directly associated with important persons in the history of the state or 
country (Criterion 2), which embody the distinctive characteristics of type, period, or other 
aesthetic importance (Criterion 3), or which have the potential to reveal important information 
about the prehistory or history of the state or the nation (such as archaeological sites) 
(Criterion 4).  
 
In addition to meeting at least one of the above criteria, the structure must typically be over 50 
years old (a state guideline rather than a statutory requirement) and have retained historic 
integrity sufficient to be clearly evident as a historic resource through a combination of 
location, design, setting, materials, workmanship, feeling and association with historic patterns. 
The definition of “integrity” in this context is based on criteria established by the National 
Register of Historic Places.  
 
The project site does not contain any historic resources as defined in §15064.5 (the project 
archaeologist concluded that there are no identified cultural resources on the project site that 
are considered eligible for the National or State Register of Historic Places/Resources); 
therefore no impacts to historic resources are anticipated. 
 
b. and c. Archaeological Resources and Paleontological Resources – Less Than Significant With 
Mitigation. As noted above, the project site does not contain identified cultural resources but 
may contain unknown/undiscovered cultural resources.  
 
To address the potential of impacts to known cultural resources and the potential discovery of 
unknown cultural resources, the following mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant is 
being applied to the project: 
 
V.-1 If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of shell, charcoal, 
animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, structure/building remains) is made during 
project-related construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted 
and a qualified professional archaeologist, the Environmental Services Manager and the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. The archaeologist shall 
determine whether the resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique paleontological resource) and 

Packet Pg. 50

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 39  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

shall develop specific measures to ensure preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to 
the resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, logistics, technological 
considerations, the location of the find, and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation 
of the find is consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the project. Specific 
measures for significant or potentially significant resources would include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, preservation in place, in-field documentation, archival research, 
subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of measure necessary would be determined 
according to evidence indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner consistent with CEQA guidelines for 
preserving or otherwise mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  
 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains, there shall be no 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent human remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) and (2) 
of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, has occurred. If any 
human remains are discovered, all work shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the 
County Coroner shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety 
Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall also be notified. If the remains are Native 
American, the Coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will 
inform a most likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the landowner 
appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, and the landowner shall comply 
with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 
 
The applicant is agreeable to the above mitigation measure; implementation of the above 
measure will reduce impacts to known and unknown/ undiscovered cultural resources to a less 
than significant level. 
 
d. Human Remains – Less Than Significant With Mitigation. No evidence of human remains is 
known to exist at the project site. However, in the event that during construction activities, 
human remains of Native American origin are discovered on the site during project demolition, 
it would be necessary to comply with state laws relating to the disposition of Native American 
burials, which fall under the jurisdiction of the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) 
(Public Resources Code Section 5097). In addition, State law (CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.5 
and the Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5) requires that the Mitigation Measure V.-1 be 
implemented should human remains be discovered; implementation of Mitigation Measure V.-
1 will reduce impacts regarding the discovery of human remains to a less than significant level.  
 
  

Packet Pg. 51

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 40  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

VI.  
 GEOLOGY AND SOILS 
  Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Expose people or structures to potential 
substantial adverse effects, including the 
risk of loss, injury, or death involving:  

 i) Rupture of a known earthquake 
fault, as delineated on the most 
recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake 
Fault Zone Map issued by the state 
Geologist for the area or based on 
other substantial evidence of a 
known fault? Refer to Division of 
Mines and Geology Special 
Publication 42.  

  X   

 ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?   X   

 iii) Seismic-related ground failure, 
including liquefaction? 

  X   

 iv) Landslides?    X   

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss 
of topsoil?  

  X   

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is 
unstable, or that would become unstable 
as a result of the project, and potentially 
result in on-or off-site landslide, lateral 
spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or 
collapse?  

    X 

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in 
Table l8-1-B of the Uniform Building Code 
(l994), creating substantial risks to life or 
property?  

  X   

e) Have soils incapable of adequately 
supporting the use of septic tanks or 
alternative waste water disposal systems 
where sewers are not available for the 
disposal of waste water?  

   X  

Geology and Soils 
 
 

Packet Pg. 52

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 41  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
Branches of the Foothill Fault system, which are not included on the Alquist-Priolo maps, pass 
through or near the City of Rocklin and could pose a seismic hazard to the area including 
ground shaking, seismic ground failure, and landslides. Construction of the proposed project 
will involve clearing and grading of the site, which could render the site susceptible to a 
temporary increase in erosion from the grading and construction activities. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:  
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts of local soils and geology on development that would occur as a result of 
the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts 
included seismic hazards such as groundshaking and liquefaction, erosion, soil stability, and 
wastewater conflicts (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011 pages 4.6-1 through 
4.6-27). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the General Plan can result 
in geological impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level through 
the application of development standards contained in the City’s Improvement Standards and 
Standard Specifications and in the Rocklin Municipal Code, the application of General Plan goals 
and policies that would assist in minimizing or avoiding geologic hazards and compliance with 
local, state and federal standards related to geologic conditions. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to, erosion control measures in 
the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications, the City’s Grading and Erosion 
and Sediment Control Ordinance, the City’s Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance, 
and goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety Element requiring soils and 
geotechnical reports for all new development, enforcement of the building code, and limiting 
development of severe slopes. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for geology and soils impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan will 
be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City ordinances, rules and regulations.  
 
In addition, the project would be subject to the provisions of the City’s Grading and Erosion and 
Sediment Control Ordinance. Chapter 15.28 of the Rocklin Municipal Code, Grading and Erosion 
Sediment Control, regulates grading activity on all property within the City of Rocklin to 
safeguard life, limb, health, property, and public welfare; to avoid pollution of watercourses 

Packet Pg. 53

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 42  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

with nutrients, sediments, or other earthen materials generated or caused by surface runoff on 
or across the permit area; to comply with the City’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System permit issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board; and to ensure 
that the intended use of a graded site is consistent with the City of Rocklin General Plan, 
provisions of the California Building Standards Code as adopted by the City relating to grading 
activities, City of Rocklin improvement standards, and any applicable specific plans or other 
land use entitlements. This chapter (15.28) also establishes rules and regulations to control 
grading and erosion control activities, including fills and embankments; establishes the 
administrative procedure for issuance of permits; and provides for approval of plans and 
inspection of grading construction and erosion control plans for all graded sites. 
 
Also, a geotechnical report, prepared by a qualified engineer, will be required with the 
submittal of project improvement plans. The report will provide site-specific recommendations 
for the construction of all features of the building foundations and structures to ensure that 
their design is compatible with the soils and geology of the project site. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., i. and ii. Fault Rupture, Ground Shaking – Less than Significant Impact. The City of Rocklin is 
located in an area known to be subject to seismic hazards, but it is not near any designated 
Alquist-Priolo active earthquake faults. The Foothill Fault System has been identified in previous 
environmental studies as potentially posing a seismic hazard to the area; however, the Foothill 
Fault system is located near Folsom Lake, and not within the boundaries of the City of Rocklin. 
There are, however, two known and five inferred inactive faults within the City of Rocklin. 
Existing building code requirements are considered adequate to reduce potential seismic 
hazards related to the construction and operation of the proposed project to a less-than-
significant level. 
 
a., iii. and iv. Liquefaction, Landslides – Less than Significant Impact. The site does not contain 
significant grade differences and therefore, does not possess the slope/geological conditions 
that involve landslide hazards. The potential for liquefaction due to earthquakes and 
groundshaking is considered minimal due to the site specific characteristics that exist in Rocklin. 
Rocklin is located over a stable granite bedrock formation and much of the area is covered by 
volcanic mud (not unconsolidated soils which have liquefaction tendencies). Application of 
seismic safety, and construction and design standards contained in the City’s Improvement 
Standards and Standard Specifications and in the Rocklin Municipal Code would reduce risks 
associated with seismic hazards such as liquefaction. Compliance with these state and federal 
standards related to geologic conditions would reduce the potential impact from liquefaction to 
a less-than-significant level. 
 
b. Soil Erosion – Less Than Significant Impact. Standard erosion control measures are required 
by Chapter 15.28 of the Municipal Code, including revegetation and slope standards. The 
project proponent will be required to prepare an erosion and sediment control plan through 

Packet Pg. 54

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 43  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

the application of the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications as a part of 
the City’s development review process. The erosion and sediment control plan are reviewed 
against the Placer County Stormwater Management Manual and the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board’s Erosion and Sediment Control Field Manual. The erosion and sediment control 
plan includes the implementation of Best Management Practices/Best Available Technology 
(BMPs/BATs) to control construction site runoff. The project will also be required to comply 
with the City’s Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal 
Code, Chapter 15.28), and the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30). The application of standard erosion control measures to the 
proposed project, as well as compliance with the above noted Ordinances, would reduce 
potential erosion-related impacts to a less than significant level for on-site grading. 
  
c. and d. Unstable and Expansive Soil – Less Than Significant Impact. A geotechnical report, 
prepared by a qualified engineer, will be required with the submittal of the project 
improvement plans. The report will be required to provide site-specific recommendations for 
the construction of all features of the building foundations and structures to ensure that their 
design is compatible with the soils and geology of the project site. Through the preparation of 
such a report and implementation of its recommendations as required by City policy during the 
development review process, impacts associated with unstable soil or geologic conditions 
would be reduced to a less than significant level. 
 
e. Inadequate Soils for Disposal - No Impact. Sewer service is available to the project site and 
the proposed project will be served by public sewer. Septic tanks or alternative wastewater 
disposal systems would not be necessary; therefore there are no impacts associated with the 
disposal of wastewater. 

  

Packet Pg. 55

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 44  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

VII.  
 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 
  Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for 
which 

General Plan 
EIR is 

Sufficient 

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, 
either directly or indirectly, that may 
have a significant impact on the 
environment?  

  X   

    b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or 
regulation adopted for the purpose of 
reducing the emissions of greenhouse 
gases?  

  X   

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts: 
 
An individual project, even a very large project, does not in itself generate enough greenhouse 
gas emissions to measurably influence global climate change. Global climate change is 
therefore by definition a cumulative impact. A project contributes to this potential cumulative 
impact through its cumulative incremental contribution combined with the emissions of all 
other sources of greenhouse gases (GHG). 
 
Area- and mobile-source emissions of greenhouse gases would be generated by the 
construction and operation of the proposed project. Neither the Placer County Air Pollution 
Control District nor the City of Rocklin has established significance thresholds for measuring the 
significance of a project’s incremental contribution to global climate change. However, 
individual projects can contribute to greenhouse gas emission reductions by incorporating 
features that reduce vehicle emissions and maximize energy-efficiency. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:  
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur related to climate change and greenhouse gas emissions 
as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These 
impacts included consistency with greenhouse gas reduction measure, climate change 
environmental effects on the City and generation of greenhouse gas emissions (City of Rocklin 
General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.15-1 through 4.15-25). Mitigation measures to 
address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the Land Use and Circulation 
Elements, and include goals and policies that encourage the use of alternative modes of 
transportation and promote mixed use and infill development. 
 

Packet Pg. 56

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 45  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

The General Plan EIR concluded that despite these goals and policies, significant greenhouse 
gas emission impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, 
that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General 
Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will result in the generation of 
greenhouse gas emissions which are cumulatively considerable. Findings of fact and a 
statement of overriding considerations were adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to 
this impact, which was found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
Generation of greenhouse gas emissions as a result of development activities are discussed in 
the Rocklin General Plan. Policies and mitigation measures have been included in the General 
Plan that encourage the use of alternative modes of transportation and promote mixed use and 
infill development.  
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for greenhouse gas emissions impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, 
will be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and 
standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the 
General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of LSA Associates, Inc., a Sacramento area consulting firm with recognized expertise in 
air quality, prepared a Greenhouse Gas Analysis report for the proposed project. This analysis 
was prepared to estimate the project’s greenhouse gas emissions from construction activities, 
motor vehicle trips, and utility use. Their report, dated June 27, 2017, is available for review 
during normal business hours at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, 
Rocklin, CA and is incorporated into this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City 
staff has reviewed the documentation and is also aware that LSA Associates, Inc. has a 
professional reputation that makes its conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good 
faith. Based on its review of the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the 
conclusions in the LSA Associates, Inc. report, which is summarized below. 
 
Greenhouse Gas Setting  
 
Gases that trap heat in the atmosphere are referred to as greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions 
because they capture heat radiated from the sun as it is reflected back into the atmosphere, 
similar to a greenhouse. The accumulation of GHG emissions has been implicated as a driving 
force for Global Climate change. Definitions of climate change vary between and across 
regulatory authorities and the scientific community, but in general can be described as the 
changing of the earth’s climate caused by natural fluctuations and the impact of human 
activities that alter the composition of the global atmosphere.  

Packet Pg. 57

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 46  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
Emissions of greenhouse gases (GHGs) contributing to global climate change are attributable in 
large part to human activities associated with the industrial/manufacturing, utility, 
transportation, residential and agricultural sectors. Therefore, the cumulative global emission 
of GHGs contributing to global climate change can be attributed to every nation, region, city 
and virtually every individual on Earth. A project’s GHG emissions are at a micro-scale relative 
to global emissions, but could result in a cumulatively considerable incremental contribution to 
a significant cumulative macro-scale impact 
 
The major concern is that increases in GHG emissions are causing Global Climate Change. 
Global Climate Change is a change in the average weather on earth that can be measured by 
wind patterns, storms, precipitation, and temperature. Although there is disagreement as to 
the speed of global warming and the extent of the impacts attributable to human activities, the 
vast majority of the scientific community now agrees that there is a direct link between 
increased GHG emissions and long term global temperature increases. Potential global warming 
impacts in California may include, but are not limited to, loss in snow pack, sea level rise, more 
extreme heat days per year, more high ozone days, more large forest fires, more drought years, 
impacts to agriculture, changes in disease vectors, and changes in habitat and biodiversity.  In 
California, GHGs are defined to include carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide 
(N2O), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), nitrogen trifluoride (NF3), and 
hydrofluorocarbons. To account for the warming potential of GHGs, GHG emissions are 
quantified and reported as CO2 equivalents (CO2e).   
 
An individual project, even a very large project, does not in itself generate enough greenhouse 
gas emissions to measurably influence global climate change. Global climate change is 
therefore by definition a cumulative impact. A project contributes to this potential cumulative 
impact through its cumulative incremental contribution combined with the emissions of all 
other sources of greenhouse gases (GHG). In assessing cumulative impacts, it must be 
determined if a project’s incremental effect is “cumulatively considerable” (CEQA Guidelines 
Sections 15064 (h)(1) and 15130). To make this determination, the incremental impacts of the 
project must be compared to with the effects of past, current and probable future projects. To 
gather sufficient information on a global scale of all past, current, and probable future projects 
to make this determination is a difficult, if not impossible, task. 
 
Regulatory Framework  
 
In September 2006, then Governor Arnold Schwarzenegger signed AB 32, the California Climate 
Solutions Act of 2006. AB 32 requires that statewide GHG emissions be reduced to 1990 levels 
by the year 2020. AB 32 delegated the authority for its implementation to the California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) and directs CARB to enforce the statewide cap. In accordance with AB 
32, CARB prepared the Climate Change Scoping Plan (Scoping Plan) for California, which was 
approved in 2008. The Scoping Plan provides the outline for actions to reduce California’s GHG 
emissions. Based on the reduction goals called for in the 2008 Scoping Plan, a 29 percent 

Packet Pg. 58

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 47  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

reduction in GHG levels relative to a Business As Usual (BAU) scenario would be required to 
meet 1990 levels by 2020. The BAU condition is project and site specific and varies. The BAU 
scenario is based on what could or would occur on a particular site in the year 2020 without 
implementation of a proposed project or consideration of any State regulation emission 
reductions or voluntary GHG reduction measures. The CARB, per the 2008 Scoping Plan, 
explicitly recommends that local governments utilize a 15 percent GHG reduction below 
“today’s” levels by 2020 to ensure that community emissions match the State’s reduction 
target, where today’s levels would be considered 2010 BAU levels.  
 
In 2011, the baseline or BAU level for the Scoping Plan was revised to account for the economic 
downturn and State regulation emission reductions (i.e., Pavley, Low Carbon Fuel Standard 
[LCFS], and Renewable Portfolio Standard [RPS]). Accordingly, the Scoping Plan emission 
reduction target from BAU levels required to meet 1990 levels by 2020 was modified from 29 
percent to 21.7 percent where the BAU level is based on 2010 levels singularly, or 16 percent 
where the BAU level is based on 2010 levels and includes State regulation emission reductions 
noted above. The amended Scoping Plan was re-approved August 24, 2011. 
 
The Scoping Plan must be updated every five years. The First Update to the Climate Change 
Scoping Plan (Scoping Plan Update) was approved by CARB on May 22, 2014 and builds upon 
the initial Scoping Plan with new strategies and recommendations. The Scoping Plan Update 
highlights the State’s progress towards the 2020 GHG emission reduction goals defined in the 
original Scoping Plan and evaluates how to align the State’s longer-term GHG reduction 
strategies with other State policy priorities for water, waste, natural resources, clean energy, 
transportation and land use. According to the Scoping Plan Update, the State is on track to 
meet the 2020 GHG goal and has created a framework for ongoing climate action that could be 
built upon to maintain and continue economic sector-specific reductions beyond 2020, on the 
path to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050, as required by AB 32. 
 
Significance Criteria  
 
The PCAPCD, as part of the Sacramento Regional GHG Thresholds Committee, has developed 
regional GHG emission thresholds. The thresholds were based on project data provided by the 
PCAPCD and other regional air districts, including the Sacramento Air Quality Management 
District (SMAQMD). The SMAQMD adopted the thresholds, and the PCAPCD recommends using 
their adopted threshold of 1,100 metric tons of CO2 equivalent units per year (MTCO2e/year) 
for construction and operation. Projects exceeding the 1,100 MTCO2e/year GHG screening level 
threshold of significance would be required to perform a further detailed analysis showing 
whether the project would comply with AB 32 reduction goals. For that further detailed analysis 
and in accordance with CARB and PCAPCD recommendations, the City of Rocklin, as lead 
agency, requires a quantitative GHG analysis for development projects in order to demonstrate 
that such a project would promote sustainability and implement operational GHG reduction 
strategies that would reduce the project’s GHG emissions from BAU levels by 15 percent; that 
15 percent reduction threshold is in compliance with AB 32 and CARB’s recommendation from 

Packet Pg. 59

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 48  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

the 2008 Scoping Plan that local governments utilize a 15 percent reduction below 2010 BAU 
levels by 2020. It should be noted that although CARB’s 2011 Scoping Plan emission reduction 
target modified the State’s overall emission reduction target from 29 percent to 21.7 percent, 
the 2011 Scoping Plan did not provide a specific recommendation for emission reductions for 
local governments and thus the City of Rocklin has chosen to continue to apply the 15 percent 
emission reduction target from the 2008 Scoping Plan. In accordance with the reduction 
recommendation set forth in the 2008 Scoping Plan for local governments, the City of Rocklin, 
as lead agency, utilizes a threshold of a 15 percent reduction from BAU levels, where BAU levels 
are based on 2010 levels, compared to a project’s estimated 2020 levels. Therefore, if the 
proposed project does not meet the 1,100 metric tons screening threshold and it also does not 
show a 15 percent reduction of project-related GHG emissions between BAU levels and 
estimated 2020 levels, the project would be considered to result in a cumulatively considerable 
contribution to global climate change. 
 
The significance thresholds discussed above are the PCAPCD’s previously recommended 
thresholds of significance for use in the evaluation of greenhouse gas emission impacts 
associated with proposed development projects. The PCAPCD recently adopted new thresholds 
of significance for use in the evaluation of greenhouse gas emission impacts associated with 
proposed development projects, but the City of Rocklin, as lead agency and in consultation with 
the PCAPCD, is considering a phased in approach of the newly proposed thresholds and for this 
analysis is utilizing the PCAPCD’s previously recommended thresholds of significance for CEQA 
evaluation purposes.  
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b.) Generate Greenhouse Gas and Conflict with Greenhouse Gas Plan – Less Than 
Significant Impact. Implementation of the proposed project would cumulatively contribute to 
increases of GHG emissions. Estimated GHG emissions attributable to future development 
would be primarily associated with increases of carbon dioxide (CO2) and, to a lesser extent, 
other GHG pollutants, such as methane (CH4) and nitrous oxide (N2O) associated with mobile 
sources or vehicles, utilities (electricity and natural gas), water usage, wastewater generation, 
and the generation of solid waste. Because the proposed project involves increased vehicle use 
in the area, the GHG emissions related to increased vehicle use in the area must be analyzed.  
The common unit of measurement for GHG is expressed in terms of annual metric tons of CO2 
equivalents (MT CO2e), based on the global warming potential of the individual pollutants. 
 
The short-term maximum annual emissions of GHG associated with construction of the 
proposed project are estimated to be 578 MTCO2e, which is below the 1,100 MTCO2e/year 
threshold. Construction GHG emissions are a one-time release and are, therefore, not typically 
expected to generate a significant contribution to global climate change. Due to the size of the 
proposed project, the project’s estimated construction-related GHG contribution to global 
climate change would be considered negligible on the overall global emissions scale.  
 

Packet Pg. 60

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 49  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

The long-term operational GHG emissions estimate for the proposed project incorporates the 
project’s potential area source and vehicle emissions, emissions associated with utility and 
water usage, and the generation of wastewater and solid waste. The annual GHG emissions 
associated with the proposed project in the year 2019 would be 3,597 MTCO2e/year which is 
higher than the 1,100 MTCO2e significance threshold. Therefore the project must meet the 15% 
reduction below 2010 BAU emission levels by 2020. The estimated annual GHG emissions in 
2010 are 6,424 MTCO2e and in 2020 are 3,396 MTCO2e which represents a 47% decrease in 
annual GHG emissions and which meets the City’s reduction criteria of 15% below 2010 
emissions levels by 2020. Therefore, the proposed project would therefore not hinder the 
State’s ability to reach the GHG reduction target nor conflict with any applicable plan, policy, or 
regulation related to GHG reduction and the impact of the proposed project on global climate 
change is considered less than significant and no mitigation measures are required. 
 

Packet Pg. 61

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 50  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

VIII.  
HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS 
MATERIALS 
Would the project:  

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through the routine transport, 
use, or disposal of hazardous materials?  

  X  

 

 

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the 
environment through reasonably foreseeable 
upset and accident conditions involving the 
release of hazardous materials into the 
environment.   

  X  

 

 

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous 
or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or 
waste within one-quarter mile of an existing or 
proposed school?   

   X  

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list 
of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant 
to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a 
result, would it create a significant hazard to 
the public or the environment?  

  X   

e) For a project located within an airport land use 
plan or, where such a plan has not been 
adopted, within two miles of a public airport or 
public use airport, would the project result in a 
safety hazard for people residing or working in 
the project area?  

   X  

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project result in a safety 
hazard for people residing or working in the 
project area?  

   X  

g) Impair implementation of or physically interfere 
with an adopted emergency response plan or 
emergency evacuation plan?  

  X   

h) Expose people or structures to a significant risk 
of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires, 
including where wildlands are adjacent to 
urbanized areas or where residences are 
intermixed with wildlands?  

  X   

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 
 
 

Packet Pg. 62

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 51  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
As discussed below, compliance with the mitigation measures incorporated into the General 
Plan goals and policies and applicable City Code and compliance with applicable Federal, State 
and local laws and regulations would reduce impacts related to hazards and hazardous 
materials to a less-than-significant level. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated human health and hazards impacts that would occur as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included wildland fire 
hazards, transportation, use and disposal of hazardous materials, and emergency response and 
evacuation plans (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011 pages 4.7-1 through 4.7-
30). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the Rocklin General Plan can 
introduce a variety of human health and hazards impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a 
less than significant level through the application of development standards in the Rocklin 
Municipal Code, the application of General Plan goals and policies that would assist in 
minimizing or avoiding hazardous conditions, and compliance with local, state and federal 
standards related to hazards and hazardous materials. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to, Chapter 2.32 of the Rocklin 
Municipal Code which requires the preparation and maintenance of an emergency operations 
plan, preventative measures in the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications, 
compliance with local, state and federal standards related to hazards and hazardous materials 
and goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety and Open Space, Conservation and 
Recreation Elements requiring coordination with emergency management agencies, annexation 
into fee districts for fire prevention/suppression and medical response, incorporation of fuel 
modification/fire hazard reduction planning, and requirements for site-specific hazard 
investigations and risk analysis. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for human health and hazards impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan 
and the City’s Improvement Standards, will be applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly 
applied development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to 
ensure consistency with the General Plan and compliance with the Rocklin Municipal Code and 
other City rules and regulations. 
 

Packet Pg. 63

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 52  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

In addition, Chapter 2.32 of the Rocklin Municipal Code requires the development of 
emergency procedures in the City through the Emergency Operations Plan. The Emergency 
Operations Plan provides a framework to guide the City’s efforts to mitigate and prepare for, 
respond to, and recover from major emergencies or disasters.  To implement the Emergency 
Operations Plan, the City has established a Disaster Council, which is responsible for reviewing 
and recommending emergency operations plans for adoption by the City Council.  The Disaster 
Council plans for the protection of persons and property in the event of fires, floods, storms, 
epidemic, riot, earthquake and other disasters. 
 
Significance Conclusion: 
 
a. and b. Transport, Use or Disposal of Hazardous Materials, Release of Hazardous Materials – 
Less than Significant Impact. Construction, operation and maintenance activities would use 
hazardous materials, including fuels (gasoline and diesel), oils and lubricants; paints and paint 
thinners; glues; cleaners (which could include solvents and corrosives in addition to soaps and 
detergents), and fertilizers, pesticides, herbicides and yard/landscaping equipment. While these 
products noted above may contain known hazardous materials, the volume of material would 
not create a significant hazard to the public through routine transport, use, or disposal and 
would not result in a reasonably foreseeable upset and accident condition involving the release 
of hazardous materials. Compliance with various Federal, State, and local laws and regulations 
(including but not limited to Titles 8 and 22 of the Code of California Regulations, Uniform Fire 
Code, and Chapter 6.95 of the California Health and Safety Code) addressing hazardous 
materials management and environmental protection would be required to ensure that there is 
not a significant hazardous materials impact associated with the construction, operation and 
maintenance of the proposed project.  
 
c. Hazardous Emissions Near Schools – No Impact. There are no schools within one-quarter 
mile (1,320 feet) of the project site. The closest school is Sierra College on Rocklin Road which is 
approximately 1,800 feet away. Retail commercial projects of this nature would not typically 
emit any significant amounts of hazardous materials, substances, or waste or be involved in the 
transportation of hazardous materials, substances, or waste. Further, there are existing rules 
and regulations, as indicated above, that address hazardous materials management and 
environmental protection. Therefore, there is no impact related to hazardous emissions or 
hazardous materials within one quarter mile of a school. 
 
d. Hazardous Site List – Less Than Significant. The project site is not on the list of hazardous 
materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5. Government Code 
65962.5 is known as the Cortese List. The Cortese database identifies public drinking water 
wells with detectable levels of contamination, hazardous substance sites selected for remedial 
action, sites with known toxic material identified through the abandoned site assessment 
program, sites with Underground Storage Tanks (USTs) having a reportable release and all solid 
waste disposal facilities from which there is known migration. The Department of Toxic 
Substances Control (DTSC) EnviroStor database and State Water Resources Control Board 

Packet Pg. 64

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 53  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

GeoTracker database were searched on May 26, 2017 and no hazardous sites were identified 
on the project site. Therefore, there is not impact related to a hazardous materials site on the 
project site. 
 
e. and f. Public Airport Hazards and Private Airport Hazards – No Impact. The project is not 
located within an airport land use plan, or within two miles of a public airport or public use 
airport; therefore there is no public or private airport hazard impact. 
 
g. Emergency Response Plan – Less than Significant Impact. The City’s existing street system, 
particularly arterial and collector streets, function as emergency evacuation routes. The 
project’s design and layout will not impair or physically interfere with the street system 
emergency evacuation route or impede an emergency evacuation plan; therefore a less than 
significant impact on emergency routes/plans would be anticipated. 
 
h. Wildland Fires – Less Than Significant Impact. The project site is located in a partly 
developed retail commercial area, surrounded by suburban development including other 
structures and roadways. Additionally, the proposed project has been reviewed by the Rocklin 
Fire Department and has been designed with adequate emergency access for use by the Rocklin 
Fire Department to reduce the risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires to a less than 
significant level. 

  

Packet Pg. 65

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 54  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

IX.  
HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste 
discharge requirements?  

  X   

b) Substantially deplete groundwater supplies or 
interfere substantially with groundwater 
recharge such that there would be a net deficit 
in aquifer volume or a lowering of the local 
groundwater table level (e.g., the production 
rate of pre-existing nearby wells would drop to 
a level which would not support existing land 
uses or planned uses for which permits have 
been granted)?  

  X   

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, in a 
manner which would result in substantial 
erosion or siltation on- or off-site?  

  X   

d) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern 
of the site or area, including through the 
alteration of the course of a stream or river, or 
substantially increase the rate or amount of 
surface runoff in a manner which would result 
in flooding on- or off-site? 

  X   

e) Create or contribute runoff water which would 
exceed the capacity of existing or planned 
stormwater drainage systems or provide 
substantial additional sources of polluted 
runoff? 

  X   

f) Otherwise substantially degrade water quality?   X   

g) Place housing within a 100-year flood hazard 
area as mapped on a federal Flood Hazard 
Boundary of Flood Insurance Rate Map or other 
flood hazard delineation map? 

  X   

h) Place within a 100-year flood hazard area 
structures which would impede or redirect flood 
flows? 

  X   

Hydrology and Water Quality 
  

Packet Pg. 66

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 55  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

IX. HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 
(cont’d.) 

Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact Impact 

for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

i) Expose people or structures to a significant 
risk of loss, injury or death involving 
flooding, including flooding as a result of the 
failure of a levee or dam?  

  X   

j) Inundation by seiche, tsunami, or mudflow?    X   

 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project would involve grading activities that would remove vegetation and 
expose soil to wind and water erosion and potentially impact water quality. Waterways in the 
Rocklin area have the potential to flood and expose people or structures to flooding. Additional 
impervious surfaces would be created with the development of the proposed project. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated hydrology and water quality impacts that would occur as a result of the future 
urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included water 
quality, ground water quality and supply, drainage, flooding, risks of seiche, tsunami and 
mudflow (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.9-1 through 4.9-37).  The 
analysis found that while development and buildout of the General Plan can result in hydrology 
and water quality impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level 
through the application of development standards contained in the City’s Improvement 
Standards and Standard Specifications and in the Rocklin Municipal Code, the application of 
General Plan goals and policies related to hydrology, flooding and water quality, and 
compliance with local, state, and federal water quality standards and floodplain development 
requirements. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to, flood prevention and 
drainage requirements in the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications, the 
City’s Grading and Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance, the Stormwater Runoff Pollution 
Control Ordinance, the State Water Resources Control Board General Construction Activity 
Storm Water Permit requirements, and goals and policies in the General Plan Open Space, 
Conservation and Recreation and Safety Elements requiring the protection of new and existing 
development from flood and drainage hazards, the prevention of storm drainage run-off in 
excess of pre-development levels, the development and application of erosion control plans 

Packet Pg. 67

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 56  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

and best management practices, the annexation of new development into existing drainage 
maintenance districts where warranted, and consultation with the Placer County Flood Control 
and Water Conservation District and other appropriate entities. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards:   
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR as well as relevant standards from 
the City’s Improvement Standards for hydrology and water quality impacts will be applied to 
the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards and/or as 
conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan and 
compliance with the Rocklin Municipal Code and other City rules and regulations. 
 
The project would be subject to the provisions of the City’s Grading and Erosion and Sediment 
Control Ordinance. Chapter 15.28 of the Rocklin Municipal Code, Grading and Erosion Sediment 
Control, regulates grading activity on all property within the City of Rocklin to safeguard life, 
limb, health, property, and public welfare; to avoid pollution of watercourses with nutrients, 
sediments, or other earthen materials generated or caused by surface runoff on or across the 
permit area; to comply with the City’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permit 
issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board; and to ensure that the intended 
use of a graded site is consistent with the City of Rocklin General Plan, provisions of the 
California Building Standards Code as adopted by the City relating to grading activities, City of 
Rocklin improvement standards, and any applicable specific plans or other land use 
entitlements.  This chapter (15.28) also establishes rules and regulations to control grading and 
erosion control activities, including fills and embankments; establishes the administrative 
procedure for issuance of permits; and provides for approval of plans and inspection of grading 
construction and erosion control plans for all graded sites.  Chapter 8.30 of the Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance, prohibits the discharge of any 
materials or pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable water quality 
standards, other than stormwater, into the municipal storm drain system or watercourse.  
Discharges from specified activities that do not cause or contribute to the violation of plan 
standards, such as landscape irrigation, lawn watering, and flows from fire suppression 
activities, are exempt from this prohibition. 
 
In addition, the project would be required to prepare an erosion and sediment control plan 
through the application of the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications that 
are a part of the City’s development review process. 
 
Significance Conclusions:  
 
a., c., d., e. and f. Water Quality Standards and Drainage – Less than Significant Impact. Storm 
water runoff from the project site will be collected in stormwater drainage pipes and then 
directed through water quality treatment devices/areas as Best Management Practices (BMP) 
and/or Low Impact Development (LID) features and then into the City’s storm drain system. The 

Packet Pg. 68

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 57  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

purpose of the BMP/LID features is to ensure that potential pollutants are filtered out before 
they enter the storm drain system. The City’s storm drain system maintains the necessary 
capacity to support development on the proposed project site. Therefore, violations of water 
quality standards or waste discharge requirements are not anticipated.  
 
To address the potential for polluted water runoff during project construction, the project 
would be required to prepare an erosion and sediment control plan through the application of 
the City’s Improvement Standards and Standard Specifications as a part of the City’s 
development review process. The erosion and sediment control plan are reviewed against the 
Placer County Stormwater Management Manual and the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board’s Erosion and Sediment Control Field Manual. The erosion and sediment control plan 
includes the implementation of Best Management Practices/Best Available Technology 
(BMPs/BATs) to control construction site runoff. The project will also be required to comply 
with the City’s Grading and Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance (Rocklin Municipal 
Code, Chapter 15.28), and the Stormwater Runoff Pollution Control Ordinance (Rocklin 
Municipal Code, Chapter 8.30), which includes the preparation of a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWPPP).The proposed project would not alter the course of a stream or a 
river.  
 
The proposed project would not substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or 
area because the City’s policies of requiring new developments to detain on-site drainage such 
that the rate of runoff flow is maintained at pre-development levels (unless the Placer County 
Flood Control and Water Conservation District’s Flood Control Manual requires otherwise) and 
to coordinate with other projects’ master plans to ensure no adverse cumulative effects will be 
applied. Per the Placer County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Dry Creek 
Watershed Flood Control Plan, onsite stormwater detention is generally not recommended 
anywhere in the Dry Creek watershed because it has been determined that on-site detention 
would be detrimental to the overall watershed, unless existing downstream drainage facilities 
cannot handle post-construction runoff from the project site. In this instance the project has 
not been designed to provide on-site detention. Substantial erosion, siltation or flooding, on- or 
off-site, and exceedance of the capacity of existing or planned drainage systems would not be 
anticipated to occur. 
 
Therefore, impacts related to water quality, water quality standards and drainage would be less 
than significant. 
 
b. Groundwater Supplies – Less than significant. The project will use domestic water from the 
Placer County Water Agency and not use wells or groundwater; therefore existing groundwater 
resources will not be depleted. The City’s policies of requiring new developments to retain on-
site drainage such that the rate of runoff flow is maintained at pre-development levels and 
implementation of Low Impact Development features will ensure that groundwater recharge 
rates are also maintained at pre-development levels. Therefore, there is a less than significant 
groundwater supply impact. 

Packet Pg. 69

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 58  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
g., h., i. and j. Flooding, Inundation by Tsunami, Seiche, or Mudflow – Less Than Significant 
Impact. According to FEMA flood maps (Map Panel 06061CO418F, effective date June 8, 1998) 
the developable portion of the project site is located in flood zone X, which indicates that the 
project is not located within a 100-year flood hazard area and outside of the 500-year flood 
hazard area. The project site is not located within the potential inundation area of any dam or 
levee failure, nor is the project site located sufficiently near any significant bodies of water or 
steep hillsides to be at risk from inundation by a seiche, tsunami, or mudflow. Therefore the 
proposed project will not expose people or structures to a significant risk or loss, injury, or 
death as a result of flooding nor will the project be subject to inundation by tsunami, seiche or 
mudflow and a less than significant impact would be anticipated  

 

X. 
 LAND USE AND PLANNING 
 Would the project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Physically divide an established                                                           
community?  

   X  

b) Conflict with any applicable land use 
plan, policy, regulation of an agency with 
jurisdiction over the project (including, 
but not limited to the general plan, 
specific plan, local coastal program, or 
zoning ordinance) adopted for the 
purpose of avoiding or mitigating an 
environmental effect?  

  X   

c) Conflict with any applicable habitat 
conservation plan or natural community 
conservation plan?  

   X  

Land Use and Planning 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION:  
 
Project Impacts:   
 
Approval of the project would allow the construction of a retail commercial center on a 6.64 +/- 
acre site. The project site is designated Retail Commercial (RC) on the General Plan land use 
map and is zoned Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C). The project requires Design 
Review, Tentative Parcel Map, Conditional Use Permit and Oak Tree Preservation Permit 
entitlements to allow for a retail commercial center as is being proposed. As discussed below, 
land use impacts are not anticipated. 
 

Packet Pg. 70

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 59  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on land use as a result of the future urban development that was 
contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included dividing an established community 
and potential conflicts with established land uses within and adjacent to the City (City of Rocklin 
General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.1-1 through 4.1-38). The analysis found that while 
development and buildout of the General Plan can result in land use impacts, these impacts 
would be reduced to a less than significant level through the application of General Plan goals 
and policies that would assist in minimizing or avoiding land use impacts. 
 
These goals and policies include, but are not limited to goals and policies in the General Plan 
Land Use Element requiring buffering of land uses, reviewing development proposals for 
compatibility issues, establishing and maintaining development standards and encouraging 
communication between adjacent jurisdictions. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts to land use incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, will be 
applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Division of Community – No Impact. The proposed project site is currently vacant and the 
entire project is within the City of Rocklin. The proposed project would construct a retail 
commercial center at this location, which would not physically divide an established 
community. Therefore there is no division of community impact. 
 
b. Plan Conflict – Less than Significant Impact. The project site is designated Retail Commercial 
(C) on the General Plan land use map and is zoned Planned Development – Commercial (PD-
RC). The project requires Design Review, Tentative Parcel Map, Conditional Use Permit and Oak 
Tree Preservation Permit entitlements to allow for a retail commercial Center as is being 
proposed. The proposed project will be consistent with the site’s land use and zoning 
designations and the development of the project would not conflict with land use designations 
and would have a less than significant impact related to conflicts with land use plans, policies or 
regulations. 
 
c. Habitat Plan Conflict - No Impact. There are no habitat conservation plans or natural 
community conservation plans which apply to the project site, and there would be no impact 
on such plans. 

Packet Pg. 71

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 60  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
XI.  

 MINERAL RESOURCES 
 Would the project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Result in the loss of availability of a 
known mineral resource that would be 
of value to the region and the residents 
of the state?  

   X  

b) Result in the loss of availability of a 
locally-important mineral resource 
recovery site delineated on a local 
general plan, specific plan or other land 
use plan?  

   X  

Mineral Resources 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
As discussed below, no impact is anticipated because the project site does not contain known 
mineral resources. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b. Mineral Resources – No Impact. The Rocklin General Plan and associated EIR analyzed 
the potential for “productive resources” such as, but not limited to, granite and gravel (City of 
Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.6-4 through 4.6-5 and 4.6-17). The City of 
Rocklin has no mineral resources as classified by the State Geologist. The City has no known or 
suspected mineral resources that would be of value to the region and to residents of the state. 
The project site is not delineated in the Rocklin General Plan or any other plans as a mineral 
resource recovery site. Mineral resources of the project site have not changed with the passage 
of time since the General Plan EIR was adopted. Based on this discussion, the project is not 
anticipated to have a mineral resources impact. 
  

Packet Pg. 72

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 61  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

XII.   
 NOISE 
 Would the project result in: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
noise levels in excess of standards 
established in the local general plan or 
noise ordinance, or applicable standards of 
other agencies?  

  X   

b) Exposure of persons to or generation of 
excessive groundborne vibration or 
groundborne noise levels?  

  X   

c) A substantial permanent increase in 
ambient noise levels in the project vicinity 
above levels existing without the project?  

  X   

d) A substantial temporary or periodic 
increase in ambient noise levels in the 
project vicinity above levels existing 
without the project?  

  X   

e) For a project located within an airport land 
use plan or, where such a plan has not 
been adopted, within two miles of a public 
airport or public use airport, would the 
project expose people residing or working 
in the project area to excessive noise 
levels?  

   X  

f) For a project within the vicinity of a private 
airstrip, would the project expose people 
residing or working in the project area to 
excessive noise levels?  

   X  

Noise 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts:   
 
As discussed below, development of the proposed project will result in an increase in short-
term noise impacts from construction activities. Compliance with the mitigation measures 
incorporated into the General Plan goals and policies, and the City of Rocklin Construction 
Noise Guidelines would reduce noise related impacts to a less-than-significant level. 
 
 

Packet Pg. 73

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 62  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts of noise associated with the future urban development that was 
contemplated by the General Plan.  These impacts included construction noise, traffic noise, 
operational noise, groundborne vibration, and overall increased in noise resulting from 
implementation of the General Plan Update (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 
2011, pages 4.5-1 through 4.5-48).  
 
Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the 
Noise Element, which includes policies that require acoustical analyses to determine noise 
compatibility between land uses, application of stationary and mobile noise source sound 
limits/design standards, restriction of development of noise-sensitive land uses unless effective 
noise mitigations are incorporated into projects, and mitigation of noise levels to ensure that 
the noise level design standards of the Noise Element are not exceeded. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals and policies, significant noise impacts 
will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, that these impacts 
cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General Plan EIR found that 
buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will result in exposure of persons to, or generation of, 
noise levels in excess of applicable noise standards, will result in exposure to surface 
transportation noise sources and stationary noise sources in excess of applicable noise 
standards and will contribute to cumulative transportation noise impacts within the Planning 
Area.  Findings of fact and a statement of overriding consideration were adopted by the Rocklin 
City Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be significant and unavoidable.  
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts associated with noise incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, 
will be applied to the project.  These serve as uniformly applied development policies and 
standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the 
General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of LSA Associates, Inc., a Sacramento area consulting firm with recognized expertise in 
noise, prepared an environmental noise assessment of the proposed project. Their report, 
dated February 2017 is available for review during normal business hours at the City of Rocklin 
Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated into this Mitigated 
Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the documentation and is also 
aware that LSA Associates, Inc. has a professional reputation that makes its conclusions 
presumptively credible and prepared in good faith. Based on its review of the analysis and 

Packet Pg. 74

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 63  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

these other considerations, City staff accepts the conclusions in the LSA Associates, Inc. report, 
which is summarized below. 
 
Background Information on Noise 
 
Noise is a subjective reaction to different types of sounds. Noise is typically defined as 
(airborne) sound that is loud, unpleasant, unexpected or undesired, and may therefore be 
classified as a more specific group of sounds. Perceptions of sounds and noise are highly 
subjective from person to person. The perceived loudness of sounds is dependent upon many 
factors, including sound pressure level and frequency content. However, within the usual range 
of environmental noise levels, perception of loudness is relatively predictable, and can be 
approximated by A-weighted sound levels. There is a strong correlation between A-weighted 
sound levels (expressed as dBA) and the way the human ear perceives sound and for this 
reason, the A-weighted sound level has become the standard tool of environmental noise 
assessment. 
 
Measuring sound directly would require a very large and awkward range of numbers, so to 
avoid this, the decibel (dB) scale was devised. The decibel scale is logarithmic, not linear. In 
other words, two sound levels 10 dB apart differ in acoustic energy by a factor of 10. When the 
standard logarithmic scale is A-weighted, an increase of 10 dBA is generally perceived as a 
doubling in loudness. For example, a 70 dBA sound is half as loud as an 80 dBA sound, and 
twice as loud as a 60 dBA sound. 
 
Community noise is commonly described in terms of the ambient noise level, which is defined 
as the all-encompassing noise level associated with a given environment. A common statistical 
tool is the average, or equivalent, sound level (Leq). The Leq is the foundation of the composite 
noise descriptor, Ldn, and shows very good correlation with community response to noise. The 
day/night average level (Ldn) is based upon the average noise level over a 24-hour day, with a 
+10 dB weighting applied to noise occurring during nighttime (10:00 p.m. – 7:00 a.m.) hours. 
The nighttime penalty is based upon the assumption that people react to nighttime noise 
exposures as though they were twice as loud as daytime exposures. Because Ldn represents a 
24-hour average, it tends to disguise short-term variations in the noise environment. 
 
The City of Rocklin General Plan includes criteria for stationary (non-transportation) and 
transportation noise sources. For transportation noise sources, the maximum allowable 
exterior noise level standard for outdoor activity areas is 60 dB Ldn and the maximum allowable 
interior noise level standard is 45 dB Ldn. For stationary noise sources, the maximum allowable 
daytime noise level standard is 55 dB Leq for daytime hours (7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.) and the 
maximum allowable nighttime noise level standard is 45 dB Leq for nighttime hours (10:00 p.m. 
to 7:00 a.m.).   
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 75

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 64  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Noise Sources 
 
The noise source concerns for this project are associated with transportation sources from 
nearby roadways and stationary sources from the drive-through restaurants, shops, and auto 
service shop.  
 
Noise impacts associated with these noise sources were evaluated and compared to noise level 
performance criteria for transportation noise sources contained within the City of Rocklin 
General Plan Noise Element.  
 
Sensitive Receptors 
 
The City of Rocklin General Plan does not have exposure standards for commercial land uses 
however there are noise sensitive receptors in the vicinity of the project. Noise sensitive 
receptors include residences, schools, hospitals, churches and similar uses that are sensitive to 
noise. Sensitive land uses in the vicinity include the Lifehouse Church located approximately 
115 feet to the south of the project site on Sierra College Boulevard and single family homes 
located approximately 950 feet to the south of the project site. 
 
Traffic Noise 
 
To determine traffic noise levels on the project site, LSA Associates, Inc. took short-term and 
long-term noise measurements at three locations on the project site and utilized project 
generated average daily traffic as documented in the project’s traffic impact analysis as an 
input into the FHWA traffic noise model. The table below shows the current and predicted 
future traffic noise levels on nearby roadways.  

  

Packet Pg. 76

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 65  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

CURRENT AND PREDICTED FUTURE TRAFFIC NOISE LEVELS 

Roadway Segment 

Existing 2015 Project 2015 No Project 2040 Project 2040 

CNEL (dBA) 50 
Feet From 

Centerline of 
Outermost Lane 

CNEL (dBA) 50 
Feet From 

Centerline of 
Outermost 

Lane 

CNEL 
Increase 

Over 2015 
Baseline 

(dBA) 

CNEL (dBA) 50 
Feet From 

Centerline of 
Outermost Lane 

CNEL (dBA) 50 
Feet From 

Centerline of 
Outermost 

Lane 

CNEL 
Increase 

Over 2040 
Baseline 

(dBA) 
Sierra College Blvd.  
-Granite Drive to 
Commons Drive 

66.9 67.1 0.2 68.6 68.7 0.1 

Sierra College Blvd. 
-Commons Dr. to 
Crossings Dr. 

68 68.4 0.4 70 70.2 0.2 

Sierra College Blvd. 
-Crossings Dr. to 
Schriber Way 

65.1 67.4 2.3 68.5 68.9 0.4 

Sierra College Blvd. 
-Schriber Way to 
Dominguez Rd. 

66.1 65.9 -0.2 67.4 67.3 -0.1 

Sierra College Blvd. 
-Dominguez Rd. south 67.9 68.1 0.2 70.4 70.5 0.1 

Source: LSA Associates, Inc., 2017 
 
As shown, the estimated traffic noise levels associated with the project would increase 0.2 to 
2.3 dBA CNEL over 2015 baseline levels and 0.1 to 0.4 dBA CNEL over the predicted 2040 
baseline levels. The greatest increase would be in the area between the I-80 off-ramp and the 
project entrance at Schriber Way. However, the increase would be minimal and there are no 
sensitive receptors in the vicinity. Therefore, no traffic noise reduction measures would be 
required. 
 
Stationary Sources 
 
Stationary sources of noise associated with the project are the drive-through restaurants, shops 
and auto service shop.  
 
Drive-through speakers produce noise levels up to 72 dBA at a distance of 4 feet, however they 
operate intermittently. The drive-through speaker closest to the Lifehouse Church is 50 feet 
from the property line and noise would attenuate to 43 dBA therefore the speaker noise would 
not exceed the City’s 55 dB daytime or 45 dB nighttime standard.  
 
Auto service shop noise levels associated with air grinders, air compressors, and pneumatic lifts 
can reach up to 114 dBA. Section 17.57.050 of the City of Rocklin Municipal Code requires auto 
service shops to be fully enclosed with a standard building enclosure. The enclosure and 
distance attenuation will reduce noise levels to a maximum of 41 dBA or 51 dBA with shop 
doors open. These noise levels are within the City’s 55 dB daytime standard. 
 

Packet Pg. 77

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 66  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Delivery Noise 
 
Additional on-site stationary noise sources would include delivery trucks and parking lot noise 
and of those sources, noise generated by delivery truck activity would generate the maximum 
noise levels. Delivery truck loading and unloading activities would result in maximum noise 
levels. Loading and unloading activities could generate noise levels from 68 to 78 dBA at the 
closest receptor, Lifehouse Church. Peak noise levels would be intermittent and when averaged 
over a one hour period would be much lower than the peak noise levels, and, therefore, would 
not be expected to exceed the City’s 45 dB nighttime noise standard. In addition, Lifehouse 
Church would not be expected to be operational during 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.; therefore 
delivery noise associated with the project would not affect noise levels at nearby sensitive 
receptors. 
 
Significance Conclusions:  
 
a., b., c., and d. Exposure to Noise, Increase in Noise – Less than Significant Impact. The 
primary goal for the City of Rocklin General Plan with respect to noise is: “To protect City 
residents from the harmful and annoying effects of exposure to excessive noise”. To implement 
that goal, the City has adopted Noise Compatibility Guidelines prepared by the State Office of 
Noise Control. The objective of the Noise Compatibility Guidelines is to assure that 
consideration is given to the sensitivity to noise of a proposed land use in relation to the noise 
environment in which it is proposed to be located. 
 
Potential noise impacts can be categorized into short-term construction noise impacts and 
long-term or permanent noise impacts. The City has adopted standard conditions for project 
approvals which address short-term impacts. These include limiting traffic speeds to 25 mph 
and keeping equipment in clean and tuned condition. The proposed project would be subject to 
these standard conditions. The proposed project would also be subject to the City of Rocklin 
Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting construction-related noise generating 
activities within or near residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays, and 
between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends to the satisfaction of the City Engineer or 
Building Official. Therefore, impacts associated with increases in the ambient noise 
environment during construction would be less than significant. 
 
The project would not substantially increase noise levels at sensitive receptor locations or 
within the project vicinity. In addition, there are no nighttime operational noise sources that 
would exceed the City’s nighttime 45 dB noise standard and no daytime operational noise 
sources that would exceed the City’s daytime 55 dB noise standard. The traffic noise levels 
associated with the project would minimally increase and there are no sensitive receptors in 
the vicinity of the increased traffic noise levels.  Therefore, noise reduction measures will not 
be required and a less than significant impact is expected.  
 

Packet Pg. 78

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 67  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

e. and f. Public and Private Airport Noise – No Impact. The City of Rocklin, including the project 
site, is not located within an airport land use plan or within two miles of an airport, and is 
therefore not subject to obtrusive aircraft noise related to airport operations. Therefore, there 
is no airport related noise impact. 

 

XIII.   
 POPULATION AND HOUSING 
 Would the project:   

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Induce substantial population growth 
in an area, either directly (for example, 
by proposing new homes and 
businesses) or indirectly (for example, 
through extension of roads or other 
infrastructure.)  

  X   

b) Displace substantial numbers of 
existing housing necessitating the 
construction of replacement housing 
elsewhere?  

   X  

c) Displace substantial numbers of 
people, necessitating the construction 
of replacement housing elsewhere?  

   X  

Populations and Housing 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts:  
 
The proposed project will result in the construction of a retail commercial center, which would 
not induce substantial population growth or displace substantial numbers of people. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated population and housing impacts that would occur as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included population 
growth and availability of housing opportunities (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 
2011, pages 4.11-1 through 4.11-13). The analysis found that while development and buildout 
of the General Plan can result in population and housing impacts, implementation of the 
General Plan would not contribute to a significant generation of growth that would 
substantially exceed any established growth projections nor would it displace substantial 
numbers of housing units or people. Moreover, the project will not construct off-site 

Packet Pg. 79

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 68  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

infrastructure that would induce substantial development, unplanned or otherwise. As such, 
population and housing impacts were determined to be less than significant. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Population Growth – Less than Significant Impact. The project site is designated on the 
City’s General Plan land use map as Retail Commercial and is zoned Planned Development –
Commercial (PD-C). The addition of a retail commercial center would not introduce unplanned 
population growth in the area because it is located in an area that has already been planned for 
retail commercial uses; therefore the project will have a less than significant population growth 
impact. 
 
b. and c. Displace Substantial Numbers of Existing Housing or People – No Impact. The project 
site is currently vacant and includes the construction of a retail commercial center which will 
not displace existing residents or existing housing necessitating the construction of 
replacement housing elsewhere. Therefore no impact is anticipated. 
 
XIV.
  PUBLIC SERVICES 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

Would the project result in substantial adverse 
physical impacts associated with the provision 
of new or physically altered governmental 
facilities, need for new or physically altered 
governmental facilities, the construction of 
which could cause significant environmental 
impacts, in order to maintain acceptable 
service ratios, response times or other 
performance objectives for any of the public 
services:   

     

1. Fire protection?   X   

2. Police protection?   X   

3. Schools?   X   

4. Other public facilities?   X   
Public Services 

  

Packet Pg. 80

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 69  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project would create a need for the provision of new and/or expanded public 
services or facilities. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on the demand for fire and police protection and school and recreation 
facilities as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the General 
Plan. These impacts included increased demand for fire, police and school services, provision of 
adequate fire flow, and increased demand for parks and recreation (City of Rocklin General Plan 
Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.12-1 through 4.12-45). The analysis found that while 
development and buildout of the General Plan can result in public services and facilities 
impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than significant level through compliance 
with state and local standards related to the provision of public services and facilities and 
through the application of General Plan goals and policies that would assist in minimizing or 
avoiding impacts to public services and facilities. 
 
These goals, policies and standards include, but are not limited to the California Fire Code, the 
California Health and Safety Code, Chapters 8.12 and 8.20 of the Rocklin Municipal Code, and 
goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety and Public Services and Facilities 
Elements requiring studies of infrastructure and public facility needs, proportional share 
participation in the financial costs of public services and facilities, coordination of private 
development projects with public facilities and services needed to serve the project, 
maintaining inter-jurisdictional cooperation and coordination and requiring certain types of 
development that may generate higher demand or special needs to mitigate the 
demands/needs. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts to public services incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, will 
be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for the project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
California Fire Code, the California Health and Safety Code, Chapters 8.12 and 8.20 of the 
Rocklin Municipal Code, and the goals and policies in the General Plan Community Safety, and 
Public Services and Facilities Elements requiring studies of infrastructure and public facility 
needs, proportional share participation in the financial costs of public services and facilities, 

Packet Pg. 81

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 70  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

coordination of private development project with public facilities and services needed to serve 
the project, maintaining inter-jurisdictional cooperation and coordination, and requiring certain 
types of development that may generate higher demand or special need to mitigate the 
demands/needs. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., 1. Fire Protection – Less than Significant Impact. The development of this project site has 
been anticipated in the planning, staffing, equipping and location of fire stations within the City 
of Rocklin; the closest fire station to the project site is Fire Station # 1 on Rocklin Road, which is 
approximately 2.3 road miles away. Development of the proposed project could increase the 
need for fire protection services. The City collects construction taxes for use in acquiring capital 
facilities such as fire suppression equipment. Operation and maintenance funding for fire 
suppression is provided through financing districts and from general fund sources. The 
proposed project would pay construction taxes, participate in any applicable financing districts 
and contribute to the general fund through property and sales taxes. Participation in these 
funding mechanisms would ensure fire protection service to the site and reduce fire protection 
impacts to less than significant. 
 
a., 2. Police Protection – Less than Significant Impact. The development of this project site has 
been anticipated in the planning, staffing, and equipping of the police station within the City of 
Rocklin. Development of the proposed project could increase the need for police patrol and 
police services to the site. Funding for police services is primarily from the general fund, and is 
provided for as part of the City’s budget process. The proposed project would pay construction 
taxes, participate in any applicable financing districts and contribute to the general fund 
through property and sales taxes. Participation in these funding mechanisms would ensure 
police protection services to the site and reduce police protection impacts to less than 
significant. 
 
a., 3. and 4. Schools and Other Public Facilities – Less than Significant Impact. The proposed 
project will be required to pay applicable school impact fees in effect at the time of building 
permit issuance to finance school facilities. The assessment of developer fees is regulated 
through the State Government Code. Proposition 1A/Senate Bill 50 (SB50, Chapter 407, 
Statutes of 1998) establishes the base amount that developers can be assessed per square foot 
of residential and non-residential development. If a district meets certain standards, the base 
adjustment can be adjusted upward a certain amount. Under SB 50, payment of the identified 
fees by a developer is deemed to be “full and complete mitigation” of impacts on schools 
resulting from new development. Participation in these funding mechanisms, as applicable, will 
reduce school impacts to a less than significant level as a matter of state law. The need for 
other public facilities would not be created by this project and the impact is anticipated to be 
less than significant. 

  

Packet Pg. 82

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 71  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

XV.  
RECREATION 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Would the project increase the use of 
existing neighborhood and regional 
parks or other recreational facilities 
such that substantial physical 
deterioration of the facility would 
occur or be accelerated?  

  X   

b) Does the project include recreational 
facilities or require the construction or 
expansion of recreational facilities 
which might have an adverse physical 
effect on the environment?  

  X   

Recreation 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed project consists of the development of a retail commercial center and would not 
be anticipated to increase the use of, and demand for, recreational facilities in a way that 
results in a significant impact. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis: 
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on the demand for recreation facilities as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included increased 
demand for parks and recreation (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 
4.12-30 through 4.12-45). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the 
General Plan can result in recreation facilities impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a 
less than significant level through the application of General Plan goals and policies that would 
assist in minimizing or avoiding impacts to recreation facilities. The General Plan has 
established a parkland standard of five acres per 1,000 population, and has adopted goals and 
policies to insure that this standard is met. These goals and policies call for the provision of new 
park and recreational facilities as needed by new development through parkland dedication 
and the payment of park and recreation fees. These programs and practices are recognized in 
the General Plan Open Space, Conservation and Recreation Element, which mitigates these 
impacts to a less than significant level. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 83

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 72  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for impacts to recreation incorporated as goals and policies in the Rocklin General Plan, will be 
applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b. Increase Park Usage and Construction or Expansion of Recreational Facilities – Less 
than Significant. The proposed retail commercial project is not anticipated to significantly 
increase the use of, or demand for, recreational facilities. The City of Rocklin provides parkland 
dedication and/or collection of park fees to mitigate for the increased recreational impacts of 
new residential developments at the time that a parcel or subdivision map is recorded. Retail 
commercial projects are intended to offer places of employment and do not necessarily afford 
recreational opportunities for employees. However, it is recognized that some non-residential 
projects incorporate a recreational component into their project design (the proposed project 
does not), and employees of non-residential projects could utilize City recreational facilities 
during breaks and lunches. This minimal use by employees is not anticipated to significantly 
increase the use of existing facilities to the extent that substantial physical deterioration of the 
facility would occur or be accelerated, nor is the minimal use by employees anticipated to 
require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities; therefore, the project would 
have less than significant impacts regarding the increase in use of recreational facilities. 

  

Packet Pg. 84

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 73  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

XVI.
   TRANSPORTATION/TRAFFIC 

 Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Conflict with an applicable plan, 
ordinance or policy establishing 
measures of effectiveness for the 
performance of the circulation system, 
taking into account all modes of 
transportation including mass transit 
and non-motorized travel and relevant 
components of the circulation system, 
including but not limited to 
intersections, streets, highways, 
freeways, pedestrian and bicycle 
paths, and mass transit)?  

  X   

b) Conflict with an applicable congestion 
management program, including, but 
not limited to level of service 
standards and travel demand 
measures, or other standards 
established by the county congestion 
management agency for designated 
roads or highways?  

   X  

c) Result in a change in air traffic 
patterns, including either an increase 
in traffic levels or a change in location 
that results in substantial safety risks?  

   X  

d) Substantially increase hazards due to a 
design feature (e.g., sharp curves or 
dangerous intersections) or 
incompatible uses (e.g., farm 
equipment)?  

  X   

e) Result in inadequate emergency 
access?  

  X   

f) Conflict with adopted policies, plans, 
or programs regarding public transit, 
bicycle, or pedestrian facilities, or 
otherwise decrease the performance 
or safety of such facilities?  

  X   

Transportation/Traffic 
 

  

Packet Pg. 85

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 74  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
As discussed below, the proposed project is anticipated to cause increases in traffic because an 
undeveloped site will become developed, but not to a degree that would significantly affect 
level of service (LOS) standards. 
 
Prior Environmental Review:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on transportation that would occur as a result of the future urban 
development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included signalized 
intersections in Rocklin, Loomis, Roseville, Lincoln and Placer County, state/interstate highway 
segments and intersections, transit service, bicycle and pedestrian facilities, and conflicts with 
at-grade railways (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.4-1 through 4.4-
98).  
 
Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated into the General Plan in the 
Circulation Element, and include policies that require the monitoring of traffic on City streets to 
determine improvements needed to maintain an acceptable level of service, updating the City’s 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and traffic impact fees, providing for inflationary 
adjustments to the City’s traffic impact fees, maintaining a minimum level of service (LOS) of 
“C” for all signalized intersections during the PM peak period on an average weekday, 
maintaining street design standards, and interconnecting traffic signals and consideration of the 
use of roundabouts where financially feasible and warranted to provide flexibility in controlling 
traffic movements at intersections. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that, despite these goals and policies, significant transportation 
impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, that these 
impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General Plan EIR 
found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will result in increased traffic volumes at 
state/interstate highway intersections and impacts to state/interstate highway segments. 
Findings of fact and a statement of overriding consideration were adopted by the Rocklin City 
Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable policies and standards, including the mitigation measures addressing impacts of 
urban development under the General Plan on utility and service systems incorporated as goals 
and policies in the General Plan, will be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied 
development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for the project to ensure 
consistency with the General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 

Packet Pg. 86

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 75  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Project-Level Environmental Analysis: 
 
The firm of Abrams Associates Traffic Engineering, Inc., a California consulting firm with 
recognized expertise in transportation, prepared a traffic impact analysis of the proposed 
project. Their report, dated June 27, 2017 is available for review during normal business hours 
at the City of Rocklin Planning Department, 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA, and is incorporated 
into this Mitigated Negative Declaration by this reference. City staff has reviewed the 
documentation and is also aware that Abrams Associates Traffic Engineering, Inc. has a 
professional reputation that makes its conclusions presumptively credible and prepared in good 
faith. Based on its review of the analysis and these other considerations, City staff accepts the 
conclusions in the Abrams Associates Traffic Engineering, Inc. report, which is summarized 
below. 
 
Daily Trip Generation 

Development of the project site has been assumed in previous city-wide traffic analyses such as 
the General Plan Update (2011); the project site was designated as a Retail Commercial land 
use when the General Plan Update traffic analysis was completed; therefore the vehicle trips 
generated by the proposed retail commercial project are consistent with the number of trips 
that were assumed at the time of the General Plan EIR analysis. 

An estimate of the proposed project’s daily and p.m. peak hour trip generation has been made 
based on trip generation rates derived from the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) 9th Edition 
Trip Generation Manual. The table below identifies the resulting trip generation estimates for 
the proposed project. As shown, the proposed retail commercial project would generate 4,396 
daily trips, with 299 trips occurring during the p.m. peak hour and 266 trips occurring during the 
a.m. peak hour. 

PROJECT TRIP GENERATION  

Land Use Category Size ADT 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour  

In Out Total In Out Total 
Tire Store 10,224 sq. ft. 399 19 11 30 18 24 42 
High Turnover Sit Down 
Restaurant 

6,602 sq. ft. 478 22 18 40 23 14 36 

Fast Food Restaurants 
with Drive Throughs 

9,595 sq. ft. 2,428 83 80 163 83 77 160 

Fast Food Restaurants 
without Drive Throughs 

3,600 sq. ft. 1,018 19 13 32 27 27 54 

General Retail 2,568 sq. ft. 73 1 0 1 3 3 6 
Net New Project Trips  4,396 144 122 266 154 145 299 

Source: Sierra College Boulevard Commercial Project Transportation Impact Analysis, Abrams Associates Traffic 
Engineering, Inc., June 27, 2017 

 
  

Packet Pg. 87

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 76  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Current Background Traffic Conditions 
 
Access to the project site will be from Sierra College Boulevard at Schriber Way which is 
proposed by the project to include a new signalized intersection. In the future the project will 
also have access to Dominguez Road through the adjacent Lifehouse Church property. Sierra 
College is a four to five lane arterial street that runs in a north-south direction from Rocklin’s 
border with Roseville to the border with Loomis providing access to commercial and residential 
areas. Sierra College Boulevard is designated as a truck route. 
 
Intersections were analyzed using a modified Circular 212 methodology at City of Rocklin 
intersections and a Highway Capacity Manual methodology at freeway ramp intersections. The 
table below identifies current intersection Levels of Service (LOS) at the five study locations 
(Granite Drive/Sierra College Boulevard, Commons Drive/I-80/Sierra College Boulevard, 
Crossings Drive/I-80/Sierra College Boulevard, Schriber Way/Sierra College Boulevard, and 
Dominguez Road/Sierra College Boulevard). As shown, the overall LOS at each intersection is 
LOS B or greater for both AM and PM peak hours, which meets the City’s minimum LOS C PM 
peak hour standard. 

EXISTING PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Time Period 
  AM Peak Hour (7:00-9:00 AM) PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
Granite Dr/Sierra College Blvd Signal A 0.58 - A 0.57 - 
Commons Dr/I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd 

Signal B - 10.7 B 17.5 - 

Crossings Dr/I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd 

Signal B - 14.5 B - 12.6 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
 

A 
B 

 
- 
- 

 
0.1 

11.1 

 
A 
B 

 
- 
- 

 
0.2 

13.8 
Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal A 0.37 - A 0.32 - 

 
  

Packet Pg. 88

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 77  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Existing Plus Project Traffic Conditions and Levels of Service 
 
Project trips were superimposed onto the current background traffic volumes to create the 
“Existing Plus Project” condition, which is reflected in the table below. 

EXISTING PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Existing Existing Plus Project 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
AM Peak Hour (7:00 – 9:00 AM) 

Granite Dr./Sierra College Blvd. Signal A 0.58 - A 0.59 - 
Commons Dr./I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal B - 10.7 B - 10.8 

Crossings Dr./I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal B - 14.5 B - 16.4 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
(Signal with 

Project) 

 
A 
B 

 
- 
- 

 
0.1 

11.1 
A 0.56 - 

Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal A 0.37 - A 0.38 - 
PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 

Granite Dr./Sierra College Blvd. Signal A 0.57 - A 0.58 - 
Commons Dr./I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal B 17.5 - B - 17.8 

Crossings Dr./I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal B - 12.6 B - 14.5 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
 

A 
B 

 
- 
- 

 
0.2 

13.8 
A 0.46 - 

Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal A 0.32 - A 0.33 - 
 
As shown, the project does not result in any change to the AM or PM peak hours Level of 
Service at any location, though delay would increase slightly at some intersections. PM peak 
hour Levels of Service at each intersection will remain LOS A or B, which is within the adopted 
LOS C or better standard. 
 

  

Packet Pg. 89

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 78  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Existing Plus Approved Projects Plus Project 
 
The traffic impacts of the proposed project have also been considered within the context of 
future traffic conditions in this area of Rocklin assuming other approved but as yet 
unconstructed projects under an “Existing Plus Approved Projects (EPAP)” condition, which is 
reflected in the table below.  

EXISTING PLUS APPROVED PROJECTS (EPAP) PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Existing Plus Approved Projects EPAP Plus Project 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
AM Peak Hour (7:00 – 9:00 AM) 

Granite Dr./Sierra College Blvd. Signal C 0.76 - C 0.77 - 
Commons Dr./I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal B - 13.6 B - 13.8 

Crossings Dr./I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal B - 17.7 C - 20.2 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
(Signal with 

Project) 

A 
B 

- 
- 

1.0 
13.8 B 0.54 - 

Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal A 0.43 - A 0.44 - 
PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 

Granite Dr./Sierra College Blvd. Signal D 0.88 - D 0.89 - 
Commons Dr./I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal C - 24.7 C - 25.1 

Crossings Dr./I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal C - 21.1 C - 24.7 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
(Signal with 

Project) 

 
A 
C 

 
- 
- 

 
1.9 

23.7 
A 0.52 - 

Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal A 0.47 - A 0.46 A 
Bold indicates conditions in excess of adopted minimum LOS standard 
 
As shown above, the project would result in the Level of Service in the PM peak hour dropping 
below LOS C in the existing plus approved projects condition with and without the Rocklin 
Station project only at the intersection at Granite Drive and Sierra College Boulevard. Levels of 
Service at each other intersection in the PM peak hour will remain above the adopted minimum 
standard (i.e., LOS C or better).  
 
Because the LOS D condition at the Granite Drive and Sierra College Boulevard intersection 
exceeds the City’s LOS C standard with and without the project, the incremental change in 
average delay is the measure used to determine significance. In this case, the incremental 
change in volume per capacity resulting from the project is 0.01, which is less than the 0.05 
increment permitted under current City guidelines. Thus the project’s impact at this 
intersection is less than significant and no mitigation is required. 

Packet Pg. 90

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 79  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

 
Future (Cumulative Year 2030) Traffic Conditions 
 
Information from the General Plan EIR City of Rocklin 2030 Travel Demand Model has been 
employed to identify long term traffic conditions in the project vicinity. The table below 
compares cumulative AM and PM peak hour Levels of Service at study area intersections with 
and without the proposed project. 

CUMULATIVE PLUS PROJECT PEAK HOUR INTERSECTION LEVELS OF SERVICE 
  Cumulative Base Cumulative with Project 

Intersection Control LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 

LOS Volume/
Capacity 

Average 
Delay 

(sec/veh) 
AM Peak Hour (7:00 – 9:00 AM) 

Granite Dr./Sierra College Blvd. Signal C 0.71 - C 0.72 - 
Commons Dr./I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal 
B - 14.7 B - 15.2 

Crossings Dr./I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal C - 24.7 C - 27.6 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
(Signal with 

Project) 

 
A 
C 

 
- 
- 

 
1.2 

15.2 
A 0.47 - 

Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal C 0.70 - C 0.71 - 
PM Peak Hour (4:00-6:00 PM) 

Granite Dr./Sierra College Blvd. Signal D 0.85 - D 0.86 - 
Commons Dr./I-80 WB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal 
C - 28.3 C - 28.9 

Crossings Dr./I-80 EB Ramps/ 
Sierra College Blvd. 

Signal C - 27.5 C - 34.6 

Schriber Way/Sierra College Blvd 
Overall 
WB right turn 

WB Stop 
(Signal with 

Project) 

 
A 
E 

 
- 
- 

 
3.7 

41.9 
A 0.44 - 

Dominguez Rd/Sierra College Blvd Signal C 0.71 - C 0.72 - 
Bold indicates conditions in excess of adopted minimum LOS standard 
 
As shown, the Granite Drive/Sierra College Boulevard intersection will not satisfy the minimum 
LOS C standard in the PM peak hour and is projected to operate at LOS D in the PM peak hour. 
If projected volumes do occur in the future, there is an interim solution that could be 
implemented prior to the planned/anticipated widening of Sierra College Boulevard to six lanes 
that would achieve LOS C in the PM peak hour. A modification to the Granite Drive/Sierra 
College Boulevard intersection without requiring widening of the intersection can be 
accomplished by restriping northbound Sierra College Boulevard to provide a second left turn 
lane onto Granite Drive and converting the right turn lane into a shared through right turn lane. 
Because the LOS D PM peak hour condition at the Granite Drive/Sierra College Boulevard 
intersection exceeds the City’s LOS C standard with and without the project, the incremental 
change in V/C ratio is the measure used to determine significance. In this case, the incremental 

Packet Pg. 91

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 80  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

change in V/C ratio resulting from the Rocklin Station project is 0.01 seconds, which is less than 
the 0.05 increment permitted under current City guidelines. Thus the project’s cumulative 
impact at this intersection is less than significant and no mitigation is required. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Conflict with Performance of Circulation System – Less than Significant Impact. As 
evidenced by the summary of the traffic impact analysis, although increases in delays at study 
intersections occur, capacity or level of service impacts from the proposed project are not 
anticipated. Because the above analysis has verified that the proposed project will not result in 
any significant traffic impacts more severe than those disclosed in the General Plan EIR, the City 
finds pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15168, subdivision (C) (4), that these cumulative 
“environmental effects of the [site-specific project] were covered in the program EIR.” 
 
Vehicle Miles of Travel (VMT) is a transportation performance metric that is used as an input to 
air quality and noise analyses. VMT not only addresses the number of trips generated by a given 
land use, but also the length of those trips. By doing so, the placement of a given land use in 
proximity to complementary land uses, and available transit, walking and bicycling facilities are 
all considered. VMT can also be used to quantify the effects of proposed changes to a roadway 
network, transportation demand strategies, and investments in non-auto travel modes. VMT 
may be expressed in absolute numbers of as “per capita” rations, such as VMT per person, 
household, dwelling unit, employee, or service population (persons plus employees). For 
information purposes, the proposed Rocklin Station project is projected to generate 
approximately 15,114 Vehicle Miles of Travel on a daily basis. 
 
The project will be conditioned to contribute its fair share to the cost of circulation 
improvements via the existing citywide traffic impact mitigation (TIM) fee program that would 
be applied as a uniformly applied development policy and standard. The traffic impact 
mitigation fee program is one of the various methods that the City of Rocklin uses for financing 
improvements identified in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The CIP, which is overseen 
by the City’s Public Services Department, is updated periodically to respond to changing 
conditions and to assure that growth in the City and surrounding jurisdictions does not degrade 
the level of service on the City’s roadways. The roadway improvements that are identified in 
the CIP in response to anticipated growth in population and development in the City are 
consistent with the City’s Circulation Element. The traffic impact fee program collects funds 
from new development in the City to finance a portion of the roadway improvements that 
result from traffic generated by the new development. Fees are calculated on a citywide basis, 
differentiated by type of development in relationship to their relative traffic impacts. The intent 
of the fee is to provide an equitable means of ensuring that future development contributes 
their fair share of roadway improvements, so that the City’s General Plan Circulation policies 
and quality of life can be maintained.  
 

  

Packet Pg. 92

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 81  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

South Placer Regional Transportation Authority 
 
The South Placer Regional Transportation Authority (SPRTA) was formed through the 
establishment of a joint powers authority including the cities of Rocklin, Roseville and Lincoln, 
Placer County and the Placer County Transportation and Planning Agency in January 2002. 
SPRTA was formed for the implementation of fees to fund specialized regional transportation 
projects including planning, design, administration, environmental compliance, and 
construction costs. Regional transportation projects included in the SPRTA include Douglas 
Boulevard/Interstate 80 Interchange, Placer Parkway, Lincoln Bypass, Sierra College Boulevard 
Widening, State Route 65 Widening, Rocklin Road/Interstate 80 Interchange, Auburn Folsom 
Boulevard Widening, and Transit Projects. Similar to other members of SPRTA, the City of 
Rocklin has adopted a SPRTA fee for all development, and the proposed project would be 
subject to payment of such a fee. 
 
Highway 65 Interchange Improvement Fee 
 
The cities of Rocklin and Roseville and Placer County have established the “Bizz Johnson” 
Highway Interchange Joint Powers Authority that has adopted an interchange traffic fee on all 
new development within Rocklin, Roseville and affected portions of Placer County. The purpose 
of the fee is to finance four interchanges on State Route 65 to reduce the impact of increased 
traffic from local development; the proposed project would be subject to payment of such a 
fee. 
 
The development of the proposed project would not result in project-specific significant effects 
as demonstrated by the summary of the project’s traffic impact analysis presented above. 
Payment of traffic impact fees as described above will reduce traffic impacts from the proposed 
project to a less than significant level. 
 
b. Conflict with Congestion Management Program – No Impact. The City of Rocklin does not 
have an applicable congestion management program that has been established by a county 
congestion management agency for designated roads or highways; therefore there is no 
conflict with an applicable congestion management program impact. 
 
c. Air Traffic Levels – No Impact. The proposed project is not anticipated to have any impacts 
on air traffic because it is not located near an airport or within a flight path. In addition, the 
proposed project will not result in a change in location of planned development that results in 
substantial safety risks. Therefore, there is no change in air traffic patterns impact. 
 
d. and e. Hazards and Emergency Access – Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project 
is evaluated by the City’s Engineering Services Manager to assess such items as hazards due to a 
design feature or incompatible uses. In addition, the proposed project is evaluated by 
representatives of the City of Rocklin’s Fire and Police Departments to ensure that adequate 

Packet Pg. 93

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 82  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

emergency access is provided. Through these reviews and any required changes, there will be a 
less than significant hazard or emergency access impact. 
 
f. Alternative Modes of Transportation – Less Than Significant Impact. The City of Rocklin 
seeks to promote the use of public transit through development conditions requiring park-and-
ride lots, and bus turnouts. Bike lanes are typically required along arterial and collector streets. 
In the vicinity of the project there are existing Class II bike facilities along Sierra College 
Boulevard. The proposed project does not conflict with these bike lane locations or with other 
policies or programs promoting alternative transportation.  
 
Transit service in the project vicinity is provided by Placer County Transit (PCT). Bus routes 
operate along Pacific Street, Rocklin Road, Sierra College Boulevard, Sierra Meadows Drive and 
Granite Drive, stopping at major destinations such as the Rocklin Commons Retail Center and 
the Sierra Community College campus. Other bus routes provide commuter express service to 
downtown Sacramento. The nearest bus stops to the project site are located at the Rocklin 
Commons and Crossings shopping centers. The project does not conflict with these bus route or 
stop locations or other policies or programs promoting alternative transportation. 
 
The City of Rocklin’s Zoning Ordinance contains off-street parking requirements for different 
types of development projects. In the case of automotive repair shops, a minimum of five 
paved parking spaces per 1000 square feet shall be provided and in the case of restaurants, one 
a minimum of one paved parking space per each three fixed seats shall be provided. The 
proposed project requires 248 parking spaces and 274 are being provided. Therefore, an 
adequate parking supply is available. 
 
The proposed project is evaluated by City staff to assess potential conflicts with adopted 
policies, plans or programs regarding public transit, bicycle and pedestrian facilities and 
whether proposed projects would decrease the performance or safety of such facilities. 
Through these reviews and any required changes, there will be a less than significant 
alternative modes of transportation impact. 
  

Packet Pg. 94

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 83  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

XVII. 
TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 
Would the project cause a substantial 
adverse change in the significance of a 
tribal cultural resource, defined in 
Public Resources Code section 21074 as 
either a site, feature, place, cultural 
landscape that is geographically defined 
in terms of the size and scope of the 
landscape, sacred place, or object with 
cultural value to a California Native 
American tribe, and that is: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact for 
which 

General 
Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the 
California Register of Historical 
Resources, or in a local register of 
historical resources as defined in Public 
Resources Code section 5020.1(k), or  

  X   

b) A resource determined by the lead 
agency, in its discretion and supported 
by substantial evidence, to be 
significant pursuant to criteria set forth 
in subdivision (c) of Public Resources 
Code section 5024.1. In applying the 
criteria set for in subdivision (c) of 
Public Resource Code section 5024.1 
the lead agency shall consider the 
significance of the resource to a 
California Native American tribe. 

  X   

Tribal Cultural Resources 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The project site does not contain any resources that are listed with the California Register of 
Historical Resources or that have been determined by the lead agency to have significance to a 
California Native American Tribe. Therefore no impacts to tribal cultural resources are 
anticipated. 
 
Prior Environmental Analysis:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts that would occur to historical, cultural and paleontological resources within 
the Planning area as a result of the future urban development that was contemplated by the 
General Plan. These impacts included potential destruction or damage to any historical, 

Packet Pg. 95

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 84  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

cultural, and paleontological resources (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, 
pages 4.8-1 through 4.8-21). Mitigation measures to address these impacts are incorporated 
into the General Plan in the Land Use and Open Space, Recreation and Conservation Elements, 
and include goals and policies that encourage the preservation and protection of historical, 
cultural and paleontological resources and the proper treatment and handling of such 
resources when they are discovered. 
 
The General Plan EIR concluded that despite these goals and policies, significant cultural 
resources impacts will occur as a result of development under the General Plan and further, 
that these impacts cannot be reduced to a less than significant level. Specifically, the General 
Plan EIR found that buildout of the Rocklin General Plan will contribute to cumulative impacts 
to historic character. Findings of fact and a statement of overriding considerations were 
adopted by the Rocklin City Council in regard to these impacts, which were found to be 
significant and unavoidable. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
Historically significant structures and sites as well as the potential for the discovery of unknown 
archaeological or paleontological resources as a result of development activities are discussed 
in the Rocklin General Plan. Policies and mitigation measures have been included in the General 
Plan to encourage the preservation of historically significant known and unknown areas.  
 
All applicable mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR, including the mitigation measures 
for cultural resources impacts incorporated as goals and policies in the General Plan, will be 
applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied development policies and standards 
and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure consistency with the General Plan 
and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. and b. Tribal Cultural Resources –Less Than Significant Impact. Per Assembly Bill 52 (AB-52, 
Gatto 2014), as of July 1, 2015 Public Resources Code Sections 21080.3.1 and 21080.3 require 
public agencies to consult with the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) and Native 
American tribes for the purpose of mitigating impacts to tribal cultural resources; that 
consultation process is described in part below: 
  

Within 14 days of determining that an application for a project is complete or a decision 
by a public agency to undertake a project, the lead agency shall provide formal 
notification to the designated contact of, or a tribal representative of, traditionally and 
culturally affiliated California Native American tribes that have requested notice, which 
shall be accomplished by means of at least one written notification that includes a brief 
description of the proposed project and its location, the lead agency contact 
information, and a notification that the California Native American tribe has 30 days to 

Packet Pg. 96

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 85  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

request consultation pursuant to this section (Public Resources Code Section 21080.1 
(d)) 

 
As of the writing of this document, the United Auburn Indian Community (UAIC), the Ione Band 
of Miwok Indians (IBMI) and the Torres Martinez Desert Cahuilla Indians (TMDCI) are the only 
tribes that are traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project area that have requested 
notification. Consistent with Public Resources Code (PRC) Section 21080.3.1 (d) and per AB-52, 
the City of Rocklin provided formal notification of the Rocklin Station project and the 
opportunity to consult on it to the designated contacts of the UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI in a letter 
received by those organizations on April 28, 2016, April 29, 2016 and June 6, 2016, respectively. 
The UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI had 30 days to request consultation on the project pursuant to AB-
52 and no responses were received prior to May 28, 2016, May 29, 2016 and July 6, 2016, 
respectively, the end of the 30-day periods. As such, the City of Rocklin has complied with AB-
52 and may proceed with the CEQA process for this project per PRC Section 21082.3 (d) (3). 
Given that the UAIC, IBMI and TMDCI did not submit a formal request for consultation on the 
proposed project within the required 30 day period, that no other tribes have submitted a 
formal request to receive notification from the City of Rocklin pursuant to PRC Section 
21080.3.1, the project is not anticipated to cause a substantial adverse change in the 
significance of a Tribal Cultural Resource as defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074. 
Therefore, the project’s impact on tribal cultural resources is considered less than significant. 
 
  

Packet Pg. 97

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 86  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

XVIII.  
UTILITIES AND SERVICE 
SYSTEMS 
Would the project: 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Exceed wastewater treatment 
requirements of the applicable 
Regional Water Quality Control Board?  

  X   

b) Require or result in the construction of 
new water or wastewater treatment 
facilities or expansion of existing 
facilities, the construction of which 
could cause significant environmental 
effects?  

   X  

c) Require or result in the construction of 
new storm water drainage facilities or 
expansion of existing facilities, the 
construction of which could cause 
significant environmental effects?   

   X  

d) Have sufficient water supplies 
available to serve the project from 
existing entitlements and resources, or 
are new or expanded entitlements 
needed?  

  X   

e) Result in a determination by the 
wastewater treatment provider which 
serves or may serve the project that it 
has adequate capacity to serve the 
project’s projected demand in addition 
to the provider’s existing 
commitments?  

  X   

f) Be served by a landfill with sufficient 
permitted capacity to accommodate 
the project’s solid waste disposal 
needs?  

  X   

g) Comply with federal, state, and local 
statutes and regulations related to 
solid waste?  

  X   

Utilities and Service Systems 
  

Packet Pg. 98

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 87  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The proposed development and operation of a retail commercial center will increase the need 
for utility and service systems, but not to an extent that will impact the ability of the utility and 
service providers to adequately provide such services. 
 
Prior Environmental Review:   
 
As a “program EIR” under CEQA Guidelines section 15168, the General Plan EIR analyzed the 
anticipated impacts on utilities and service systems that would occur as a result of the future 
urban development that was contemplated by the General Plan. These impacts included 
increased generation of wastewater flow, provision of adequate wastewater treatment, 
increased demand for solid waste disposal, and increased demand for energy and 
communication services (City of Rocklin General Plan Update Draft EIR, 2011, pages 4.13-1 
through 4.13-34). The analysis found that while development and buildout of the General Plan 
can result in utilities and service system impacts, these impacts would be reduced to a less than 
significant level through the application of General Plan goals and policies that would assist in 
minimizing or avoiding impacts to utilities and service systems. 
 
These goals and policies include, but are not limited to, requiring studies of infrastructure 
needs, proportional share participation in the financial costs of public services and facilities, 
coordination of private development projects with public facilities and services needed to serve 
the project and encouraging energy conservation in new developments. 
 
Mitigation Measures from Uniformly Applied Development Policies and Standards: 
 
All applicable policies and standards, including the mitigation measures addressing impacts of 
urban development under the General Plan on utility and service systems incorporated as goals 
and policies in the General Plan, will be applied to the project. These serve as uniformly applied 
development policies and standards and/or as conditions of approval for this project to ensure 
consistency with the General Plan and compliance with City rules and regulations. 
 
Significance Conclusions: 
 
a., b. and e. Exceed Wastewater Treatment Requirements, Exceed Wastewater Treatment 
Facility, Wastewater Capacity– Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project site is 
located within the South Placer Municipal Utility District (SPMUD) service area for sewer. 
SPMUD has provided a letter regarding the proposed project indicating that the project is 
within their service area and eligible for service, provided that their condition requirements and 
standard specifications are met. SPMUD has a System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan, 
which is periodically updated, to provide sewer to projects located within their service 

Packet Pg. 99

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 88  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

boundary. The plan includes future expansion as necessary. SPMUD collects participation fees 
to finance the maintenance and expansion of its facilities. The proposed project is responsible 
for complying with all requirements of SPMUD, including compliance with wastewater 
treatment standards established by the Central Valley Water Quality Control Board. The South 
Placer Wastewater Authority (SPWA) was created by the City of Roseville, Placer County and 
SPMUD to provide regional wastewater and recycled water facilities in southwestern Placer 
County. The regional facilities overseen by the SPWA include the Dry Creek and Pleasant Grove 
Wastewater Treatment Plants, both of which receive flows from SPMUD (and likewise from 
Rocklin). To project future regional wastewater needs, the SPWA prepared the South Placer 
Regional Wastewater and Recycled Water Systems Evaluation (Evaluation) in June 2007. The 
Evaluation indicates that as of June 2004, flows to both the wastewater treatment plants were 
below design flows. Both wastewater treatment plants are permitted discharges under the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). Specifically, the Dry Creek 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) is permitted to discharge an average dry weather flow 
not to exceed 18mgd, while the Pleasant Grove Wastewater Treatment Plant is permitted to 
discharge an average dry weather flow not to exceed 12 mgd. According to SPMUD, in 2016 the 
Dry Creek WWTP had an average dry weather inflow of 8.2 mgd, with SPMUD’s portion being 
1.8 mgd, and the Pleasant Grove WWTP had an average dry weather inflow of 7.0 mgd, with 
Rocklin’s portion being 1.9 mgd. Consequently, both plants are well within their operating 
capacities and there remains adequate capacity to accommodate the projected wastewater 
flows from this project. Therefore, a less than significant wastewater treatment impact is 
anticipated. 
 
c. New Stormwater Facilities – Less than Significant Impact. The proposed project would be 
conditioned to require connection into the City’s storm drain system, with Best Management 
Practices and/or Low Impact Development features located within the project’s drainage 
system at a point prior to where the project site runoff will enter the City’s storm drain system. 
Other than on-site improvements, new drainage facilities or expansion of existing facilities 
would not be required as a result of this project. Therefore, a less than significant stormwater 
facility impact is anticipated. 
 
d. Water Supplies – Less than Significant. The proposed project is located within the Placer 
County Water Agency (PCWA) service area. The PCWA has a Master Plan, which is periodically 
updated, to provide water to projects located within their service boundary. The plan includes 
future expansion as necessary, and includes the option of constructing additional treatment 
plants. The PCWA collects hook-up fees to finance the maintenance and expansion of its 
facilities. 
 
The PCWA service area is divided into five zones that provide treated and raw water to Colfax, 
Auburn, Loomis, Rocklin, Lincoln, small portion of Roseville, unincorporated areas of western 
Placer County, and a small community in Martis Valley near Truckee. The proposed project is 
located in Zone 1, which is the largest of the five zones. Zone 1 provides water service to 

Packet Pg. 100

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 89  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Auburn, Bowman, Ophir, Newcastle, Penryn, Loomis, Rocklin, Lincoln, and portions of Granite 
Bay.  
 
PCWA has planned for growth in the City of Rocklin and sized the water supply infrastructure to 
meet this growth (PCWA 2006). PCWA has provided a letter regarding the proposed project 
indicating that the project is within their service area and eligible for service upon execution of 
a facilities agreement and payment of all required fees and charges. The project site would be 
served by the Foothill WTP, which treats water diverted from the American River Pump Station 
near Auburn, and the proposed project’s estimated maximum daily water treatment demands 
would not exceed the plant’s permitted capacity. Because the proposed project would be 
served by a water treatment plant that has adequate capacity to meet the project’s projected 
demand and would not require the construction of a new water treatment plant, the proposed 
project’s water supply and treatment facility impacts would be considered less than significant.  
 
f. Landfill Capacity – Less than Significant. The Western Regional landfill, which serves the 
Rocklin area, has a total capacity of 36 million cubic yards and a remaining capacity of 29 million 
cubic yards. The estimated closure date for the landfill is approximately 2036. Development of 
the project site with urban land uses was included in the lifespan and capacity calculations of 
the landfill, and a less than significant landfill capacity impact would be anticipated. 
 
g. Solid Waste Regulations – Less than Significant Impact. Federal and State regulations 
regarding solid waste consist of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency regulations and 
the California Integrated Waste Management Act regulating waste reduction. These regulations 
primarily affect local agencies and other agencies such as the Landfill Authority. The proposed 
project will comply with all Federal, State, and local regulations regarding trash and waste and 
other nuisance-related issues as may be applicable. Recology would provide garbage collection 
services to the project site, provided their access requirements are met. Therefore, the project 
would comply with solid waste regulations and the impact would be less than significant.  

Packet Pg. 101

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 90  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

XIX.  
MANDATORY FINDINGS OF 
 SIGNIFICANCE 

Potentially 
Significant 

Impact 

Less Than 
Significant 

With 
Mitigation 

Less Than 
Significant 

Impact 

No 
Impact 

Impact 
for which 
General 

Plan EIR is 
Sufficient 

a) Does the project have the potential 
to degrade the quality of the 
environment, substantially reduce 
the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife 
population to drop below self-
sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal 
community, substantially reduce the 
number or restrict the range of an 
endangered, rare or threatened 
species or eliminate important 
examples of the major periods of 
California history or prehistory?  

 X    

b) Does the project have impacts that 
are limited, but cumulatively 
considerable? (“Cumulatively 
considerable” means that the 
incremental effects of a project are 
considerable when viewed in 
connection with the effects of past 
projects, the effects of other current 
projects, and the effects of probably 
future projects)?  

  X   

c) Does the project have 
environmental effects which will 
cause substantial adverse effects on 
human beings, either directly or 
indirectly?  

  X   

Mandatory Findings of Significance 
DISCUSSION OF DETERMINATION: 
 
Project Impacts: 
 
The preceding analysis demonstrates that these effects will not occur as a consequence of the 
project. The construction and operation of the Rocklin Station project would be consistent with 
the Rocklin General Plan and the Rocklin General Plan EIR. 
 
 

  

Packet Pg. 102

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 91  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Significance Conclusions: 
 
a. Degradation of Environment Quality – Less than Significant with Mitigation. The proposed 
project site is mostly surrounded by developed land. Based on the project location and non-
unique biological and cultural resources site characteristics as discussed above, the proposed 
project does not have the potential to: substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife 
species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to 
eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of 
an endangered, rare or threatened species, or eliminate important examples of the major 
periods of California history or prehistory. Although the proposed project could cause a 
significant effect on the environment, there will not be a significant effect in this case because 
of the project design and the application of the recommended mitigation measures and the 
City’s uniformly applied development policies and standards that will reduce the potential 
impacts to a less than significant level. Therefore, the project would have less than significant 
impacts. 
 
a. b. Cumulatively Considerable Impacts – Less than Significant. Development in the 
South Placer region as a whole will contribute to regional air pollutant emissions, thereby 
delaying attainment of Federal and State air quality standards, regardless of development 
activity in the City of Rocklin and application of mitigation measures. As a result of this potential 
degradation of the quality of the environment, the General Plan EIR, which assumed the 
development of the proposed project site, determined that there would be significant and 
unavoidable cumulative air quality impacts. Because the proposed project is consistent with the 
project site’s land use and zoning designations, development of the proposed project 
represents the same vehicle trip generation and associated air quality and greenhouse gas 
emission impacts which were analyzed in the General Plan EIR. In addition, the project-specific 
air quality analysis discussed above demonstrated that the proposed project would have a less 
than significant cumulative air quality and greenhouse gas emissions impacts. Therefore, the 
project would have less than significant impacts. 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will alter viewsheds as mixed 
urban development occurs on vacant land. In addition, new development will also generate 
new sources of light and glare; as a result, the General Plan EIR determined that there would be 
significant and unavoidable cumulative aesthetic impacts. Development of the proposed 
project represents conversion of the same vacant land area that was analyzed in the General 
Plan EIR. Therefore, the project would have less than significant impacts. 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in cumulative, long-
term impacts on biological resources (vegetation and wildlife), due to the introduction of 
domestic landscaping, homes, paved surfaces, and the relatively constant presence of people 
and pets, all of which negatively impact vegetation and wildlife habitat As a result, the General 
Plan EIR, which assumed the development of the proposed project site, determined that there 
would be cumulative significant and unavoidable biological resource impacts, both at a project-

Packet Pg. 103

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 92  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

specific Rocklin General Plan buildout level as it relates to biological resources solely within the 
City of Rocklin, as well as in the context of a cumulative contribution from Rocklin General Plan 
buildout as it relates to biological resources in the region. Development of the proposed project 
represents conversion of the same vacant land area that was analyzed in the General Plan EIR. 
Therefore, the project would have less than significant impacts. 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in significant noise 
impacts as a result of the introduction of new noise sources and additional traffic and people. 
As a result, the General Plan EIR, which assumed the development of the proposed project site, 
determined that there would be significant and unavoidable cumulative noise impacts. 
Development of the proposed project represents conversion of the same land area that was 
analyzed in the General Plan EIR, but the proposed project represents the same vehicle trip 
generation which was analyzed in the General Plan EIR. In addition, the project-specific noise 
analysis discussed above demonstrated that the proposed would have a less than significant 
cumulative noise impact. Therefore, the project would have less than significant impacts. 
 
Development in the City and the South Placer region as a whole will result in significant 
transportation/traffic impacts as a result of the creation of additional housing, employment and 
purchasing opportunities which generate vehicle trips. As a result, the General Plan EIR, which 
assumed the development of the proposed project site, determined that there would be 
significant and unavoidable cumulative transportation/traffic impacts. Development of the 
proposed project represents conversion of the same land area that was analyzed in the General 
Plan EIR, but the proposed project represents the same vehicle trip generation which was 
analyzed in the General Plan EIR. Therefore, the project would have less than significant 
impacts. 
 
The approval of the proposed project would not result in any new impacts that are limited, but 
cumulatively considerable, that are not already disclosed in the previously prepared 
environmental documents cited in this report. Therefore, the project would have less than 
significant impacts. 
 
c. Adverse Effects to Humans – Less than Significant.  
 
Because the development of the proposed project represents conversion of the same land area 
that was analyzed in the General Plan EIR, the proposed project would not have environmental 
effects that would cause substantial adverse effect on human beings, either directly or 
indirectly beyond those that were previously identified in the General Plan EIR. Therefore, the 
project would have less than significant impacts. 
 
 
  

Packet Pg. 104

Agenda Item #8.a.



Initial Study Page 93  
Reso. No. 

Rocklin Station 
DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-

0003 
 

Section 5.  References 
 
Abrams Associates Traffic Engineering, Inc., Transportation Impact Analysis Sierra College 

Boulevard Commercial Project, City of Rocklin, June 27, 2017 
City of Rocklin General Plan, October 2012 
City of Rocklin General Plan, Final Environmental Impact Report, August 2012 
City of Rocklin General Plan, Draft Environmental Impact Report, August 2011 
City of Rocklin Zoning Ordinance, Title 17 of the Rocklin Municipal Code 
City of Rocklin Design Review Guidelines 
LSA Associates, Inc., Biological Resources Evaluation 4660 Sierra College Boulevard Project, 

Placer County, Rocklin, California, June 2017  
LSA Associates, Inc., Greenhouse Gas Analysis for 4660 Sierra College Boulevard, Rocklin, 

California, June 27, 2017 
LSA Associates, Inc., Cultural Resources Study, 4660 Sierra College Boulevard Project, Rocklin, 

Placer County, California, December 2015 
LSA Associates, Inc., Noise Impact Analysis, 4660 Sierra College Boulevard Commercial Project, 

City of Rocklin, California, February 2017 
Traverso Tree Service, Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit for 4660 Sierra College Boulevard, 

Rocklin, June 1, 2016 
Traverso Tree Service, Updated Oak Tree Preservation Plan for Rocklin Station, Rocklin, June 23, 

2017 
 
 
Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Project Vicinity Map 
Attachment B – Project Site Plan

Packet Pg. 105

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 1 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION OF ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 
 

ROCKLIN STATION 
(DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-0003) 

 
Project Name and Description 
 
The Rocklin Station project proposes the construction of a retail commercial center on an 
approximately 6.64 +/- acre site in the City of Rocklin. This project will require Design Review, 
Tentative Parcel Map, Conditional Use Permit and Oak Tree Preservation Permit entitlements. 
For more detail please refer to the Project Description set forth in Section 3 of this Initial Study. 
 
Project Location 
 
The project site is generally located on the southwest corner of Sierra College Boulevard and 
Interstate 8, in the City of Rocklin. The Assessor’s Parcel Numbers are 010-010-016, -017, -028, -
029, and 010-040-040. 
 
Project Proponent’s Name 
 
The applicant is Thomas Sierra, LLC and the property owner is Thomas Sierra, LLC. 
 
Basis for Mitigated Negative Declaration Determination 
 
The City of Rocklin finds that as originally submitted the proposed project could have a 
significant effect on the environment. However, revisions in the project have been made by or 
agreed to by the project proponent, which will avoid these effects or mitigate these effects to a 
point where clearly no significant effect will occur. Therefore a MITIGATED NEGATIVE 
DECLARATION has been prepared.  The Initial Study supporting the finding stated above and 
describing the mitigation measures including in the project is incorporated herein by this 
reference. This determination is based upon the criteria of the Guidelines of the State Secretary 
of Resources Section 15064 – Determining the Significance of the Environmental Effects Caused 
by a Project, Section 15065 – Mandatory Findings of Significance, and 15070 – Decision to 
Prepare a Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative Declaration, and the mitigation measures 
described in the Mitigation Monitoring Plan for this Project.  
 
Date Circulated for Review:  July 6, 2017       
 
Date Adopted:            
 
Signature:             
 Marc Mondell, Economic and Community Development Department Director 

Packet Pg. 106

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 1 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MONITORING PROGRAM 
Rocklin Station 

(DR2016-0006, DL2016-0003, U2016-0005 and TRE2016-0003) 
 

 
The California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA, Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., as 
amended by Chapter 1232) requires all lead agencies before approving a proposed project to adopt 
a reporting and monitoring program for adopted or required changes to mitigate or avoid 
significant environmental effects. The reporting or monitoring program shall be designed to ensure 
compliance during project implementation as required by AB 3180 (Cortese) effective on January 1, 
1989 and Public Resources Code Section 21081.6. This law requires the lead agency responsible for 
the certification of an environmental impact report or adoption of a mitigated negative declaration 
to prepare and approve a program to both monitor all mitigation measures and prepare and 
approve a report on the progress of the implementation of those measures. 
 
The responsibility for monitoring assignments is based upon the expertise or authority of the 
person(s) assigned to monitor the specific activity. The City of Rocklin Community Development 
Director or his designee shall monitor to assure compliance and timely monitoring and reporting of 
all aspects of the mitigation monitoring program. 
 
The Mitigation Monitoring Plan identifies the mitigation measures associated with the project and 
identifies the monitoring activities required to ensure their implementation through the use of a 
table format. The columns identify Mitigation Measure, Implementation and Monitoring 
responsibilities.  Implementation responsibility is when the project through the development stages 
is checked to ensure that the measures are included prior to the actual construction of the project 
such as: Final Map (FM), Improvement Plans (IP), and Building Permits (BP). Monitoring 
responsibility identifies the department responsible for monitoring the mitigation implementation 
such as: Economic and Community Development (ECDD), Public Services (PS), Community Facilities 
(CFD), Police (PD), and Fire Departments (FD).  
 
The following table presents the Mitigation Monitoring Plan with the Mitigation Measures, 
Implementation, and Monitoring responsibilities. After the table is a general Mitigation Monitoring 
Report Form, which will be used as the principal reporting form for this, monitoring program. Each 
mitigation measure will be listed on the form and provided to the responsible department. 
 
Revisions in the project plans and/or proposal have been made and/or agreed to by the applicant 
prior to this Negative Declaration being released for public review which will avoid the effects or 
mitigate those effects to a point where clearly no significant effects will occur. There is no 
substantial evidence before the City of Rocklin that the project as revised may have a significant 
effect on the environment, pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, Section 15070. These mitigation measures 
are as follows: 
  

Packet Pg. 107

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 2 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 
Biological Resources: 
 
To address the potential impacts to nesting raptors and migratory birds, the following 
mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-1 The applicant/developer shall attempt to time the removal of potential nesting habitat for 
raptors and migratory birds to avoid the nesting season (February - August).  
 
If tree and vegetation removal and/or project grading or activities occur during the nesting 
season for raptors and migratory birds (February-August), the developer and/or contractor shall 
hire a qualified biologist approved by the City to conduct pre-construction surveys no more than 
14 days prior to initiation of tree and vegetation removal activities. The survey shall cover all 
areas of suitable nesting habitat within 500 feet of project activity and shall be valid for one 
construction season. Prior to the start of tree and vegetation removal activities, documentation 
of the survey shall be provided to the City of Rocklin Public Services Department and if the 
survey results are negative, no further mitigation is required and necessary structure removal 
may proceed. If there is a break in demolition activity of more than 14 days, then subsequent 
surveys shall be conducted. 
 
If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts shall be avoided by the 
establishment of appropriate buffers. The biologist shall consult with the California Department 
of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the City to determine the size of an appropriate buffer area 
(CDFW guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot buffers). Monitoring of the nest by a 
qualified biologist may be required if the activity has the potential to adversely affect an active 
nest. 
 
If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-breeding season (September- 
January), a survey is not required and no further studies are necessary. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to the start of grading or construction activities to occur within the nesting season, the 
applicant shall submit documentation of a survey for nesting raptors and migratory to the City’s 
Public Services and Economic and Community Development Departments. If the survey results 
are negative, no further mitigation is required. If the survey results are positive, the biologist 
shall consult with the City and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife as detailed above. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Public Services Department 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife  

Packet Pg. 108

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 3 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Biological Resources: 
 
To ensure protection of the elderberry shrub and VELB habitat during construction activities, 
the following mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV-2. The applicant/developer shall implement the following avoidance measures during 
construction activities. 
 
1. The area around the elderberry shrub to be avoided during construction activities will be 

fenced and/or flagged as close to construction limits as feasible. 
2. Where feasible, ground disturbing activities will not encroach within 20 feet from the 

dripline of an elderberry shrub. 
3. A qualified biologist will provide training for all contractors, work crews, and any onsite 

personnel on the status of the VELB, its host plant and habitat, the need to avoid damaging 
the elderberry shrub, and the possible penalties for noncompliance. 

4. A qualified biologist will monitor the work area at project appropriate intervals to assure 
that all avoidance and minimization measures are implemented. 

5. As feasible, all activities that could occur within 165 feet of an elderberry shrub will be 
conducted outside of the flight season of the VELB (March - July). 

6. Trimming, if required (unlikely due to the declining health of the elderberry shrub) will occur 
between November and February and will avoid the removal of any branches or stems that 
are ≥ 1 inch in diameter. Measures to address regular and/or large scale maintenance 
(trimming), if necessary, should be established in consultation with the USFWS. 

7. Herbicides will not be used within the drip-line of the elderberry shrub. Insecticides will not 
be used within 30 meters (98 feet) of an elderberry shrub. All chemicals will be applied using 
a backpack sprayer or similar direct application method. 

8. Mechanical weed removal within the drip-line of the shrub will be limited to the season 
when adults are not active (August - February) and will avoid damaging the elderberry 
shrub. 

 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activity and during construction activities, the 
applicant/developer shall follow and comply with all procedures to protect the VELB shrub as 
specifically noted in the mitigation measure.  
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
  

Packet Pg. 109

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 4 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Biological Resources: 
 
To address the potential impacts to waters of the U.S. and riparian habitat, the following 
mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-3 Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate Section 404 permit will 
need to be acquired for any project-related impacts to waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. 
that would be lost or disturbed should be replaced or rehabilitated on a “no-net-loss” basis in 
accordance with the Corps’ mitigation guidelines. Habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement should be at a location and by methods agreeable to the Corps. In association with 
the Section 404 permit and prior to the issuance of improvement plans, a Section 401 water 
quality certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board and a USFWS Biological 
Opinion (if determined necessary) shall be obtained. All terms and conditions of said permits 
shall be complied with. 
 
For potential impacts to riparian habitat, the project may be required to obtain a Section 1600 
Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. If it 
is determined that a SAA is required, the applicant shall obtain one and all terms and conditions 
of the SAA shall be complied with. 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
Public Services Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 
permit, a Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification, and if 
applicable, a United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement. The applicant 
shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department that they have implemented habitat 
restoration, rehabilitation, and/or replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. The 
applicant shall also demonstrate to the Public Services Department how they have, or intend to, 
comply with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the Section 401 water quality 
certification, and if applicable, the Biological Opinion and Section 1600 Streambed Alteration 
Agreement. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit documentation to the 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department and Public Services 
Department that they have obtained an Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 permit, a 
Regional Water Quality Control Board Section 401 water quality certification and if applicable, a 
CDFW Streambed Alteration Agreement and a USFWS Biological Opinion. The applicant shall 
also demonstrate that they have implemented habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. The applicant shall also demonstrate 
how they have complied with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the Section 

Packet Pg. 110

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 5 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

401 water quality certification, and if applicable, the CDFW Streambed Alteration Agreement 
and a Biological Opinion. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
City of Rocklin Public Services Department 
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
Regional Water Quality Control Board 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife 

  

Packet Pg. 111

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 6 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Biological Resources: 
 
To compensate for the removal of the oak trees on the project site, the following mitigation 
measure, agreed to by the applicant, is being applied to the project: 
 
IV.-4 Prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, the applicant shall: 
 
d) Clearly indicate on the construction documents that oak trees not scheduled for removal 
will be protected from construction activities in compliance with the pertinent sections of the 
City of Rocklin Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance. 
 
e) To mitigate for the removal of oak trees on the project site, the project arborist shall 
provide the following information: 

 
• The total number of surveyed oak trees; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed because they are sick or dying, and 
• The total, in inches, of the trunk diameters at breast height (TDBH) of all surveyed oak 

trees on the site in each of these categories. 
  

f) The applicant shall pay a fee to be deposited into the City of Rocklin Tree Preservation 
Fund. Payments shall be calculated using the following formula:  
 
Step 1: Trunk Diameter at Breast Height (TDBH) of all Surveyed Trees on the Site X 20% = 
Discount Diameter; 
 
Step 2: TDBH of all Surveyed Trees on the Site to be Removed – Discount Diameter = Total 
Number of Inches of TDBH of Replacement Trees Required, and 
 
Step 3: The applicant shall pay a fee of $48 per inch of TDBH of Replacement Trees Required. 
Such payments shall be made prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, 
with review and approval by the Economic and Community Development Director. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
Prior to any grading or construction activity, the applicant/developer shall prepare, subject to 
approval by the City’s Community Development Director, an oak tree mitigation plan which 
incorporates the steps noted above, including payment of necessary fees into the City’s Oak 
Tree Mitigation Fund. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department  

Packet Pg. 112

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 7 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

MITIGATION MEASURES: 
 

Cultural Resources: 
 
To address the potential of impacts to known cultural resources and the potential discovery of 
unknown cultural resources, the following mitigation measure, agreed to by the applicant, is 
being applied to the project: 
 
V.-1 If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of shell, charcoal, 
animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, structure/building remains) is made during 
project-related construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted 
and a qualified professional archaeologist, the Environmental Services Manager and the Native 
American Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. The archaeologist shall 
determine whether the resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique paleontological resource) and 
shall develop specific measures to ensure preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to 
the resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, logistics, technological 
considerations, the location of the find, and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation 
of the find is consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the project. Specific 
measures for significant or potentially significant resources would include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, preservation in place, in-field documentation, archival research, 
subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of measure necessary would be determined 
according to evidence indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner consistent with CEQA guidelines for 
preserving or otherwise mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  
 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human remains, there shall be no 
further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie 
adjacent human remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) and (2) 
of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, has occurred. If any 
human remains are discovered, all work shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the 
County Coroner shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety 
Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall also be notified. If the remains are Native 
American, the Coroner will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will 
inform a most likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the landowner 
appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, and the landowner shall comply 
with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 
 
IMPLEMENTATION: 
 
If evidence of undocumented cultural resources is discovered during grading or construction 
operations, ground disturbance in the area shall be halted and a qualified professional 
archaeologist, the City’s Environmental Services Manager and the Native American Heritage 

Packet Pg. 113

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 8 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. Other procedures as specifically noted in 
the mitigation measure shall also be followed and complied with. 
 
RESPONSIBILITY 
Applicant/Developer 
City of Rocklin Public Services Department (Environmental Services Manager) 
City of Rocklin Economic and Community Development Department 
Native American Heritage Commission 
  

Packet Pg. 114

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 9 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

 

MITIGATION MONITORING REPORT FORMS 
 
 
Project Title:   
 
 
Mitigation Measures:  
 
 
Completion Date: (Insert date or time period that mitigation measures were completed) 
 
Responsible Person:   
 
________________________________ 
(Insert name and title) 
 
Monitoring/Reporting: 
 
________________________________ 
Community Development Director 
 
Effectiveness Comments: 
 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

  

Packet Pg. 115

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 10 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

ATTACHMENT A – PROJECT VICINITY MAP  
 
 

 
  

Packet Pg. 116

Agenda Item #8.a.



Page 11 of 
Mitigated Negative Declaration/Mitigation Monitoring Program 
Reso No.  

ATTACHMENT B – PROJECT SITE PLAN  
 

 

Packet Pg. 117

Agenda Item #8.a.



PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION PC-2017- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW AND AN OAK TREE 

PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT 
 

(Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006/TRE2016-0003) 
 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A.  Design Review and an oak tree preservation plan permit (DR2016-
0006/TRE2016-0003) approves the development of a retail commercial center 
consisting of five buildings totaling approximately 36,688 square feet, including the site 
design, landscaping, and architecture on an approximately 6.6 acre site and allows the 
removal of 209 oak trees. Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 045-052-015, -019, -020, and -021. 
 

B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been approved for this Project via 
Planning Resolution No. PC-2017-__. 
 
 C. The design of the site is compatible with surrounding development, 
natural features and constraints. 
 
 D. The height, bulk, area, color scheme and materials of the buildings and 
structures are compatible with surrounding development. 
 
 E. The buildings and structures have been oriented with consideration 
given to minimizing energy consumption and maximizing use of natural lighting. 
 
 F. Adverse light and glare impacts upon adjoining properties have been 
eliminated or reduced to a less than significant level by consideration and modification 
of the location and height of light standards, orientation of exterior lighting fixtures, 
and conditioning the project to use light fixtures that will direct light downward. 
 
 G. The dimensions, placement, and design of the signs are compatible with 
the proposed buildings and structures and the surrounding development and 
environment. 
 
 H. The landscaping design is compatible with surrounding development and 
has been designed with provisions for minimizing water usage and maintenance needs. 
 

Packet Pg. 118

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No.  

 I. The parking design, including ingress and egress traffic patterns, is 
compatible with the surrounding development and the public street patterns. 
 
 J. The design of the site and buildings or structures is consistent with the 
goals, policies, and land use designations in the General Plan and with all zoning 
standards, regulations, and restrictions applicable to the property. 
 
 Section 2. The Design Review for the (Rocklin Station / DR2016-
0006/TRE2016-0003) as depicted in Exhibits A, B and C, attached hereto and by this 
reference incorporated herein, is hereby approved subject to the conditions listed 
below. Unless expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for 
satisfying each condition prior to occupancy of the structure. The approved Exhibits A, B 
and C shall govern the design and construction of the project. Any condition directly 
addressing an element incorporated into Exhibits A, B and C shall be controlling and 
shall modify Exhibits A, B and C. All other plans, specifications, details, and information 
contained within Exhibits A, B and C shall be specifically applicable to the project and 
shall be construed as if directly stated within the condition for approval. Unless 
expressly stated otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each 
condition prior to issuance of the building permit. The agency and / or City 
department(s) responsible for ensuring implementation of each condition is indicated in 
parenthesis with each condition. 
 
 A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 
 B. Conditions 
 
1. Utilities 
 

a. All utilities, including but not limited to water, sewer, telephone, gas, 
electricity, and conduit for cable television shall be provided to the 
project in compliance with all-applicable standards and requirements of 
the applicable provider. (APPLICABLE UTILITY) 

Packet Pg. 119

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No.  

b. The applicant shall install un-painted, split face CMU masonry trash 
enclosures with decorative masonry caps and solid metal gates, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. The 
locations and designs of the trash enclosures shall provide for a 
minimum clear width and gate opening of 11 feet, a minimum interior 
depth of 16 feet (to accommodate two trash bins and a grease rendering 
container) and gates designed to clear adjacent curbing, to the 
satisfaction of Ecology Auburn Placer. (PLANNING, RECOLOGY AUBURN 
PLACER) 

 
c.  Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the project shall be included in the 

appropriate City financing districts, as needed, to most efficiently provide 
for public maintenance of public landscaping, improvements such as 
sound walls, and provision of new or enhanced services such as street 
lighting to the satisfaction of the City Finance Manager (FINANCE, 
BUILDING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
2. Schools 
 

The following conditions shall be satisfied to mitigate the impact of the 
proposed development on school facilities (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, 
BUILDING): 
 
a. At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to 

the Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code 
section 17620 and Government Code Section 65995, to the satisfaction 
of the Rocklin Unified School District. 

 
b.   The above condition shall be waived by the City Council if the applicant 

and the District reach agreement to mitigate the impacts on the school 
facilities caused by the proposed development and jointly request in 
writing that the condition be waived. 

 
3. Fire 
 

a. Improvement plans shall show the location and size of fire hydrants and 
water mains in conformance with the standards and requirements of the 
Rocklin Fire Chief and PCWA. (PCWA, ENGINEERING, FIRE) 

 
b. Improvement plans shall reflect a looped water supply main to the 

satisfaction of the Rocklin Fire Chief and PCWA. (PCWA, ENGINEERING, 
FIRE) 

Packet Pg. 120

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 4 of 
Reso. No.  

4. Improvements / Improvement Plans 
 

Prior to any grading, site improvements, or other construction activities 
associated with this project improvement plans shall be prepared consistent 
with the exhibits and conditions incorporated as a part of this entitlement, and 
in compliance with all applicable city standards, for the review and approval of 
the City Engineer.  
 
Improvement plans shall be valid for a period of two years from date of approval 
by the City Engineer. If substantial work has not been commenced within that 
time, or if the work is not diligently pursued to completion thereafter, the City 
Engineer may require the improvement plans to be resubmitted and/or 
modified to reflect changes in the standard specifications or other 
circumstances.  
 
The project improvement plans shall include the following: 
 (ENGINEERING, PLANNING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 
a. A final Stormwater Control Plan and a detailed grading and drainage plan 

prepared by a registered civil engineer, in substantial compliance with 
the approved project exhibit(s) and in accord with the City of Rocklin 
Post-Construction Manual. The grading and drainage plan shall include 
the following: 

 
i) Stormwater Management  

 
1) Prior to issuance of improvement plans, to ensure 

compliance with the National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System MS4s General Permit and the 
regulations and orders of the State Water Resources 
Control Board, the applicant shall prepare and implement 
a Stormwater Management Facility Operation and 
Maintenance Plan for the on-site treatment systems and 
hydromodification controls, if any, or acceptable 
alternative to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and the 
Environmental Services Manager. All specified treatment 
systems and hydromodification controls shall be privately 
owned and maintained on a regular basis to ensure proper 
performance.  (BUILDING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 

2) Prior to issuance of improvement plans, unless waived by 
the City Engineer and Environmental Services Manager, 
the developer shall grant a Stormwater Management 
Compliance Easement over the project site to the City of 
Rocklin, in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. The 

Packet Pg. 121

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 5 of 
Reso. No.  

Stormwater Management Compliance Easement shall be 
recorded with the County Clerk’s office and a copy of the 
recorded document shall be provided to the 
Environmental Services division. Said easement shall 
provide for the following: (ENGINEERING, CITY ATTORNEY, 
BUILDING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 
 
i. Grant site access to City employees for the purpose 

of performing operations and maintenance 
inspections of the installed treatment system(s) 
and hydromodification control(s) (if any). 

ii. Grant site access to City employees for the purpose 
of performing operations and maintenance work 
on the installed treatment system(s) and 
hydromodification control(s) (if any) in the event 
that that the Director of Public Services 
determines, based upon the inspection results, 
that said work is not being performed adequately 
and has or will compromise the system’s ability to 
function as required. 

iii. A statement that the City may, at its option, cause 
the operational and maintenance responsibilities 
set forth in the Stormwater Management Facility 
Operation and Maintenance Plan to be performed 
and place a special assessment against the project 
site to recover the costs to the City in the event 
the project is not operated and maintained in 
accord with the approved Stormwater 
Management Facility Operation and Maintenance 
Plan.  (RMC §8.30.150). 

3) All storm drainage inlets shall be stamped with City 
Engineer approved wording indicating that dumping of 
waste is prohibited and identifying that the inlets drain 
into the creek system. 

4) Site design measures for detaining run off at pre-
development levels, including location and specifications 
of on-site or off-site detention basins, if any. 

5) Individual lot drainage management areas including 
individual drainage features, such as lined drainage 
swales. 

6) The developer shall prepare a Storm Water Pollutant 
Protections Plan (SWPPP) for review and approval by the 

Packet Pg. 122

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 6 of 
Reso. No.  

State Regional Water Quality Control Board as part of the 
project’s drainage improvement plans. 

 ii) Prior to the commencement of grading operations, and if the 
project site will not balance with respect to grading, the 
contractor shall identify the site where any excess earthen 
material shall be deposited. If the deposit site is within the City of 
Rocklin, the contractor shall submit a report issued by a technical 
engineer to verify that the exported materials are suitable for the 
intended fill and show proof of all approved grading plans. Haul 
routes to be used shall be specified. If the site requires importing 
of earthen material, then prior to the commencement of grading 
operations, the contractor shall identify the site where the 
imported earthen material is coming from and the contractor 
shall submit a report issued by a technical engineer to verify that 
the imported materials are suitable for the intended fill and show 
proof of all approved grading plans. Haul routes to be used shall 
be specified. (ENGINEERING) 

 
iii) If at any time during the course of grading or construction 

activities evidence of the existence of old wells, septic systems or 
other similar features is encountered, work shall be halted within 
100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be 
notified. The City Engineer shall make a determination as to the 
nature of the feature (or features), the appropriate size for a 
buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on 
the balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should 
be notified and involved in addressing and/or remediation of the 
feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 
applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to 
assess and characterize the feature and to determine appropriate 
remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be 
completed and documented to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to 
completion of grading/construction in the affected area. 

 
b. All on-site standard improvements, including but not limited to:  

 
i) Paving, curbs (including concrete curbs to contain all landscape 

areas adjacent to vehicle parking areas or travel lanes), gutters, 
sidewalks, drainage improvements, irrigation improvements 
(main lines and distribution where located under paved areas), 
utility improvements, parking lot and site lights, fire hydrants, 

Packet Pg. 123

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 7 of 
Reso. No.  

retaining walls, fences, pilasters, enhanced pavement treatments, 
trash enclosures, etc.  

 
ii) All necessary easements for drainage, access, utilities, etc. shall 

be shown and offered for dedication (or Irrevocable Offer of 
Dedication provided) with the improvement plans.  

 
iii) To the extent possible underground facilities such as but not 

limited to electrical, gas, water, drainage, and irrigation lines shall 
be located outside of or to the edge of areas designated for 
landscaping so as to minimize impacts to the viability of these 
areas.  

 
iv) Rough grading, erosion control, and hydroseeding (with a drought 

tolerant mix of wild flowers and grasses), as deemed appropriate 
by the City Engineer, for all areas disturbed by grading of the 
project site but not developed. 

 
c. A detailed parking lot striping plan designed per City standards, which 

indicates all parking spaces, aisles, entrances, and exits in substantial 
conformance with Exhibit A. (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 

 
d. The following on-site special improvements: 
 

i) Six-foot tall tubular steel fencing shall be constructed in lieu of 
chain link fencing shown to be located on top of the retaining 
walls along the southern property boundary of the project site in 
Exhibit A. Said tubular steel fencing shall be constructed of 
medium gauge steel or aluminum, or approved equivalent, and 
be powder coated black or dark bronze in color. (ENGINEERING, 
PLANNING) 

 
ii) Retaining walls shall be constructed of decorative, split face CMU, 

or approved equivalent. (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 
iii) Speed tables (traffic calming devices) as shown on Exhibit A with 

contrasting or decorative pavement treatment between the 
speed tables. 

 
e. The following off-site improvements: 
 

i) A traffic signal shall be installed at the intersection of the project 
entrance, Schriber Way, and Sierra College Boulevard to the 
satisfaction of the City Engineer.  Said signal design shall provide 

Packet Pg. 124

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 8 of 
Reso. No.  

for the coordination of the operation of the new signal with other 
nearby traffic signals. 

 
f. Improvement plans shall include landscape and irrigation plans for the 

installation of off-site landscaping in the public right-of-way along Sierra 
College Boulevard, if any, adjacent to the project. The off-site landscape 
and irrigation plans shall comply with Condition 6 below. 
 
Existing City or Caltrans right-of-way landscaping including the irrigation 
system, if any, damaged during construction of the project’s  
improvements shall be fully restored to its pre-project condition, to the 
satisfaction of Caltrans and/or the Directors of Economic & Community 
Development and Public Services.  (CALTRANS, PLANNING, PUBLIC 
SERVICES) 

 
g. All rights-of-way associated with the project improvements shall be 

offered by separate instrument prior to issuance of a building permit; 
provided that the following shall be offered by means of an irrevocable 
offer of dedication:  Sierra College Boulevard right-of-way. 

 
h. Prior to any grading or construction activities including issuance of 

improvement plans, the developer shall submit a design-level soil 
investigation for the review and approval of the City Engineer and Chief 
Building Official that evaluates soil and rock conditions, particularly the 
potential for expansive soils. The professional engineer that prepared the 
soil investigation shall recommend appropriate roadway construction 
and foundation techniques and other best practices that are to be 
implemented by the project during construction. These techniques and 
practices shall address expansive soils or other geological concerns 
requiring remediation, including but not limited to:  

 
• Recommendations for building pad and footing construction; 
• Use of soil stabilizers or other additives; and 
• Recommendations for surface drainage. 

 
i. Provisions for dust control, re-vegetation of disturbed areas, and erosion 

control, in conformance with the requirements of the City of Rocklin, 
including but not limited to the following (which shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans): 
 
i) The prime contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive 

inventory (e.g., make, model, year, emission rating) of all the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment (50 horsepower or greater) that 
will be used in aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction 
project.  If any new equipment is added after submission of the 

Packet Pg. 125

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 9 of 
Reso. No.  

inventory, the prime contractor shall contact the District prior to 
the new equipment being utilized. At least three business days 
prior to the use of subject heavy-duty off-road equipment, the 
project representative shall provide the District with the 
anticipated construction timeline including start date, name, and 
phone number of the property owner, project manager, and on-
site foreman. 

ii) During construction the contractor shall utilize existing power 
sources (e.g., power poles) or clean fuel (e.g., gasoline, biodiesel, 
natural gas) generators to minimize the use of temporary diesel 
power generators. 

iii) During construction, the contractor shall minimize idling time to a 
maximum of 5 minutes for all diesel powered equipment. 

iv) Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 15 
mph or less. 

v) All grading operations shall be suspended when fugitive dust 
emissions exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for having an individual who 
is CARB-certified to perform Visible Emissions Evaluations (VEE).  
This individual shall evaluate compliance with Rule 228 on a 
weekly basis. 

vi) Fugitive dust emissions shall not exceed 40% opacity and shall not 
go beyond the property boundary at any time. If lime or other 
drying agents are utilized to dry out wet grading areas, the 
developer shall ensure such agents are controlled so as not to 
exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations. 

vii) The prime contractor shall be responsible for keeping adjacent 
public thoroughfares clean of silt, dirt, mud, and debris, and shall 
“wet broom” the streets (or use another method to control dust 
as approved by the individual jurisdiction) if silt, dirt mud or 
debris is carried over to adjacent public thoroughfares. 

viii) The prime contractor shall suspend all grading operations when 
wind speeds (including instantaneous gusts) are excessive and 
dust is impacting adjacent properties. 

ix) The contractor shall apply water or use other method to control 
dust impacts offsite.  Construction vehicles leaving the site shall 
be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being 
released or tracked off-site. 

x) All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean 
condition. 

xi) Chemical soil stabilizers, vegetative mats, or other appropriate 
best management practices, in accordance with manufacturers’ 
specifications, shall be applied to all-inactive construction areas 
(previously graded areas which remain inactive for 96 hours). 

xii) All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 

Packet Pg. 126

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 10 of 
Reso. No.  

xiii) If fill dirt is brought to or exported from the construction site, 
tarps or soil stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to 
minimize dust problems. 

xiv) Water shall be applied to control fugitive dust, as needed, to 
prevent impacts offsite. Operational water trucks shall be onsite 
to control fugitive dust. Construction vehicles leaving the site 
shall be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being 
released or tracked off-site. 

xv) Processes that discharge 2 pounds per day or more of air 
contaminants, as defined by California State Health and Safety 
Code Section 39013, to the atmosphere may require a permit.  
Developers / Contractors should contact the PCAPCD prior to 
construction or use of equipment and obtain any necessary 
permits. 

xvi) In order to minimize wind driven dust during construction, the 
prime contractor shall apply methods such as surface 
stabilization, establishment of a vegetative cover, paving, (or use 
another method to control dust as approved by the City).  

xvii) Construction equipment exhaust emissions shall not exceed 
Placer County APCD Rule 202 Visible Emission limitations.  
Operators of vehicles and equipment found to exceed opacity 
limits are to be immediately notified by APCD to cease operations 
and the equipment must be repaired within 72 hours. 

xviii) Open burning of any kind shall be prohibited.  All removed 
vegetative material shall be either chipped on site or taken to an 
appropriate recycling site, or if a site is not available, a licensed 
disposal site. 

xix) Any diesel powered equipment used during project construction 
shall be Air Resources Board (ARB) certified. 

 
j. The following noise conditions shall be included in the notes on the face 

of the improvement plans: (ENGINEERING) 
 
i) All “self-powered” construction equipment and stationary noise 

sources (e.g. pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be equipped 
with noise control devices (e.g. mufflers). (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING) 
 

ii) Equipment “warm-up” areas, water storage tanks, equipment 
storage areas, and stationary noise-generating machinery (e.g. 
pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be located away from the 
existing residences and other sensitive noise receptors to the 
extent feasible. (ENGINEERING, BUILDING) 
 

Packet Pg. 127

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 11 of 
Reso. No.  

iii) All phases of project development shall be subject to the City of 
Rocklin Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting 
construction-related noise generating activities within or near 
residential areas to between 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on 
weekdays, between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekends. The 
Economic and Community Development Director may grant 
exceptions to the Construction Noise Guidelines if, in the opinion 
of the Economic and Community Development Director, special 
and unusual circumstances exist that make strict adherence to 
the Construction Noise Guidelines infeasible. (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING) 

 
k. The following cultural resource condition shall be included in the project 

notes on the improvement plans, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer: 
 
If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual amounts of 
shell, charcoal, animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, burned soil, 
structure/building remains) is made during project-related construction 
activities, ground disturbances in the area of the find shall be halted and 
a qualified professional archaeologist, the Environmental Services 
Manager and the Native American Heritage Commission shall be notified 
regarding the discovery. The archaeologist shall determine whether the 
resource is potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a 
historical resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique 
paleontological resource) and shall develop specific measures to ensure 
preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to the resource if it 
cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, logistics, technological 
considerations, the location of the find, and the extent to which 
avoidance and/or preservation of the find is consistent or inconsistent 
with the design and objectives of the project. Specific measures for 
significant or potentially significant resources would include, but are not 
necessarily limited to, preservation in place, in-field documentation, 
archival research, subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of 
measure necessary would be determined according to evidence 
indicating degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner consistent 
with CEQA guidelines for preserving or otherwise mitigating impacts to 
archaeological and cultural artifacts.  
 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any human 
remains, there shall be no further excavation or disturbance of the site 
or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie adjacent human 
remains, until compliance with the provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) 
and (2) of the CEQA Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 
5097.98, has occurred. If any human remains are discovered, all work 

Packet Pg. 128

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 12 of 
Reso. No.  

shall stop in the immediate vicinity of the find and the County Coroner 
shall be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health and 
Safety Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall also be 
notified. If the remains are Native American, the Coroner will notify the 
Native American Heritage Commission, which in turn will inform a most 
likely descendant. The descendant will then recommend to the 
landowner appropriate disposition of the remains and any grave goods, 
and the landowner shall comply with the requirements of AB2641 
(2006). {MM V.-1} (ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, ENGINEERING) 
 

l. The following biological resource condition shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans, to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer: 

 
Prior to the start of grading or construction activities to occur within the 
nesting season, the applicant shall submit documentation of a survey for 
nesting raptors and migratory to the City’s Public Services and Economic 
and Community Development Departments. If the survey results are 
negative, no further mitigation is required. If the survey results are 
positive, the biologist shall consult with the City and the California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife as detailed below. 
 
The applicant/developer shall attempt to time the removal of potential 
nesting habitat for raptors and migratory birds to avoid the nesting 
season (February - August).  
 
If tree and vegetation removal and/or project grading or activities occur 
during the nesting season for raptors and migratory birds (February-
August), the developer and/or contractor shall hire a qualified biologist 
approved by the City to conduct pre-construction surveys no more than 
14 days prior to initiation of tree and vegetation removal activities. The 
survey shall cover all areas of suitable nesting habitat within 500 feet of 
project activity and shall be valid for one construction season. Prior to 
the start of tree and vegetation removal activities, documentation of the 
survey shall be provided to the City of Rocklin Public Services 
Department and if the survey results are negative, no further mitigation 
is required and necessary structure removal may proceed. If there is a 
break in demolition activity of more than 14 days, then subsequent 
surveys shall be conducted. 
 
If the survey results are positive (active nests are found), impacts shall be 
avoided by the establishment of appropriate buffers. The biologist shall 
consult with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and 
the City to determine the size of an appropriate buffer area (CDFW 
guidelines recommend implementation of 500-foot buffers). Monitoring 

Packet Pg. 129

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 13 of 
Reso. No.  

of the nest by a qualified biologist may be required if the activity has the 
potential to adversely affect an active nest. 
 
If construction activities are scheduled to occur during the non-breeding 
season (September- January), a survey is not required and no further 
studies are necessary. {MM IV-1.} (ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, 
ENGINEERING) 
 

m. The following biological resource conditions shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans, to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer: 

 
Prior to any grading or construction activity and during construction 
activities, the applicant/developer shall implement the following 
avoidance measures during construction activities to protect the 
elderberry shrub and Valley Longhorn Elderberry Beetle (VELB): 
 
i) The area around the elderberry shrub to be avoided during 

construction activities will be fenced and/or flagged as close to 
construction limits as feasible. 

ii) Where feasible, ground disturbing activities will not encroach 
within 20 feet from the dripline of an elderberry shrub. 

iii) A qualified biologist will provide training for all contractors, work 
crews, and any onsite personnel on the status of the VELB, its 
host plant and habitat, the need to avoid damaging the 
elderberry shrub, and the possible penalties for noncompliance. 

iv) A qualified biologist will monitor the work area at project 
appropriate intervals to assure that all avoidance and 
minimization measures are implemented. 

v) As feasible, all activities that could occur within 165 feet of an 
elderberry shrub will be conducted outside of the flight season of 
the VELB (March - July). 

vi) Trimming, if required (unlikely due to the declining health of the 
elderberry shrub) will occur between November and February 
and will avoid the removal of any branches or stems that are ≥ 1 
inch in diameter. Measures to address regular and/or large scale 
maintenance (trimming), if necessary, should be established in 
consultation with the USFWS. 

vii) Herbicides will not be used within the drip-line of the elderberry 
shrub. Insecticides will not be used within 30 meters (98 feet) of 
an elderberry shrub. All chemicals will be applied using a 
backpack sprayer or similar direct application method. 

viii) Mechanical weed removal within the drip-line of the shrub will be 
limited to the season when adults are not active (August - 

Packet Pg. 130

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 14 of 
Reso. No.  

February) and will avoid damaging the elderberry shrub. {MM IV-
2.} (ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, ENGINEERING) 

 
n. The following biological resource condition shall be included in the 

project notes on the improvement plans, to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer: 

 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the appropriate Section 
404 permit will need to be acquired for any project-related impacts to 
waters of the U.S. Any waters of the U.S. that would be lost or disturbed 
should be replaced or rehabilitated on a “no-net-loss” basis in 
accordance with the Corps’ mitigation guidelines. Habitat restoration, 
rehabilitation, and/or replacement should be at a location and by 
methods agreeable to the Corps. In association with the Section 404 
permit and prior to the issuance of improvement plans, a Section 401 
water quality certification from the Regional Water Quality Control Board 
and a USFWS Biological Opinion (if determined necessary) shall be 
obtained. All terms and conditions of said permits shall be complied with. 
 
For potential impacts to riparian habitat, the project may be required to 
obtain a Section 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement (SAA) from the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife. If it is determined that a SAA 
is required, the applicant shall obtain one and all terms and conditions of 
the SAA shall be complied with. 

 
Prior to any grading or construction activities, the applicant shall submit 
documentation to the Economic and Community Development 
Department and Public Services Department that they have obtained an 
Army Corps of Engineers Section 404 permit, a Regional Water Quality 
Control Board Section 401 water quality certification, and if applicable, a 
United States Fish and Wildlife Service Biological Opinion and a California 
Department of Fish and Wildlife Section 1600 Streambed Alteration 
Agreement. The applicant shall also demonstrate to the Economic and 
Community Development Department and Public Services Department 
that they have implemented habitat restoration, rehabilitation, and/or 
replacement as stipulated in their Section 404 permit. The applicant shall 
also demonstrate to the Economic and Community Development 
Department and Public Services Department how they have, or intend 
to, comply with the terms and conditions of the Section 404 permit, the 
Section 401 water quality certification, and if applicable, the Biological 
Opinion and Section 1600 Streambed Alteration Agreement. {MM IV-3.} 
(ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, ENGINEERING) 

 

Packet Pg. 131

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 15 of 
Reso. No.  

o. The following biological resource conditions shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans, to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer: 
 
Prior to the issuance of improvement plans or grading permits, the 
applicant shall: 

 
i) Clearly indicate on the construction documents that oak trees not 

scheduled for removal will be protected from construction 
activities in compliance with the pertinent sections of the City of 
Rocklin Oak Tree Preservation Ordinance. 

 
ii) To mitigate for the removal of oak trees on the project site, the 

project arborist shall provide the following information: 
 
• The total number of surveyed oak trees; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed; 
• The total number of oak trees to be removed because 

they are sick or dying, and 
• The total, in inches, of the trunk diameters at breast 

height (TDBH) of all surveyed oak trees on the site in each 
of these categories. 

  
iii) The applicant shall pay a fee to be deposited into the City of 

Rocklin Tree Preservation Fund. Payments shall be calculated 
using the following formula:  

 
Step 1:  Trunk Diameter at Breast Height (TDBH) of all 

Surveyed Trees on the Site X 20% = Discount Diameter; 
 
Step 2:  TDBH of all Surveyed Trees on the Site to be Removed 

– Discount Diameter = Total Number of Inches of TDBH 
of Replacement Trees Required, and 

 
Step 3:  The applicant shall pay a fee of $48 per inch of TDBH 

of Replacement Trees Required. Such payments shall 
be made prior to the issuance of improvement plans 
or grading permits, with review and approval by the 
Economic and Community Development Director. 
{MM IV-4.} (ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, PLANNING, 
ENGINEERING) 

Packet Pg. 132

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 16 of 
Reso. No.  

5. Special Requirements 
 

a. Prior to issuance of improvement plans the applicant/ developer shall 
enter into an agreement with the City to pay the City of Rocklin an 
amount sufficient to cover the fair share cost for the City to hire a Traffic 
Engineer to prepare a report with recommended signal timing and 
operations to ensure that operations and traffic flow are optimized 
among and between the following intersections: 
 

 
 Sierra College Boulevard / Granite Drive 
 Sierra College Boulevard / the Caltrans I-80 on- and off-ramps 
 Sierra College Boulevard / Crossings Drive 
 Schriber Way / Sierra College Boulevard 
 Sierra College Boulevard / Commons Drive 
 Sierra College Boulevard / Bass Pro Drive/Dominguez Road 

 
(ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
b. Prior to issuance of improvement plans the applicant/ developer shall 

enter into an agreement with the City to pay the City of Rocklin an 
annual amount sufficient to cover the fair share cost for the City to hire a 
Traffic Engineer for a period of eighteen months to monitor traffic 
movements on Sierra College Boulevard between Granite Drive and Bass 
Pro Drive / Dominguez Road, including each of the intersections 
referenced in Condition 5.a. The required monitoring shall provide 
quarterly reports on traffic operations for this street segment to the City 
Engineer following the installation and operation of the new signal at 
Schriber Way / Sierra College Boulevard and the opening for business of 
all major tenants (Cracker Barrel, Chick fil a, Del Taco, Habit Burger, and 
Les Schwab) or at such other time as the City Engineer determines that 
the monitoring should begin. Said reports shall include documentation of 
traffic movements and make specific recommendations for adjustments 
to signal timing and other improvements to optimize traffic flow. The 
reports monitoring traffic movements in this  corridor shall be provided 
on a quarterly basis for  eighteen months after commencement or until 
such time as the City Engineer determines traffic from the project has 
stabilized, whichever occurs first. (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, CITY 
ATTORNEY) 

 
c. Prior to issuance of improvement plans the applicant/ developer shall 

enter into a reimbursement agreement (approximately 50%) with the 
City to pay the City of Rocklin an amount sufficient to cover the full cost 
for future construction of Sierra College Boulevard widening/frontage 
improvements, including a third southbound lane, bike lane, 12 feet of 

Packet Pg. 133

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 17 of 
Reso. No.  

auxiliary/right turn lane and curb, gutter, sidewalk along the Lifehouse 
Church property (APN 045-052-029) to the existing Dominguez Road 
extension, to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and Director of Public 
Services. (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
d. Prior to issuance of improvement plans the applicant/ developer shall 

enter into a reimbursement agreement (approximately 50%) with the 
City to pay the City of Rocklin an amount sufficient to cover the full cost 
for future construction of an EVA or secondary access, including grading 
and a 24 foot wide all weather surface, across the Lifehouse Church 
property (APN 045-052-029) to the existing Dominguez Road extension, 
to the satisfaction of the City Engineer and Director of Public Services. 
(ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES, CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
6. Improvements in the Public Right-of-Way 

 
The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for all improvements within 
the public right-of-way. Applicant shall post a performance bond and labor and 
materials payment bond (or other equivalent financial security) in the amount of 
100% of the cost of the improvements to be constructed in the public right-of-
way as improvement security to ensure the faithful performance of all duties 
and obligations required of applicant in the construction of the improvements. 
Such improvement security shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney. 
Such security shall be either a corporate surety bond, a letter of credit, or other 
instrument of credit issued by a banking institution subject to regulation by the 
State or Federal government and pledging that the funds necessary to carry out 
this Agreement are on deposit and guaranteed for payment, or a cash deposit 
made either directly with the City or deposited with a recognized escrow agent 
for the benefit of the City. (PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
7. Landscaping 
 
 a. Final landscape plans shall be provided by the developer and approved 

by the Director of Economic and Community Development. The 
landscape plans shall comply with the following requirements: 
(PLANNING) 

 
i) The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect 

and shall include: 
 

1) A legend of the common and botanical names of specific 
plant materials to be used. The legend should indicate the 
container size of plant materials, the size at maturity, and 
include a graphic symbol for each plant type: 

 

Packet Pg. 134

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 18 of 
Reso. No.  

Shrubs shall be a minimum of five (5) gallon and trees a 
minimum of fifteen (15) gallon and meet the minimum 
height specified by the American Standards for Nursery 
Stock. Groundcover spacing shall be sufficient to achieve 
adequate cover upon establishment of the plants. 
 

2) A section diagram of proposed tree staking. 
 
3) An irrigation plan including an automatic irrigation system. 

The plan shall include drip irrigation wherever possible. 
 
4) Along the public right-of-way and freeway off-ramp, 

berming of landscape strips or the installation of dense 
shrubs to screen the undercarriages of vehicles as viewed 
from off-site. 

 
5) Documentation and verification that the proposed parking 

lot landscaping will achieve 50% shading at maturity (15 
years from planting) or project plans shall be modified to 
provide for 1 parking lot shade tree to be located every 5 
parking spaces, to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director. 

 
6) Granite boulders or rough cut granite slabs to coordinate 

with the art installation within internal landscape planters 
and along Sierra College Boulevard. 

 
7) A pedestrian trellis as shown in Exhibit A through the 

parking lot constructed of metal or other durable, low-
maintenance material. 

 
8) Vines planted at the base of each of the trellis supports. 
 
9) Vines planted at the base of each green screen to 

adequately cover the green screen. 
 
10) Trailing groundcover along the top of the retaining walls. 
 
11) Two or more ADA compliant benches constructed of metal 

or other durable, low maintenance material at the art 
plaza. 

 
12) A tree and planter area at the front of the automotive use 

building as shown on the black and white plan in Exhibit A. 
 

Packet Pg. 135

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 19 of 
Reso. No.  

13) A minimum of 15 (3  containers per building) container 
plantings shall be placed throughout the project with 
appropriate irrigation systems. Said containers shall be 
decorative stoneware (i.e. terra cotta, concrete, etc.) in a 
variety of sizes but with a minimum size of no less than 15 
gallons. The containers shall be planted with a varied mix 
of plant materials to achieve a layered and attractive 
appearance. The locations and irrigation systems for said 
containers shall be indicated on the landscape plans and 
shall be installed prior to occupancy of the adjacent 
building to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
14) Prior to issuance of construction landscape and irrigation 

plans for the westerly most portion of the project site said 
landscape plans shall be revised to indicate the location of 
the existing elderberry shrub, and provide for a 20 foot 
fenced protective buffer area around the shrub.  Fencing 
shall consist of metal post and steel cable fencing to 
delineate the exclusion area of the elderberry shrub. 

 
15) The following biological resource conditions shall be 

included as project notes on the landscape plans, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director:  

 
Prior to any grading, construction activity, or landscaping 
and during such activities, the applicant/developer shall 
implement the following avoidance measures to protect 
the elderberry shrub and Valley Longhorn Elderberry 
Beetle (VELB): 

 
a) The area around the elderberry shrub to be avoided 

during construction activities will be fenced and/or 
flagged as close to construction limits as feasible. 

b) Where feasible, ground disturbing activities will not 
encroach within 20 feet from the dripline of an 
elderberry shrub. 

c) A qualified biologist will provide training for all 
contractors, work crews, and any onsite personnel on 
the status of the VELB, its host plant and habitat, the 
need to avoid damaging the elderberry shrub, and the 
possible penalties for noncompliance. 

d) A qualified biologist will monitor the work area at 
project appropriate intervals to assure that all 

Packet Pg. 136

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 20 of 
Reso. No.  

avoidance and minimization measures are 
implemented. 

e) As feasible, all activities that could occur within 165 
feet of an elderberry shrub will be conducted outside 
of the flight season of the VELB (March - July). 

f) Trimming, if required (unlikely due to the declining 
health of the elderberry shrub) will occur between 
November and February and will avoid the removal of 
any branches or stems that are ≥ 1 inch in diameter. 
Measures to address regular and/or large scale 
maintenance (trimming), if necessary, should be 
established in consultation with the USFWS. 

g) Herbicides will not be used within the drip-line of the 
elderberry shrub. Insecticides will not be used within 
30 meters (98 feet) of an elderberry shrub. All 
chemicals will be applied using a backpack sprayer or 
similar direct application method. 

h) Mechanical weed removal within the drip-line of the 
shrub will be limited to the season when adults are not 
active (August - February) and will avoid damaging the 
elderberry shrub. {MM IV-2.} (ENVIRONMENTAL 
SERVICES, ENGINEERING) 

 
ii) Chinese Pistache trees shall not be substituted for any of the 

approved tree species due to their invasive qualities and the 
project’s proximity to Secret Ravine Creek. 

 
iii) The plan shall be certified by the landscape architect that the 

landscape plan meets the requirements of the water 
Conservation and Landscaping Act. Government Code §65591, et 
seq. 
 

b. The parking lot lighting plan shall be designed to accommodate shade 
trees and provide for illumination of the parking areas. Light standards 
and underground utilities shall be located such that required parking lot 
shade trees can still be planted. 
 

c. All landscaping shall be installed and the landscape architect shall certify, 
in writing, that the landscaping and irrigation system have been installed 
in full compliance with the approved plans prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. (PLANNING) 

 
8. Landscaping Maintenance Agreement 

 

Packet Pg. 137

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 21 of 
Reso. No.  

Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy for the first building, the 
property owner shall enter into an agreement with the City of Rocklin providing 
for the maintenance of landscaping within the public right-of-way along Sierra 
College Boulevard, if any.  The agreement shall stipulate that the City of Rocklin 
shall maintain the irrigation system and the property owner shall maintain all 
plant materials. The agreement shall also indemnify the City against claims 
arising from developer’s activities and shall be recorded and binding on 
successors in interest of the developer. (ENGINEERING, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
9. Architecture 
 

a. All wall-mounted mechanical equipment and conduit shall be color-
matched to the adjacent building color to minimize its visibility, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(PLANNING) 

 
b. The back or rear of any parapet wall that may be visible from an adjacent 

right-of-way or property shall be painted the same color as the front of 
the parapet wall to provide a more finished appearance. (PLANNING) 

 
c. The architecture of the buildings, including finishes and details, shall be 

in substantial conformance with Exhibit A. (PLANNING) 
 
10. Lighting 

 
The lighting design plan shall be approved by the Economic and Community 
Development Director for compliance with this condition. (PLANNING) 
 
a. All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed to avoid adverse glare 

on adjacent properties and to incorporate “dark sky” provisions. Cut-off 
decorative lighting fixtures, or equivalent, shall be used for parking lot 
and building mounted lighting and mounted such that all light is 
projected directly toward the ground. 
 

b. Wall packs shall only be used at the rear of buildings and in service areas 
that are not visible from a public right-of-way or vantage point. 

 
c. The photometric plan shall be reviewed and revised if needed to avoid 

“hot spots” under the parking lot lights and to eliminate light spill over 
the property lines that exceeds 0.1 foot candles. 

 
d. Light poles shall be a maximum of 20’ in height as measured from grade 

to the top of the light fixture itself. 
 

Packet Pg. 138

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 22 of 
Reso. No.  

e. The up-lighting of the public art installation shall be mounted in-ground 
(flush) and/or shielded so that the light source and any glare is shielded 
from the entry driveway and Sierra College Boulevard and so that the 
light is projected onto the art installation only. 

11. Signs 
 

All signs shall conform with the sign designs and locations as shown in Exhibit B 
and as modified herein, and as needed to comply with the requirements of the 
Design Review Guidelines Criteria for signs and the Sign Ordinance of the City of 
Rocklin. (PLANNING) 
 
a. All freestanding signs shall be located outside of any public utility 

easements.  
 
b. Prior to building permit issuance for the first building, the freestanding 

entry sign shall be modified to include the project site addresses to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director and 
Fire Chief. (FIRE, PLANNING)  

 
c. All building mounted signage shall consist of individual internally 

illuminated or halo illuminated letters and logos. Backer boards shall be 
allowed if they contribute to the overall appearance and message of the 
sign. 

 
d. Shops Building: Building mounted sign locations on the north and west 

elevations shall conform to Exhibits A and B. 
 
12. Screening of Mechanical Equipment 

 
a. All mechanical equipment, whether ground- or roof -mounted, shall be 

screened from view from all public rights-of-way and the design of the 
screening shall be in harmony with the architectural design of the 
building, to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
b. The appearance of large utility features such as double detector check 

valves shall be minimized through the use of utility blankets or other 
acceptable screening methods. The developer shall also demonstrate 
that these facilities have been moved as far as possible from the public 
right-of-way. (PLANNING) 

 
13. Outdoor Seating 
 

a. Prior to establishing, enlarging or modifying any outdoor seating area, 
the property owner shall present a detailed dimensioned plan of the 

Packet Pg. 139

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 23 of 
Reso. No.  

outdoor seating area, including the number of chairs and tables, 
provisions for access, fencing, screening, and for providing shade for 
patrons to the Economic and Community Development Director for 
review and approval.  (PLANNING) 

 
b. If an enclosure is needed or proposed, decorative tubular steel fencing 

and/or container plantings shall be used to delineate outdoor seating 
areas to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development 
Director. (PLANNING) 

 
c. Decorative and sturdy metal outdoor furniture which compliments the 

buildings and environment created for the area shall be used in all 
outdoor seating areas to the satisfaction of the Economic and 
Community Development Director. No plastic furniture shall be 
permitted. (PLANNING) 

 
d. The materials, color, design, and style of outdoor furniture (e.g. benches, 

trash cans, bicycle racks and lockers, etc.) used outside of patio seating 
areas shall be consistent throughout the center. 

 
e. Incidental logos and lettering on umbrellas are permitted subject to 

compliance with the Sign Ordinance. 
 
14. Public Art Installation 
 

Prior to certificate of occupancy of the first building, the Parks, Recreation, and 
Arts Commission approved public art installation shall be installed as shown in 
Exhibit A. (PARKS & RECREATION, PLANNING, BUILDING) 

 
15. Air Quality 

 
a. Electrical receptacles shall be installed in the exterior walls of the 

building(s) in this project to promote the use of electrical landscaping 
equipment. (BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 
b. Low nitrous oxide (NOx) natural gas hot water heaters shall be installed if 

gas hot water heaters are to be used in this project. (BUILDING, 
PLANNING) 

 
16. Security 
 

a. Prior to building permit issuance, the applicant shall prepare a security 
plan for review by the Rocklin Police Department, and shall provide the 
Rocklin Police Department with the names and telephone numbers of a 
responsible party to contact. (PLANNING, POLICE) 

Packet Pg. 140

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 24 of 
Reso. No.  

 
b. Prior to building occupancy of each building, the property owner shall 

obtain and maintain at all times, an Alarm System Permit for each 
security system installed and operated in the center, if any, in accord 
with the requirements of Chapter 9.44 of the Rocklin Municipal Code.  
(POLICE) 

 
17. Phasing 

 
If the project is to be phased, a phasing plan showing the sequence of site 
improvements shall be submitted for review and approval by the Economic and 
Community Development Director. The Economic and Community Development 
Director may condition the phasing to ensure each phase shall function 
independently. Landscaping along the entire street frontage may be required for 
design continuity and consistency of plant growth. (PLANNING, BUILDING) 

 
 18. Monitoring 

 
Prior to any grading on the property, developer shall deposit with the City of 
Rocklin the current fee to pay for the City’s time and material cost to administer 
the Mitigation Monitoring Program. The Economic and Community 
Development Director shall determine if and when additional deposits must be 
paid for administering the Mitigation Monitoring Program, including additional 
deposits on subsequent phases of construction. These amounts shall be paid 
prior construction of additional phases on this project. (PLANNING) 

  
19. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 
 

Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the developer shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to 
indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its 
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the 
City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an approval of the entitlement by the 
City’s planning commission or City Council, which action is brought within the 
time period provided for in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City 
will promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and 
the City will cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 
waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, plan 
checking or inspections related to the subdivision or parcel map shall be 
performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed 
within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 141

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 25 of 
Reso. No.  

20. Validity 
 
a. This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless 

prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension 
has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
b. This entitlement shall not be considered valid and approved unless and 

until the concurrent Conditional Use Permit (U2016-0005) and Tentative 
Parcel Map (DL2016-0003) have been approved. (PLANNING) 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of August, 2017, by the following roll call 
vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
       
Secretary 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Rocklin Station\Meeting Packets\PC 8-10-17\03 Rocklin Station PC reso DR2016-0006 - final.doc 

Packet Pg. 142

Agenda Item #8.b.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No.  

EXHIBIT A 
 

Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006 
 

Design Review Documents are available at the Economic & Community Development 
Department 

Packet Pg. 143

Agenda Item #8.b.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DR2016-0006



P
acket P

g. 1
4

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
4

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
5

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
6

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
7

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
8

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 1
9

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
0

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



Page 1 of Exhibit B 
to Reso. No.  

EXHIBIT B 
 

Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006 
 

Design Review Documents are available at the Economic & Community Development 
Department 

Packet Pg. 218

Agenda Item #8.b.



P
acket P

g. 2
1

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DR2016-0006



P
acket P

g. 2
2

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
2

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

1

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

00/00/00 DESIGNER

SITE PLAN

NOTED

1 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

OVERALL SITE PLAN
SCALE:   1” = 100’-0”

03/10/16 TT

SEE DETAIL ON SHEET 2

P
acket P

g. 2
2

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



SITE PLAN DETAIL
SCALE:   1” = 50’-0”

00/00/00 DESIGNER

SITE PLAN (DETAIL)

NOTED

2 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

A1

B2D1 C1 B1

D2

A1

A2

KEY 

B2

D1

C1

B1

S/F 3’-2 5/8” X 12’-10” DUAL LIT CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN

S/F 4’-3 3/8” X 12’-10” DUAL LIT CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN

S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 6’-5 3/4” X 8’-0” PREVIEW MENU

S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 6’-5 3/4” X 9’-6 1/2” MENU W/
ORDER CONFIRMATION SCREEN

DRIVE THRU HEIGHT DETECTOR

S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 1’-0” X 2’-0” DIRECTIONAL SIGN
“DRIVE THRU OPEN LATE”

D/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 1’-0” X 2’-0” DIRECTIONAL SIGN
“THANK YOU COME AGAIN SOON/EXIT ONLY”

S/F REFLECTIVE 2’-0” X 1’-6” NON-ILLUMINATED DIRECTIONAL SIGN
“THE HABIT - DRIVE THRU/RIGHT ARROW”
 

D2

E1

E1

S
IER

R
A

 C
O

LLEG
E B

O
U

LEV
A

R
D

42’-3”

58
’-

9”

1

2

3

4567
8

9
10

A2

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
2

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



EAST ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

NORTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

A1

A1

ELEVATIONS

NOTED

3 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

A1

A1

A2

A2

42’-3”

69’-3”

20’-0”

24’-8”

4’-9”

6’-10”

0’-0”

25’-0”

0’-0”

25’-0”

EQ.

EQ
.

EQ
.

EQ.

EQ EQ

S/F 3’-2 5/8” X 12’-10” DUAL LIT CHANNEL LETTER
WALL SIGN @ 41.3 SQ. FT.

S/F 4’-3 3/8” X 12’-10” DUAL LIT CHANNEL
LETTER WALL SIGN @ 45.3 SQ. FT.

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
2

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



ELEVATIONS

NOTED

4 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

0’-0”

42’-3”

25’-0”

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
2

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



A1

WALL SIGN

NOTED

5 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

FACE & HALO ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN - 41.3 SQ. FT.
SCALE: 3/4”=1’-0”

7’-0”±4’-6”  ±

2’
-3

 7
/8

” 
O

A
H

2’
-0

” 
LE

T
TE

R
 “

H
” 

O
A

H

8”

3’
-2

 5
/8

” 
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D
 “

W
A

V
E”

O
A

H

12’-0 3/4” OAL

12’-10” BACKGROUND “WAVE” OAL

3”
3”

1
1

”

EQ EQ

C1

C2 C3

3M 3630-125 GOLDEN YELLOW
(PMS 1235 C) C0 M28 Y89 K0

3M 3630-53 CARDINAL RED
(PMS 187 C) C7 M100 Y82 K26

C1

C2

WHITE ACRYLIC
C3

3M 3630-22 BLACK
C4

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

C5

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT
SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

NOTES:
CHANNEL LETTERS TO BE 5” DEEP WITH RETURNS PAINTED BLACK AND WITH BLACK TRIMCAP

BACKS ARE CLEAR LEXAN WITH 2ND SURFACE DIFFUSER FILM

“THE”/”BURGER GRILL” TO HAVE WHITE ACRYLIC FACES WITH FIRST SURFACE BLACK VINYL OUTLINE AS SHOWN.

“HABIT” TO HAVE WHITE ACRYLIC FACES WITH FIRST SURFACE 3M 3630-53 “CARDINAL RED” VINYL

DOT AND RULE LINES TO HAVE WHITE ACRYLIC FACES WITH FIRST SURFACE 3M 3630-125 “GOLDEN YELLOW” AND
BLACK VINYL

BACKGROUND CABINET TO BE BRUSHED ALUMINUM, NON-ILLUMINATED AND TO HOUSE POWER SUPPLY FOR ALL
EXCEPT “DRIVE THRU” CHANNEL LETTERS. DISCONNECT SWITCH LOCATED ON CABINET. 
“DRIVE THRU” - CHANNEL LETTERS TO BE 3” DEEP WITH RETURNS PAINTED BLACK, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES AND
BLACK TRIMCAP.  CHANNEL LETTERS ARE FLUSH MOUNTED TO WALL AND ARE INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED.
REMOTE POWER SUPPLIES AS NEEDED

BUILDING WALL

1 15/16”

C4C4C3 C5

DISCONNECT
SWITCH

12’-0” ANGLE OAL

1’
-1

1”
 O

.C
.

ATTACHED ANGLE BOLTS TO MATCHING ANGLE ON WALL

BACK VIEW
SCALE: 1/2”=1’-0”

1 15/16”

120V ELECTRICAL
SWITCH

POWER
SUPPLY

120 V
ACLED

GROUND
POWER SUPPLY

MIN. (5) PER ANGLE/ 2 1/2” EMBEDMENT (ATTACHMENT
TYPE VARIES PER SURFACE):

STUCCO:
 

WOOD:
CONCRETE:
DRYWALL:

1/4” SSTL. BOLT W/
      NYLON ANCHOR
1/4” WOOD SCREW
1/4” EXPANSION ANCHOR
1/4” TOGGLE BOLT

DISCONNECT
SWITCH

1 1/2” x 1 1/2” x 3/16” STEEL ANGLE
W/ CAPTIVE NUT

1 1/2” x 1 1/2” x 3/16” STEEL ANGLE
W/ CAPTIVE NUT

S
Q.

F
T.

41.3 SQ. FT.

4 SQ. FT.41.3 SQ. FT. TOTAL

ELEVATION VIEW SIDE VIEW

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
2

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



A2

WALL SIGN

NOTED

6 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

FACE & HALO ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN - 45.3 SQ. FT.
SCALE: 3/4”=1’-0”

7’-0”±4’-6”  ±

ELEVATION VIEW

4’-10”

CHANNEL LETTERS TO BE 3” DEEP WITH RETURNS
PAINTED BLACK, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES AND BLACK TRIMCAP

2’
-3

 7
/8

” 
O

A
H

2’
-0

” 
LE

T
TE

R
 “

H
” 

O
A

H

4’
-3

 3
/8

”

8”

3’
-2

 5
/8

” 
B

A
C

K
G

R
O

U
N

D
 “

W
A

V
E”

O
A

H

12’-0 3/4” OAL

12’-10” BACKGROUND “WAVE” OAL

3”
3”

1
1

”
9

 3
/4

”

EQ EQ

C1

C2 C3

3M 3630-125 GOLDEN YELLOW
(PMS 1235 C) C0 M28 Y89 K0

3M 3630-53 CARDINAL RED
(PMS 187 C) C7 M100 Y82 K26

C1

C2

WHITE ACRYLIC
C3

3M 3630-22 BLACK
C4

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

C5

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT
SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

NOTES:
CHANNEL LETTERS TO BE 5” DEEP WITH RETURNS PAINTED BLACK AND WITH BLACK TRIMCAP

BACKS ARE CLEAR LEXAN WITH 2ND SURFACE DIFFUSER FILM

“THE”/”BURGER GRILL” TO HAVE WHITE ACRYLIC FACES WITH FIRST SURFACE BLACK VINYL OUTLINE AS SHOWN.

“HABIT” TO HAVE WHITE ACRYLIC FACES WITH FIRST SURFACE 3M 3630-53 “CARDINAL RED” VINYL

DOT AND RULE LINES TO HAVE WHITE ACRYLIC FACES WITH FIRST SURFACE 3M 3630-125 “GOLDEN YELLOW” AND
BLACK VINYL

BACKGROUND CABINET TO BE BRUSHED ALUMINUM, NON-ILLUMINATED AND TO HOUSE POWER SUPPLY FOR ALL
EXCEPT “DRIVE THRU” CHANNEL LETTERS. DISCONNECT SWITCH LOCATED ON CABINET. 

“DRIVE THRU” - CHANNEL LETTERS TO BE 3” DEEP WITH RETURNS PAINTED BLACK, WHITE ACRYLIC FACES AND
BLACK TRIMCAP.  CHANNEL LETTERS ARE FLUSH MOUNTED TO WALL AND ARE INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED.

REMOTE POWER SUPPLIES AS NEEDED

BUILDING WALL

1 15/16”

SIDE VIEW

C4C4C3 C5

DISCONNECT
SWITCH

12’-0” ANGLE OAL

1’
-1

1”
 O

.C
.

ATTACHED ANGLE BOLTS TO MATCHING ANGLE ON WALL

BACK VIEW
SCALE: 1/2”=1’-0”

1 15/16”

3”

DISCONNECT IN PRIMARY
PER NEC 600

RACEWAY TO BE PAINTED & 
FINISHED BY OTHERS TO MATCH
BUILDING.

120V ELECTRICAL
SWITCH

POWER
SUPPLY

120 V
ACLED

GROUND
POWER SUPPLY

MIN. (5) PER ANGLE/ 2 1/2” EMBEDMENT (ATTACHMENT
TYPE VARIES PER SURFACE):

STUCCO:
 

WOOD:
CONCRETE:
DRYWALL:

1/4” SSTL. BOLT W/
      NYLON ANCHOR
1/4” WOOD SCREW
1/4” EXPANSION ANCHOR
1/4” TOGGLE BOLT

DISCONNECT
SWITCH

1 1/2” x 1 1/2” x 3/16” STEEL ANGLE
W/ CAPTIVE NUT

1 1/2” x 1 1/2” x 3/16” STEEL ANGLE
W/ CAPTIVE NUT

S
Q.

F
T.

41.3 SQ. FT.

4 SQ. FT.45.3 SQ. FT. TOTAL

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
2

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



B1

PREVIEW MENU

NOTED

7 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS MP41342
“BRUSHED ALUMINUM”C1

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS SV923SP 
“BLACK” W/ A SATIN FINISHC2

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

APPROVED PAINT COLORS

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT

SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

S/F DRIVE-THRU MENU / PREVIEW MENU
SCALE: 1/2”=1’-0”

8”

FRONT

SIDE VIEW BACK VIEW

1/8” BRUSHED ALUMINUM “WAVE” (HORIZONTAL GRAIN)

1’
-1

0”
 B

A
S

E 
O

A
H

1-
6”

 B
A

S
E 

V.
O

.

6’
-5

 3
/4

” 
O

A
H

7’-8” VISIBLE OPENING

8’-0” CABINET OAL

3’
-8

” 
V

IS
IB

LE
 O

P
EN

IN
G

4’
-0

” 
C

A
B

IN
ET

 O
A

H

ELEVATION VIEW

6 
1/

4”

ALUMINUM CABINET INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
W/ 6500K WHITE LED’S. CABINET PAINTED
TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT MP41342
“BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

1 1/2 “FABRICATED ALUMINUM
REVEAL 

FABRICATED ALUMINUM BASE INLAID W/
TIMBERTECH “PACIFIC TEAK” COMPOSITE
DECKING 5 3/8”± X 7’-7” TOTAL OF (3)
FRONT AND BACK SIDES ONLY. CABINET
PAINTED TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

ON/OFF TOGGLE SWITCH

C1

C2

C1 C1

C1

1

A

2” RETAINERS

2” RETAINERS

C2

1 1/2” RETAINERS TOP/BOTTOM
3/4” RETAINERS LEFT/RIGHT SIDES

1’-9” V.O.

GRAPHIC
CUT SIZE

43 3/4” X 22 1/4” 

GRAPHIC
SHOWN
AREA

41” X 21”

1’-10 1/2” FRAME OAL

3’
-8

” 
FR

A
M

E 
O

A
H

3’
-6

” 
V.

O
.

QTY. (4)

MENU FRAMES - DETAILS
SCALE: 1” = 1’-0”

1

A

MENU PANEL LOCK

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
2

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



B1

PREVIEW MENU

NOTED

8 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT

SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

S/F DRIVE-THRU MENU / PREVIEW MENU - DETAILS
SCALE: 1/2”=1’-0”

FOOTING PROVIDED BY GENERAL
CONTRACTOR/ PER ENGINEERING

(6) #5 VERT. BARS
CIRCULAR PATTERN

2’-0” DIA.

#3 HOOPS
TOP 8 @ 4” O.C.
BAL. @ 12” O.C.

120V POWER BY G.C.

ELECTRICAL CONDUIT TO MENU
BOARD BY OTHERS; TO EXTEND
36” MIN. ABOVE CONCRETE BASE

5’
-2

”

(4) 1/2” DIA. H.A.B’S
18” MIN. EMBED.

MENU PLATE - DETAILS
SCALE: 1 1/2”=1’-0”

1

A

3

A

2

A

4

A

7”
 P

LA
TE

4 
3/

8”
 O

.C
.

10” PLATE

7 7/8”+/- O.C.

1/2” STEEL PLATE
3/16”

4” DIA. HOLE FOR ELECTRICAL

5” STEEL SQUARE TUBE
1/4” WALL

13/16” SLOTTED HOLES
FOR 3/4” DIA. H.A.B’S
18” MIN. EMBED.

1/2” STEEL MATCH PLATE (BOTTOM)

3”
 O

.C
.

3/16”

9/16” HOLES FOR
1/2” DIA. THRU-BOLTS

6”
 P

LA
TE

2 3/4” DIA. HOLE FOR ELECTRICAL

1/2” STEEL MATCH PLATE (TOP)

3/16”

2 3/4” DIA. HOLE FOR ELECTRICAL3”
 O

.C
.

2” WELDED PIPE (2.375” O.D.)

7”
 P

LA
TE

9/16” HOLES FOR
1/2” DIA. THRU-BOLTS

1/2” STEEL PLATE

7”
 P

LA
TE

10” PLATE

QTY. (4)
3/4” DIA. H.A.B’S
18” MIN EMBED.

SIDE VIEW

1

A

2

A

3

A

4

A

CAPTIVE BOLTS

4

A

3

A

2

A

1

A

MENU PANEL LOCK

MENU IS INTERNALLY
ILLUMINATED WITH WHITE
LED AS REQUIRED; POWER
SUPPLIES ARE CONTAINED
WITHIN CABINET.

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



B2

SPEAKER MENU CANOPY

NOTED

9 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

S/F DRIVE-THRU MENU W/ “OCS”
SCALE:   1/2” = 1’-0”

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS MP41342
“BRUSHED ALUMINUM”C1

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS SV923SP 
“BLACK” W/ A SATIN FINISHC2

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

APPROVED PAINT COLORS

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT

SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

BRUSHED ALUMINUM W/ HORIZONTAL 
GRAIN & SATIN FINISHC3

BACK VIEW

ELEVATION VIEW

C1

C1

STEEL PIPES FROM
WEATHER CANOPY C3

2’-7” O.C.

2”

9’-6 1/2”

1’
-1

0”
 B

A
S

E 
O

A
H

1-
6”

 B
A

S
E 

V.
O

.

6’
-5

 3
/4

” 
O

A
H

3’
-8

” 
V

IS
IB

LE
 O

P
EN

IN
G

4’
-0

” 
C

A
B

IN
ET

 O
A

H
6 

1/
4”

ALUMINUM CABINET INTERNALLY
ILLUMINATED W/ 6500K WHITE LED’S.
CABINET PAINTED TO MATCH MATTHEWS
PAINT MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

1 1/2 “FABRICATED ALUMINUM
REVEAL 

FABRICATED ALUMINUM BASE INLAID W/
TIMBERTECH “PACIFIC TEAK” COMPOSITE
DECKING 5 3/8”± X 7’-7” TOTAL OF (3)
FRONT AND BACK SIDES ONLY. CABINET
PAINTED TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

ON/OFF TOGGLE SWITCH

C1

2” RETAINERS

2” RETAINERS

C2

C31’-7”

Monday - S aturday
10:30 a.m. - 11:00 p.m.

Drive Thru till 12:00 a.m.

Sunday
10:30 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Drive Thru till 11:00 p.m.

ORDER HERE

44
” 

V
IS

IB
LE

 O
P

EN
IN

G

6”
 O

.C
.

1’-7” VISIBLE OPENING

Monday - Saturday
10:30 a.m. - 11:00 p.m.

Drive Thru till 12:00 a.m.

Sunday
10:30 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Drive Thru till 11:00 p.m.

ORDER HERE

13
 1

/2
” 

O
.C

.

24
” 

O
.C

.

ORDER CONFIRMATION PANEL

SCALE: 1”=1’-0”

1.5” X 12.773” WHITE
OPAQUE VINYL COPY

FRONT

8”

2’-0”

SIDE VIEW

ELEVATION VIEW

SCALE: 3/16”=1’-0”

7” X 10” .063” ALUMINUM PANEL
PAINTED MATTHEWS BLACK WITH
VINYL COPY

9” X 12” OPENING FOR OCS SCREEN
.060 CLEAR MAKROLON AR COVER
MOUNTED TO INSIDE

Monday - Saturday
10:30 a.m. - 11:00 p.m.

Drive Thru till 12:00 a.m.

Sunday
10:30 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Drive Thru till 11:00 p.m.

ORDER HERE

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



S/F DRIVE-THRU MENU W/ “OCS” - DETAILS
SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”

ELEVATION VIEW

MENU ATTACHES TO STEEL SUPPORT
PIPES FROM THE WEATHER CANOPY.
SEE WEATHER CANOPY PAGE
FOR DETAILS

MENU IS INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
WITH SLOAN V180 LARGE WHITE 5000K LEDS 
AS REQUIRED; POWER SUPPLIES ARE 
CONTAINED WITHIN CABINET.

3’
-8

” 
O

C
S

 A
R

EA

REMOTE DISPLAY
UNIT

FAN ASSEMBLY

SPEAKER HOUSING

MICROPHONE HOUSING

AC “Y” CABLE

BACK VIEW OF OCS

1’-7” OCS AREA

PLAN VIEW
MENU/FOOTING LOCATIONS

8”

2’-0” DIAMETER FOOTINGS

1’-9 3/16”
C

O
N

C
R

ETE PA
D

DRIVE THRU MENU W/ “OCS” ATTACHES TO WEATHER CANOPY SUPPORT PIPES
SEE WEATHER CANOPY PAGE FOR ATTACHMENT AND FOOTING DETAILS

WEATHER CANOPY SUPPORT PIPES
2’-7” O.C.

9’-10 1/2” CONCRETE PAD OAL

9’-6 1/2” DRIVE THRU MENU W/ OCS OAL

5” STEEL PIPE (5.563” O.D.)

C
L

2’
-0

”
FA

C
E 

O
F 

C
U

R
B

2’
-8

 1
1/

16
” 

O
.C

.
FA

C
E 

O
F 

C
U

R
B

/F
O

O
TI

N
G

S

2’-0”

.063” DETACHABLE ALUMINUM COVER
PAINTED TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

FRONT

8”

120V POWER BY G.C.
ELECTRICAL CONDUIT
TO MENU BOARD BY
OTHERS; SEE WEATHER
CANOPY PAGE FOR DETAILS

SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

1’-0”

9’
-8

 1
/4

”
9’

-8
 1

/4
”

31
” 

O
.C

.

MENU W/ “OCS”

WEATHER CANOPY

B2

SPEAKER MENU CANOPY

NOTED

10 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

SUBJECT TO CHANGE PER LOCATION

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



FOOTING DETAIL 
SCALE:   1/2” = 1’-0”

SECTION
ELEVATION VIEW

1” DIA. HEADED
ANCHOR BOLTS

25” MIN. EMBED.

120V POWER, POS & 
COMM. BY G.C.

7’
-3

” 
FO

O
TI

N
G

2’-0” DIA. 2’-0” DIA.

#3 HOOPS
TOP 6 @ 4” O.C.
BAL. @ 12” O.C.

(6) #5 VERT. BARS
CIRCULAR PATTERN

FOOTING PROVIDED
BY G.C./ PER

ENGINEERING

ELEC.CONDUIT BY
OTHERS; TO EXTEND 36”
MIN. ABOVE CONCRETE BASE

9’-10 1/2” OAL CONCRETE PAD

2’-7” O.C.

STEEL BASE PLATE
(SEE DETAIL ABOVE)

WIRE MESH

4” OAH
CONCRETE PAD
3” ABOVE GRADE

NOTES: 120V POWER.  CANOPY LIGHT TO BE UL LISTED
WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND
BONDING IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

MENU WEATHER CANOPY 
SCALE: 3/8” = 1’-0”

ELEVATION VIEW

6’-0”

C1

2’-7” O.C.

5” PIPE (5.563” O.D.)
t=0.258”

C1

2” X 4”
HAND HOLES
LOCATED ON

BACKSIDE
OF PIPE

5”

A

1

NOTE:
BASE PLATES
TO BE DRY
STACKED.

BASE PLATE DETAIL
SCALE: 1 1/2”=1’-0”

A

1

QTY. (2) - 1” X 9” X 9” STEEL PLATE

4 
3/

8”
 E

LE
C

.

9”
 P

LA
TE

6 
3/

8”
 O

.C
.

1 1/16” SLOTTED HOLES FOR
(4) 1” DIA. HEADED ANCHOR BOLTS.

25” MIN. EMBED. INTO FOOTING

4 3/8” X 4 3/8” HOLE FOR
ELECTRICAL & COMM.

1/4”

5” DIA. PIPE t=0.258 (5.563” O.D.)

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

POWDER-COAT PAINT TO MATCH 
MATTHEWS PAINT MP41342 
“BRUSHED ALUMINUM” 

C1

LED OVERHEAD LIGHTING
SEE DETAILS NEXT PAGE

THRU BOLT
SECURE CONNECTION

96” (.063 ALUMINUM TOP)

72
” 

(.
06

3 
A

LU
M

IN
U

M
 T

O
P

)

FR
O

N
T O

F C
A

N
O

P
Y

21
 3

/4
” 

O
.C

.
21

 3
/4

” 
O

.C
.

22
 1

/2
” 

O
.C

.

POWER IN

91 3/4” “WAVES” OAL

31” O
.C

.

1 1/2” x 1 1/2” ANGLE
SUPPORT ROD ATTACHMENT
(LOCATED/SECURED ON
TOP OF CANOPY)

BOTTOM VIEW OF CANOPY

4”

5” PIPE (5.563” O.D.)
t=0.258”

4”

4” PIPE (4.5” O.D.)
t=0.237”

3/8-16 BOLT
& NUTSERT

TOP OF PIPE CONNECTION 
SCALE: 1 1/2”=1’-0”

QTY. (2) - 1/4” X 2 1/2” X 2 1/2” STEEL CLIPS
SCALE: HALF SIZE

2 1/2” X 2 1/2” MOUNTING
SUPPORT CLIPS
(SEE BELOW)

B2

MENU WEATHER CANOPY

NOTED

11 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



C1

HEIGHT DETECTOR

NOTED

12 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

ACCESS HOLE TO 1/4” NYLOCK NUT
@ MOUNTING CHAIN

Clearance 11�-0�

6’-0” BAR

MOUNTING CHAIN WITH
EYE BOLTS

3” DIAM. ALUMINUM
PIPE PAINTED WHITE
W/ REFLECTIVE RED
LETTERS

PLATE DETAIL
SCALE:   1 1/2” = 1’-0”

3” DIAM. STEEL PIPE
t=0.216”

10’-0”

9’-8 1/2”

1’-6”

11
’-

0”

12’-6”

12
’-

6”

3’-2”

DRIVE-THRU GRADE

CL OF POLE TO FACE OF CURB

1’-10”

(5) #5 VERT. BARS CIRCULAR PATTERN

1’-8”

3”+ I.D. ALUMINUM POLE

3” X 1” REC. TUBE

FORMED BASE COVER

1/2” BASE PLATE (SEE
DETAIL @ RIGHT)

INSTALLER TO ADJUST
HEIGHT OF CLEARANCE SIGN
TO MATCH DRIVE-THRU FASCIA

#3 HOOPS TOP 7 @ 4” O.C.
BAL. @ 12” O.C.

13/16” HOLES FOR (4)
3/4” DIAM. HEADED
ANCHOR BOLTS 15” MIN.
EMBED. INTO FOOTING

1/2” X 9” X 9” STEEL PLATE

9”
 O

.C
.

HEIGHT DETECTOR
SCALE: 1/2” = 1’-0”

1”

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



OPEN LATE

D1 D2

DIRECTIONAL SIGNS

NOTED

13 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT
SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

(16) AGILITE PRO 160 LED MODULES
@.9W EACH = 14.4W TOTAL

(1) SLOAN 701680 20W LED POWER 
SUPPLY @80% EFFICIENCY = 16W

SCALE: 1”=1'-0”

D/F 1’-0” X 2’-0” DIRECTIONAL SIGN 2.0 SQUARE FEET

SIDE A SIDE B

SIDE A SIDE B

D1

D2

3M SCOTCHCAL SERIES 220
BLACK OPAQUE 

C2

3M 3630-125 GOLDEN YELLOW
(PMS 1235 C) C0 M28 Y89 K0

C1

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

3M 3630-20 WHITE TRANSLUCENT
C3

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

C4

END VIEW

4 1/2”

3’
-6

” 
O

V
ER

A
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T

ELEVATION VIEW

PRIMARY ELECTRICAL BY OTHERS-
120 VOLT IN CONDUIT TO 1’-0” ABOVE
GRADE WITH MIN. 36” EXCESS WIRE

1’-6” FOOTING

2’
-0

” 
FO

O
TI

N
G

2’-0” CABINET

10
” 

V.
O

.

2’
-6

 ”
 F

R
O

M
 F

IN
IS

H
 G

R
A

D
E

8 1/4”±
CABINET

20 AMP DISCONNECT TOGGLE SWITCH
W/ BOOT TRA-WSW20T
PROD. ID #19900040

HANDY BOX BLANK COVER
PROD. ID #19900260

EXTRUDED ALUMINUM
CABINET (EXTR. DIE 26100)
W/ 1” X 1” X 1/8” RET.

.118” ACRYLIC  FACE
(TYPICAL)

3”x 3” X 1/8” THK. TUBE 
STEEL SUPPORT

(16) AGILITE SIGNRAYZ PRO 160 
5700K WHITE LED MODULES
ATTACHED WITH VHB TAPE
(8 ON EACH SIDE OF 
ALUMINUM BACKING)

SLOAN 701680 20W
LED POWER SUPPLY

PRE-COATED WHITE ALUMINUM
BACKING

8”
 A

LU
M

.
B

A
C

K
IN

G

1’-7 5/8” ALUM. BACKING

1’
-0

” 
C

A
B

IN
ET

2’-0” CABINET

3” X 3” SQUARE TUBE,
ATTACHMENTS & J-BOX PLATE
PAINTED TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

EXTRUDED ALUMINUM CABINET
PAINTED TO MATCH MATTHEWS PAINT
MP41342 “BRUSHED ALUMINUM”6”

 O
.C

.

TY
P

IC
A

L 
H

EI
G

H
T 

A
B

O
V

E 
G

R
A

D
E 

- 
4’

-0
”

CLEAR .118” ACRYLIC FACES
W/ SECOND SURFACE TRANSLUCENT
VINYL COPY AND BLACK OPAQUE VINYL.

1’
-0

” 
C

A
B

IN
ET

8 1/4”±
CABINET

END VIEWELEVATION VIEW

C4

(4) #5 VERT. BARS

6” X 6” X 1/4” STEEL PLATE
(SEE DETAIL BELOW)

#3 HOOPS @ 4” O.C.

6” X 6” X 1/2” STEEL PLATE
SCALE: 3”=1’-0”

6” PLATE

4” O.C.

6”
 P

LA
TE

4”
 O

.C
. 2” ELECTRICAL HOLE

9/16” HOLES FOR (4) 1/2” DIA.
HEADED ANCHOR BOLTS.
18” MIN. EMBED. INTO FOOTING.

3/16”

BLANK FACE PAINTED
MATTHEWS PAINT MP41342
“BRUSHED ALUMINUM”

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



1’-6”

2’
-6

”

4’-4 1/2”

2” X 2” ALUMINUM SQUARE TUBE

2’
-0

”

4’
-6

” 
O

A
H

 F
R

O
M

 G
R

A
D

E

.125 ALUMINUM SIGN FACE
W/ FIRST SURFACE APPLIED
VINYL COPY/GRAPHICS

6”

1’-6” FOOTING

2’
-6

”
2’

-0
” 

O
A

H
2’

-0
” 

FO
O

TI
N

G

4’-0” (2” x 2” A
LU

M
IN

U
M

 S
Q

. TU
B

E)

SCALE: 1”=1'-0”

S/F NON-ILLUMINATED REFLECTIVE DIRECTIONAL SIGN 2.0 SQUARE FEET

3M SCOTCHCAL SERIES 230 WHITE 
REFELECTIVE

C3

PAINT TO MATCH MATTHEWS 
SV923SP “BLACK”

C4

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

1’-6” OAL

C3

C2

C1

C4

3M 3630-125 GOLDEN YELLOW
(PMS 1235 C) C0 M28 Y89 K0

3M 3630-53 CARDINAL RED
(PMS 187 C) C7 M100 Y82 K26

C1

C2

ELEVATION VIEW END VIEW

E3

NON-ILLUMINATED 
DIRECTIONAL SIGNS

NOTED

14 14

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

2016  

THE HABIT BURGER #XXXX

I-80 & Sierra College Blvd.
Rocklin CA  95677

16-217 318737

CHRIS BARTON

TIM THOMSEN

03/08/16

1

03/10/16 TT

P
acket P

g. 2
3

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

CHICK-FIL-A -  Site Plan Rocklin, CA. -
SCALE:  1” = 50’-0”

Scope of Work

.          NEW 5’-0” ILLUM. “CHICK-FIL-A” CHANNEL LETTERS SIGN
           

.          NEW CANOPY

.          NEW D/F ILLUM. DIRECTIONAL SIGN

A

A

B

B

C

C

D

D

E

E

F

F

C
1

A
8

ALL NEW SIGNAGE TO CONNECT
TO CLIENT PROVIDED ELECTRICAL

CIRCUITS

NOTE: NOTE: 
ALL NEW SIGNAGE TO CONNECT

TO CLIENT PROVIDED ELECTRICAL
CIRCUITS

NOTE: NOTE: 

Install Only 
Manufacturing By Others

.          DRIVE-THRU CANOPY1

1

2

2

SIGN ID
LETTER

FACE A FACE B

N/A

N/A

thru
drive

thru
drive

do not
enter

thank
you

A B

C D

E

F

1 2

VICINITY MAP

N/A
C
1

3’8’-6”
2’-6”

2’-8”

C
1

A
1

A
2

A
3

A
4

A
5

A
6

A
7

Page 1 of 10

This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

P
acket P

g. 2
3

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

.          REFACE D/F ILLUM. PYLON TENANT PANEL

.          REFACE D/F ILLUM. MONUMENT TENANT PANEL

G

G

O

O

SIGN ID
LETTER

FACE A FACE B

G

O

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

CHICK-FIL-A -  Site Plan Rocklin, CA. -
SCALE:  NTS

Scope of Work

ALL NEW SIGNAGE TO CONNECT
TO CLIENT PROVIDED ELECTRICAL

CIRCUITS

NOTE: NOTE: 
ALL NEW SIGNAGE TO CONNECT

TO CLIENT PROVIDED ELECTRICAL
CIRCUITS

NOTE: NOTE: 

SIGN ID
LETTER

FACE A FACE B

VICINITY MAP

Page 2 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
3

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



South Elevation
SCALE:  3/32” = 1’-0”

North Elevation
SCALE:  3/32” = 1’-0”

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

Smoke Free Property . No Soliciting

Monday - Friday

Saturday
6:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.

6:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.

Closed Sunday . Free WiFi

0000

EQ.

EQ.

EQ.

EQ.

16’-0”

16’-0”

.          NEW 5’-0” ILLUM. “CHICK-FIL-A” CHANNEL LETTERS SIGNA

A

.          NEW 5’-0” ILLUM. “CHICK-FIL-A” CHANNEL LETTERS SIGN

.          NEW CANOPY

B

B

C
1

C
1

Page 3 of 10

This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

P
acket P

g. 2
3

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



SCALE:  3/32” = 1’-0”

SCALE:  3/32” = 1’-0”

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

East Elevation

West Elevation

0000

15’-0”

16’-0”

EQ.

EQ.

EQ.

EQ.

12”

12”

.          NEW 5’-0” ILLUM. “CHICK-FIL-A” CHANNEL LETTERS SIGNC

C

.          NEW 5’-0” ILLUM. “CHICK-FIL-A” CHANNEL LETTERS SIGND

D

Page 4 of 10

This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

P
acket P

g. 2
4

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

5”

BUILDING
FASCIA 

1” TRIM CAP

3/8” STAND OFF
HARDWARE

AREA: 35.15 SQ. FT. 
8 STRAIGHT LINES

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

  CHICK-FIL-A S/F LED ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS
SCALE:  ½” = 1’-0”

.040 ALUMINUM
STIFF-ARM
SUPPORT REVEALS
PAINTED TO MATCH
MOUNTING SURFACE
COLOR

4’
-7

½
”

2’
-6

”

1’
-5

⅞
”

5’
-0

”

11’-9”

MOUNTING AND ELECTRICAL PENETRATIONS

BODY: S/F CUSTOM FABRICATED ALUMINUM 
CABINET CONSTRUCTED OF .040 
WITH .080 ALUMINUM BACKS. 
ALUMINUM RETURNS MECHANICALLY 
FASTENED TO BACKS. INTERIOR OF 
SIGN TO BE PAINTED MATTE WHITE.

FACES: 3/16” ROHM & HAAS #2793 RED 
ACRYLIC OR EQUIVALENT.

TRIM CAP: 1” TRUE RED JEWELITE TRIM CAP 
(ADHERED VIA WELD ON RETURNS)

RETURNS:  5” DEEP RETURNS PAINTED TO 
MATCH MOUNTING SURFACE COLOR

STANDOFF: 3/8” STAND OFF HARDWARE.

REGISTERED: 3/16” CLEAR LEXAN FLAG WITH 3M 
3632-53 CARDINAL RED VINYL ®  
APPLIED FIRST SURFACE ATTACHED 
TO BACK OF ‘A’ 

DISCONNECT: ELECTRICAL TOGGLE DISCONNECT 
SWITCH WITH BOOT

ILLUMINATION: RED LED LIGHTING WITH REMOTE 
TRANSFORMERS.

                              ALL WIRING & COMPONENTS 
TO MEET U.L. STANDARDS

Specifications:

R & H 2793 / 3M RED 3632-53

SW 7549 STUDIO TAUPE

.          NEW 5’-0” ILLUM. “CHICK-FIL-A” CHANNEL LETTERS SIGN
           

A B C D

Page 5 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
4

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

CABINETS: FABRICATED .080 ALUMINUM 8” DEEP, WITH 
ALUMINUM ANGLE FRAME CABINET PAINTED 
MATTE BLACK.

FACES: ALUMINUM PAN FACE WITH WHITE #7328 
ACRYLIC WITH APPLIED FIRST SURFACE 3M 
RED #3632-53 TRANSLUCENT VINYL BACKED 
UP 

POST: 2”X2” SQUARE STEEL TUBE POLE WITH .080 
BREAK FORMED POLE COVER PAINTED 
MATTE BLACK.

ILLUMINATION:  INTERNAL F30T8 CW/HO FLUORESCENT 
LAMPS

SWITCH: ELECTRICAL TOGGLE DISCONNECT SWITCH 
WITH BOOT

NOTE: TRY TO KEEP DIRECTIONALS 5’-0” FROM 
CURBS WHEREVER POSSIBLE TO INSURE 
VEHICLES WILL NOT HIT THEM.

ALL COMPONENTS TO BE U.L. APPROVED

Specifications:

CHICK-FIL-A - NEW D/F ILLUMINATED DIRECTIONAL SIGNS
SCALE:  3/4” = 1’-0”

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

do not
enter

do not
enter

thank
you

10
”

1’
-0

”

1’
-2

”

2’
-1

1 
7/

8”

2”
1’

-1
0”

2’-8¾”

2’-6¾” 1¼” 1¼”6¼”

8¼”

thru
drive

thru
drive

3.18 sq ft

FABRICATED ALUMINUM SIGN CABINET
INTERNALLY W/ F30T8 CWHO
FLUORESCENT LAMPS
W/ 1” X 1” X ⅛” ALUMINUM ANGLE FRAME 

2” DIA. VENT ON BOTH SIDES

I-BEAM CHANNEL RETURN
PAINTED MATTE BLACK

3/16” ROHM & HAAS #7328 WHITE ACRYLIC
WITH FIRST SURFACE APPLIED 3M RED 3632-53
TRANSLUCENT VINYL

.080 ALUMINUM BREAK FORM
ROUTED FACES PAINTED 
MATTHEWS #N6425SP WHITE 

.080 ALUMINUM SKIRT PAINTED MATTE BLACK
W/ ACCESS PANEL (COUNTER SUNK FASTENERS)
SKIRT TO HAVE 2” X 2” ALUMINUM ANGLE FRAME

ELECTRICAL TOGGLE DISCONNECT SWITCH
WITH BOOT

1” X 2” ALUMINUM TUBE PAINTED MATTE BLACK

.          NEW D/F ILLUM. DIRECTIONAL SIGN

.          NEW D/F ILLUM. DIRECTIONAL SIGN

E

F

3M RED 3632-53

MATTE BLACK / MP 929

MATTHEWS #N6425SP WHITE / ROHM & HAAS #7328 ACRYLIC

.080 ALUMINUM ACCESS DOOR

Page 6 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
4

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

CHICK-FIL-A - REFACE D/F ILLUMINATED PYLON SIGN
SCALE:  1/8” = 1’-0”

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

CABINET: EXISTING D/F CABINET.

FACES: 3/16” POLYCARBONATE WITH 
TRANSLUCENT VINYL APPLIED FIRST 
SURFACE.

ILLUMINATION: EXISTING.

                              ALL WIRING & COMPONENTS 
TO MEET U.L. STANDARDS

Specifications:

ARLON RED 2500-253 / 3M RED 3632-53

WHITE

.          REFACE D/F ILLUM. PYLON TENANT PANELG

  

TENANT TENANT

TENANT TENANT

TENANT TENANT

50
’-

0”
 O

.A
.H

.

8’
-0

”
36

’-
0”

25'-0"

18’-8”

18’-0”

4’
-0

”
4’

-0
”

4’
-0

”

6’
-0

”

13
’-

4”

13’-6” (75%)

2’-3”1'-5"

TENANT4’
-0

”

3’-8” V.O.

13’-2” V.O.

Page 7 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
4

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

    

10
’-

0”
 O

.A
.H

.

8’
-0

” 
C

o
lu

m
n

11’-0” Cap

9’-8” Reveal

8’-0” Cabinet

7’
-1

 1
/2

” 
C

ab
in

et

8’-8”2’-6”

8’-8” Reveal

1’-10 1/2”

Tenant TenantTenant Tenant

Tenant TenantTenant Tenant

Tenant TenantTenant Tenant

Tenant TenantTenant Tenant

7 1/2”

CHICK-FIL-A - REFACE D/F ILLUMINATED MONUMENT SIGN
SCALE:  3/8” = 1’-0”

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

CABINET: EXISTING D/F CABINET.

FACES: 3/16” POLYCARBONATE WITH 
TRANSLUCENT VINYL APPLIED FIRST 
SURFACE.

ILLUMINATION: EXISTING.

                              ALL WIRING & COMPONENTS 
TO MEET U.L. STANDARDS

Specifications:

ARLON RED 2500-253 / 3M RED 3632-53

WHITE

SIDE A SIDE B

1’-5” V.O.

3’-9¾” V.O.

.          REFACE D/F ILLUM. MONUMENT TENANT PANELO

Page 8 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
4

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

SCALE:  ½” = 1’

New Covered Illum. Aluminum Canopy

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

ALL COMPONENTS
TO BE

U.L. LISTED & APPROVED

G.C TO SUPPLY
PRIMARY POWER SOURCE

6”

1’-4” 1’-4”

EQ EQVARIES

6”

3’
-0

” 
O

R
 4

’-6
”

2”

2”

1”

1”

2”

2’-6”

3’-0” OR 4’-6”

10”

1¾” METAL TUBE

1/2” OI  THREADED ROD
W 1¼” TURNBUCKLE

WALL CONSTRUCTION AS
INDICATED PER PLANS

E
Q

E
Q

CL
CL

CL

5” PLATE ¼” THICK

4” FULLY RECESSED 3000K
LED COLOR TEMP LIGHT

5”

1”

1”
3/8”

5”

SCALE: 1” = 1’-0”
ALUMINUM MOUNTING PLATE

3/16

VARIES

2’-8” MAX

MATTHEWS DARK BRONZE 74155 SV 

.          NEW CANOPY ±9’-0” X 4’-6”C
1

Page 9 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
4

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



This sign intended to be in accordance with 
the requirements of Article 600 of the 
National Electrical Code and/or other 
applicable local codes. This includes proper 
grounding and bonding of this sign.

C          US
Date:

Client Approval:National Sign
& MARKETING CORPORATION 

Revisions:Project:

Address:                                

Phone:                          Account Mgr.                     

Designer:               Scale:                Date:

Chick-Fil-A 

SWC Sierra College & I-80, Rocklin, CA

Noted 01/24/2016

03/22/16 SD Change site plan, add cd sign, h/c sign
04/04/16 SD Change site plan, change pylon and monument, Remove option
06/01/16 SD Change canopy to dark bronze and update vinyl

S. Rosenbloom

Duffy, S.

Drawing Number

27072
R6E

13580 5th St., Chino, CA 91710
Tel 909.591.4742  Fax 909.591.9792
e-mail : sales @nsmc.com
Lic# 745030 - Exp. 01/31/18

07/20/16 MYQ Removed logo from directional
08/10/16 SD Change  site plan, elevation, Remove Ped signs, Clearance arm, HC Sign

SCALE:  1/2” = 1’-0”

DRIVE THRU CANOPY WITH MENU BOARD (TO BE FABRICATED BY OTHERS)

THIS IS AN ORIGINAL UNPUBLISHED DRAWING CREATED FOR YOUR PERSONAL USE IN CONNECTION WITH A PROJECT PLANNED FOR YOU BY NSMC. IT IS NOT TO BE SHOWN OUTSIDE YOUR ORGANIZATION NOR USED, REPRODUCED, COPIED OR EXHIBITED IN ANY FASHION UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING BY AN OFFICER OF NSMC

NOTE: ALL WORK TO COMPLY WITH 2013 CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE (CEC)

.          DRIVE-THRU CANOPY

MATTE BLACK TEXTURED

1 2

2’-0”2’-0”

5’-6”5’-6”

6”

1’-6”

10½”

11’-0”

4’-0”

7”

5
’-
1

0
⅛

”

7.94 SQ FT 7.94 SQ FT
15.88 TOTAL 
VISIBLE SQ FT

FOOTINGS BY OTHERS, FINAL SETTING BY NSMC

Page 10 of 10

P
acket P

g. 2
4

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



SITE PLAN

NOTED

1 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

00/00/007

9

10

11

12

8

DESIGNER

2016  

SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1” = 30’-0”  

GMc03/31/16

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

2

S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 4’-6 3/4” X 9’-0 1/2”
WALL SIGN (40.0 SQ. FT.) ‘DEL TACO’

S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 4’-6 3/4” X 9’-0 1/2”
WALL SIGN (40.0 SQ. FT.) ‘DEL TACO’

S/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED 4’-6 3/4” X 9’-0 1/2”
WALL SIGN (40.0 SQ. FT.) ‘DEL TACO’

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED DIRECTIONAL
SIGN. 1’-6” X 3’-1 3/8” CABINET. (”DRIVE-THRU”).

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED DIRECTIONAL
SIGN. 1’-6” X 3’-1 3/8” CABINET. (”THANK YOU/
DO NOT ENTER”).

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED PREVIEW MENU

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SPEAKER MENU

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANEL

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANEL

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANEL

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANEL

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANEL

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANEL

A1

KEY 

A2

A3

B1

B2

C1

69’-2”

39’-6”

A1

A2

A3
C2

B2

B1

C2

C1

INTERSTATE 80 OFF RAMP

D1

D2

D3

D4

D5

D6

JR08/08/16

D1D2 D3

D4D5D6

P
acket P

g. 2
4

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



SITE PLAN
SCALE: 1” = 100’-0” 

SITE PLAN

NOTED

2 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

00/00/007

9

10

11

12

8

DESIGNER

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

GMc03/31/16

2

JR08/08/16P
acket P

g. 2
4

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



ELEVATIONS

A1 A2

3

SOUTH/RIGHT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

WEST/FRONT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

69’-2”

39’-6”

A1
22” STACKED CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN -  
4’-6 3/4” X 9’- 0 1/2” @ 41.3 SQ. FT. - “DEL TACO”

A2
22” STACKED CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN -  

4’-6 3/4” X 9’- 0 1/2” @ 41.3 SQ. FT. - “DEL TACO”

GMc03/31/16

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANELD1 D2 D3

2

JR08/08/16

D1 D2 D3

P
acket P

g. 2
4

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



ELEVATIONS

4 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

A3

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

NORTH/LEFT ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

EAST/REAR ELEVATION
SCALE: 1/8”=1’-0”

69’-2”

39’-6”

A3
22” STACKED CHANNEL LETTER WALL SIGN -  

4’-6 3/4” X 9’- 0 1/2” @ 41.3 SQ. FT. - “DEL TACO”

GMc03/31/16

S/F 4’-0” X 4’-0” GRAPHIC PANELD4 D5 D6

2

JR08/08/16

D4 D5 D6

P
acket P

g. 2
5

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



WALL SIGNS

5 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

A1 A2 A3

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

PRIMARY ELECTRICAL 120 V
SIGN TO BE UL LISTED (W/ DISCONNECT

SWITCH AS REQUIRED)

White Acrylic (7328)
C1

3M 3630-015 “Yellow” Translucent Vinyl

Paint Black w/ Gloss Finish

C3

C5

Arlon Series 2500-3820 - Custom to match 
PMS 144CC2

Arlon Series 2500-3819 - Custom to match 
PMS 383CC4

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

APPROVED VINYL COLORS

ELEVATION VIEW SIDE VIEW

22” DEL TACO CHANNEL LETTER LAYOUT (40.0 SQ. FT.)
SCALE:   3/4” = 1’-0”

C3

C2 C4

C1

2 1/2” REGISTRATION
DISC W/ BLACK VINYL

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED CHANNEL LETTERS
ILLUMINATION: LED
RETURNS: .040” ALUMINUM (GLOSS BLACK)
BACKS: .063” ALUMINUM
TRIMCAP: 3/4” BLACK

1’
-1

0”

4’
-6

 3
/4

”

9’-0 1/2” 5”

5”

WHITE LED MODULES

WALL

.040” ALUMINUM RETURNS

3/4” BLACK TRIMCAP

.063” ALUMINUM BACKS

.188” ACRYLIC FACES

WEEP HOLES

(UL) E191597 PAIGE PLUS PREMIUM LED
CABLE; 18 AWG WIRE W/ 14 AWG GROUND WIRE

(UL) E339010 PAIGE ELECTRIC WALL BUSTER
UV RESISTANT (UL 746)/ FIRE & FLAME RETARDANT
(UL 94)/ SUNLIGHT RESISTANT (UL 746C);
FOR USE WITH VOLTAGE UNDER 150V

(UL) E339010 PAIGE PLUS LED CABLE
BOX; UL LISTED FOR WET, DAMP AND
DRY LOCATIONS

MIN. (3) PER LETTER/ 2 1/2” EMBEDMENT (ATTACHMENT
TYPE VARIES PER SURFACE):

STUCCO:
 

WOOD:
CONCRETE:
DRYWALL:

1/4” SSTL. BOLT W/
      NYLON ANCHOR
1/4” WOOD SCREW
1/4” EXPANSION ANCHOR
1/4” TOGGLE BOLT

SECTION DETAIL (NTS)

GMc03/31/16

2

JR08/08/16P
acket P

g. 2
5

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



 
DRIVE THRU

24 HR 
DIRECTIONALS

B1 B2

6 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

1’
-6

”
2’

-0
” 

(T
Y

P.
)

3’
-6

” 
O

A
H

1”

3’-1 3/8” 8 1/4”

3” X 3” SQUARE TUBE

3/8” X 6” X 6” W/ (4) 3/8” DIA. ALL-THREAD BOLTS

PLATE TO BE ASTM A36

1/8"

CONCRETE: FIVE (5) SACK MIX WITH 3/4" 
MAX. AGGREGATE.  ULTIMATE COMPRESSIVE
STRENGTH OF 2000 PSI AT 28 DAYS.

FINISHED GRADE 
(VARIES)

2’
-0

”

1’-6”

ELEVATION VIEW

ELEVATION VIEW

SIDE VIEW

SIDE VIEW

SCALE:   1” = 1'-0”

D/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED DIRECTIONAL SIGN - 4.6 SQUARE FEET
SCALE:   1” = 1'-0”

D/F INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED DIRECTIONAL SIGN STRUCTURAL DETAIL

SIDE A SIDE B

DAMAR COMPACT
FLUORESCENT BULB;
23W / 6400K DAYLIGHT
CRI 82 120V
10,00 AVG. LIFE HRS.;
G24 BASE SOCKET
(TITLE 24 COMPLIANT)

HANDY BOX BLANK COVER
PROD. ID #19900260

20 AMP DISCONNECT TOGGLE SWITCH
W/ BOOT TRA-WSW20T
PROD. ID #19900040

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

B1

B2

SIDE A SIDE B

Lacryl to Match PMS 485C
C1

3M 3630-015 “Yellow” Translucent Vinyl

Backed with white (Paint)

C3

C5

Arlon Series 2500-3820 - Custom to match 
PMS 144CC2

Arlon Series 2500-3819 - Custom to match 
PMS 383CC4

C6

COLOR SPECIFICATIONS

APPROVED VINYL COLORS

Paint SW 6380 “Humble Gold” with Satin 
Finish

NOTES: 120V POWER.  SIGN TO BE UL
LISTED WITH APPROVED DISCONNECT

SWITCH.  GROUNDING AND BONDING IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ARTICLE 600 NEC.

1’
-6

”
2’

-0
” 

(T
Y

P.
)

3’
-6

” 
O

A
H

1”

3’-1 3/8”

8 1/4”

EXTRUDED ALUMINUM
CABINET WITH
INTERNAL ILLUMINATION

3” SQUARE TUBE SUPPORT

FORMED LEXAN FACES
WITH SECOND
SURFACE APPLIED
GRAPHICS PER DEL
TACO STANDARDS

C5

C6

6”
 O

.C
.

C1

GMc03/31/16

 
DRIVE THRU

24 HR  
DRIVE THRU

24 HR 

2

JR08/08/16P
acket P

g. 2
5

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



ELEVATION VIEW END VIEW

PREVIEW MENU BOARD

THE PREVIEW MENU BOARD SHOULD BE ANGLED BETWEEN 15 AND 45 DEGREES FROM THE CURB FOR
OPTIMAL VIEWING.

DO’S & DON’TS:

DO MAKE SURE THE CUSTOMER CAN VIEW THE PREVIEW MENU BOARD.
DON’T LOCATE ANYTHING WITHIN 12” OF THE DRIVE-THRU LANE WITHOUT PROTECTING IT FROM
MIRRORS.

1’-0” MIN.

PREVIEW
 M

ENU BOARD

UNOBSTR
UCTE

D V
IEW

15 - 45º

SCALE:   3/16” = 1'-0”

PLAN VIEW @ PREVIEW MENU BOARD

SCALE:   3/4” = 1'-0”

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED PREVIEW MENU DISPLAY

NOTE: THE DIAGRAM ABOVE IS ALSO BASED OFF THE “STANDARD’ LOCATION
DEL TACO CORPORATE HAS PROVIDED TO CNP. IT IS THE GC’S RESPONSIBILITY
TO COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER ON THE EXACT LOCATION. CNP WILL
NOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY REMOVALS, RE-POSITIONING AND
RE-INSTALLATION. ALL REMOVALS, RE-POSITIONING AND RE-INSTALLATION
WILL BE BILLED ON A T&M BASIS.

4’
-3

 1
/4

”
1’

-8
”

5’
-1

1 
1/

4”
 O

V
ER

A
LL

 H
EI

G
H

T
2’-5 1/2” 6 3/4”

5 1/4”

TYPICAL LED LAYOUT

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED PREVIEW MENU
ILLUMINATION: WHITE SHORT VL PLUS 2
                         701269-7WSA2-MB
POWER SUPPLY: AGILIGHT LED 
                            PS12-60WSL-100-277V
CABINET & BASE:  ALUMINUM PAINTED SHERWIN WILLIAMS
                              SW6380 “HUMBLE GOLD” W/ SATIN FINISH

PREVIEW MENU

7 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

GMc03/31/16

C1

2

JR08/08/16P
acket P

g. 2
5

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



MENU BOARD

C2

8 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

POSITION EVERYTHING FROM LOOP SENSOR.

THE LOOP SENSOR SHOULD BE DIRECTLY IN FRONT OF THE OCB.  THE OCB SHOULD BE PARALLEL
TO THE DRIVE-THRU LANE 7 NOT BLOCK THE MENU BOARD.
THE SPEAKER SHOULD BE AT LEAST 12” FROM THE CURB.  THE BOLLARD SHOULD BE POSITIONED TO
PREVENT DAMAGE FROM AUTOMOBILES.

MENU BOARD

THE MENU BOARD SHOULD BE ANGLED BETWEEN 15 AND 45 DEGREES FROM THE CURB FOR
OPTIMAL VIEWING.
IF THE SPEAKER BLOCKS THE MENU BOARD, EITHER THE SPEAKER OR THE MENU BOARD WILL
NEED TO BE MOVED.  THE LOOP SENSOR MUST STAY IN FRONT OF THE SPEAKER.
THE IDEAL DISTANCE FROM THE SPEAKER TO THE MENU BOARD IS 10 TO 15 FEET.  THE EXTENDERS
SHOULD BE AT LEAST 12” FROM THE CURB.

DO’S & DON’TS:

DO MAKE SURE THE CUSTOMER CAN VIEW BOTH THE MENU BOARD AND THE SPEAKER EASILY.
DON’T LOCATE ANYTHING WITHIN 12” OF THE DRIVE-THRU LANE WITHOUT PROTECTING IT FROM
MIRRORS.

1’-0” MIN.1’-0” MIN.

M
ENU BOARD

UNOBSTR
UCTE

D V
IEW

SPEAKER

15 - 45º

SCALE:   3/16” = 1'-0”

SCALE:   1/2” = 1'-0”

PLAN VIEW @ MENU BOARD & OCB

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED MENU DISPLAY

NOTE: THE DIAGRAM ABOVE IS ALSO BASED OFF THE “STANDARD’ LOCATION
DEL TACO CORPORATE HAS PROVIDED TO CNP. IT IS THE GC’S RESPONSIBILITY
TO COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER ON THE EXACT LOCATION. CNP WILL
NOT BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY REMOVALS, RE-POSITIONING AND
RE-INSTALLATION. ALL REMOVALS, RE-POSITIONING AND RE-INSTALLATION
WILL BE BILLED ON A T&M BASIS.

4'
-4

 1
/8

”

1’
-8

”
1'

-4
”

4'
-6

 1
/2

”

7'
-7

”

ELEVATION VIEW

1'-4” 5’-10”

7’-4 9/16”

END VIEW

TOP TRANS-LIGHT UNIT
(ADJUSTABLE TOPPER) 

END APPENDAGE UNIT
(ADJUSTABLE EXTENDER)

MAIN MENU CABINET

SPEAKER POST

ALUMINUM CONSTRUCTION WITH INTERNAL FLUORESCENT ILLUMINATION.
PAINTED SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW#6380 “HUMBLE GOLD” W/ SATIN FINISH
MENU PANELS SHOWN ABOVE BASED ON A STANDARD INDIVIDUAL SIZE OF
14 7/16" x 24 1/4"; 40.25 SQUARE FEET.

3’
-4

 5
/8

”

1’-2”

4’-0”

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

GMc03/31/16

2

JR08/08/16P
acket P

g. 2
5

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



EXTERIOR GRAPHIC PANELS (BY OTHERS)
SCALE: 1/2”=1’-0”

NOTE: SIGNS TO BE STOOD OFF OF BUILDING 1/2”;
STANDOFFS PAINTED TO MATCH BUILDING.  

4’-0” 4’-0”

4’
-0

”

4’
-0

”

4’
-0

”

D4 D5 D6

4’
-0

”
4’-0”

D1 D2 D3

4’-0”4’-0”

4’
-0

”

4’
-0

”

4’-0”

END VIEW

WALL

1/4” ALUMALITE

2” WOODSCREW
(4 MIN.)

1/2” STANDOFFS

GRAPHICS PANELS

9 9

1

3

4

5

6

2

7

9

10

11

12

8

NOTED

D1

2016  

DEL TACO #XXXX

SIERRA COLLEGE BLVD/ IH
ROCKLIN, CA 95677

16-244 318823

JENNIFER GALVIN

GERALD MCCLUNG

03/16/16

GMc03/31/16

D2 D3 D4 D5 D6

2

JR08/08/16P
acket P

g. 2
5

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
5

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

LGMeu
Typewritten Text
Page 37



P
acket P

g. 2
5

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

LGMeu
Typewritten Text
Page 38



P
acket P

g. 2
5

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

LGMeu
Typewritten Text
Page 39



P
acket P

g. 2
5

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

LGMeu
Typewritten Text
Page 40



P
acket P

g. 2
6

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

LGMeu
Typewritten Text
Page 40



P
acket P

g. 2
6

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

LGMeu
Typewritten Text
Page 42



Page 1 of Exhibit C 
to Reso. No.  

EXHIBIT C 
 

Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006 
 

Design Review Documents are available at the Economic & Community Development 
Department 

 

Packet Pg. 262

Agenda Item #8.b.



P
acket P

g. 2
6

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.

stemple
C

stemple
Typewritten Text
DR2016-0006



P
acket P

g. 2
6

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
6

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



P
acket P

g. 2
6

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.b

.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING 
A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A COMMERCIAL CENTER AND A 50 FOOT TALL 

FREEWAY-ORIENTED SIGN  
 

(Rocklin Station / U2017-0005) 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 
 A. This Conditional Use Permit allows construction of a freeway-oriented 
sign with a maximum height of 50 feet and establishes various operational standards for 
the Rocklin Station Commercial Center (APN 045-052-015, -019, -020, and -021). 
 
 B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been approved for this Project via 
Planning Resolution No. PC-2017-__. 
 
 C. The establishment, maintenance, and operation of the proposed uses 
and buildings or structures will not, under the circumstances of this particular case, be 
detrimental or injurious to the health, safety or general welfare of persons residing or 
working within the neighborhood of the proposed use, to property and improvements 
in the neighborhood, or to the general welfare of the City. 
 
 D. The establishment, operation, and maintenance of the uses and buildings 
or structures is consistent with the goals, policies, and land use designations in the 
General Plan and with all zoning standards, regulations, and restrictions applicable to 
the property. 
 

Section 2. The conditional use permit for a commercial center and a 
freeway-oriented sign that exceeds the maximum height of 30 feet (Rocklin Station / 
U2016-0005) is hereby recommended for approval as depicted and further described in 
Exhibit B of the concurrent design review (DR2016-0006) approved via Planning 
Commission Resolution No. PC-__ and included therein, subject to the conditions listed 
below. The approved Exhibit B of the concurrent design review (DR2016-0006) shall 
govern the design and construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an 
element incorporated into Exhibit B of the concurrent design review (DR2016-0006) 
shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit B of the concurrent design review (DR2016-
0006). All other plans, specifications, details, and information contained within Exhibit B 
of the concurrent design review (DR2016-0006) shall be specifically applicable to the 
project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the conditions for approval. 
Unless otherwise expressly stated, the applicant / developer shall be solely responsible 
for satisfying each condition prior a final Building Permit Inspection, Issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy, or initiation of use as is applicable. The agency and / or City 

Packet Pg. 267

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No.   

department(s) responsible for ensuring implementation of each condition is indicated in 
parenthesis with each condition.  
 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions 
 
1. Outdoor Display and Storage 
 

a. There shall be no outdoor display of goods or products without first 
obtaining approval of a special event permit or a conditional use permit. 

 
b. All incidental and miscellaneous outdoor storage areas shall be approved 

by the Community Development Director and shall be completely 
screened from public view by a decorative masonry or concrete wall or 
approved equal. All gates shall be solid and view obstructing, constructed 
of metal or other durable and sturdy materials acceptable to the 
Economic and Community Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
2. Noise 

 
a. Use of a public address or loud speaker system that can be heard outside 

of the buildings is prohibited. (PLANNING) 
 
b. Use of an amplified sound system to provide music for outdoor seating 

area(s) is permissible; however, such music is intended to be a muted 
background noise and shall not be audible from a distance of 100 feet 
from the building(s).  (PLANNING) 

 
3. Maintenance 
 

a. The property owner(s) shall remove within 72 hours all graffiti placed on 
any fence, wall, existing building, paved area or structure on the property 
consistent with the provisions of Rocklin Municipal Code Section 9.32.  

Packet Pg. 268

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No.   

Prior to removal of said graffiti, the property owner shall report the 
graffiti vandalism to the Rocklin Police Department. (PLANNING, POLICE) 

 
b. The project, including but not limited to paving, landscaping, structures, 

and improvements shall be maintained by the property owner(s), to the 
standard of similarly situated properties in equivalent use zones, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(PLANNING) 

 
c. The outdoor dining and seating areas shall be maintained free of trash 

and any other debris to the satisfaction of the Economic and Community 
Development Director. (PLANNING) 

 
4. Indemnification and Duty to Defend  
 

Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the developer shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to 
indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its 
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the 
City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an approval of the entitlement by the 
City’s planning commission or City Council, which action is brought within the 
time period provided for in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City 
will promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and 
the City will cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 
waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, plan 
checking or inspections related to the subdivision or parcel map shall be 
performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed 
within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 
 

5. Validity 
 
a. This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless 

prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension 
has been granted. (PLANNING) 
 

b. This entitlement shall not be considered valid and approved unless and 
until the concurrent Design Review, DR2016-0006, has been approved. 
(PLANNING) 

Packet Pg. 269

Agenda Item #8.c.



Page 4 of 
Reso. No.   

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this  day of August, 2017, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
 
NOES:  Commissioners:  
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: 
  
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Rocklin Station\Meeting Packets\PC 8-10-17\05 Rocklin Station PC Reso 
U2017-0005 - final.doc

Packet Pg. 270

Agenda Item #8.c.



 

Page 1 of Exhibit A 
to Reso. No. PC- 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Rocklin Station Conditional Use Permit (U2016-0005) 
 

Refer to Exhibit B of DR2016-0006 
 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 271

Agenda Item #8.c.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 
APPROVING A TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP 

 
(Rocklin Station / DL2016-0003) 

 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and determines 
that: 
 
 A. Approval of Tentative Parcel Map (DL2016-0003) is required to subdivide an 
approximately 6.6 acre site into five commercial parcels (APNs 045-051-015, 045-051-019, 045-
051-020, and 045-051-021). 
 
 B. A Mitigated Negative Declaration has been approved for this Project via Planning 
Resolution No. PC-2017-__. 
 
 C. The Planning Commission has considered the effect of the approval of this 
subdivision on the housing needs of the region, and has balanced those needs against the 
public service needs of its residents and available fiscal and environmental resources. 
 

D. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 
improvement, is consistent with the zoning classification on the property, Heavy Industrial (M-
2). 
 
 E. The proposed subdivision, together with the provisions for its design and 
improvement, is consistent with the objectives, policies, general land uses, and programs in the 
City of Rocklin's General Plan. 
 
 F. The site is physically suitable for the proposed type and density of development. 
 
 G. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements is not likely to 
cause substantial environmental damage, nor will it substantially and avoidably injure fish or 
wildlife or their habitat. 
 
 H. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not cause serious 
public health problems. 
 
 I. The design of the subdivision and type of improvements will not conflict with 
easements acquired by the public at large for access through or use of the property within the 
proposed subdivision. 

Packet Pg. 272

Agenda Item #8.d.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No.  

 J. The design of the subdivision provides, to the extent feasible, for future passive 
or natural heating and cooling opportunities. 
 
 Section 2. The tentative parcel map (Rocklin Station / DL2016-0003) as depicted in 
Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is hereby approved, 
subject to the conditions listed below. The approved Exhibit A shall govern the design and 
construction of the project. Any condition directly addressing an element incorporated into 
Exhibit A shall be controlling and shall modify Exhibit A. All other plans, specifications, details, 
and information contained within Exhibit A shall be specifically applicable to the project and 
shall be construed as if directly stated within the condition for approval. Unless expressly stated 
otherwise, the applicant is solely responsible for satisfying each condition prior to approval of 
the final map. 
 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government Code 
§66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the date of 
approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest regarding any of the 
fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements, or other exaction contained in this 
notice, complying with all the requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be 
legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 
 

B. Conditions   
 
1. Reciprocal Easements 

 
a. A reciprocal access and parking easement, or its legal equivalent in a form 

acceptable to the City Attorney, shall be recorded over and between each of the 
parcels in the subdivision prior to or concurrent with the recording of the final 
map. (CITY ATTORNEY, ENGINEERING) 

 
b. A reciprocal access and parking easement, or its legal equivalent in a form 

acceptable to the City Attorney, shall be recorded over and between each of the 
parcels in the subdivision in favor of the Lifehouse Church property (APN 045-
052-029), to facilitate future reciprocal access across and between the two sites 
at such time as the Church property is redeveloped, prior to or concurrent with 
the recording of the final map. (CITY ATTORNEY, ENGINEERING) 

  

Packet Pg. 273

Agenda Item #8.d.



Page 3 of 
Reso. No.  

2. Indemnification and Duty to Defend 
 
Within 30 days of approval of the tentative parcel map by the City, the subdivider shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to indemnify, 
defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its agents, officers and 
employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City of Rocklin to set aside, 
void or annul an approval of the subdivision or parcel map by the City’s planning 
commission or City Council, which action is brought within the time period provided for 
in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City will promptly notify the 
subdivider of any such claim, action or proceeding, and the City will cooperate in the 
defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless waived by the City, no further 
processing, permitting, implementation, plan checking or inspections related to the 
subdivision or parcel map shall be performed by the City if the Indemnity Agreement 
has not been fully executed within 30 days.  (CITY ATTORNEY) 

 
3. Validity 
 

This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless prior to that 
date a final map has been recorded or a time extension has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10th day of August, 2017, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  
 
NOES:  Commissioners:  
 
ABSENT: Commissioners:  
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
P:\PUBLIC PLANNING FILES\__ PROJECT FILES\Rocklin Station\Meeting Packets\PC 8-10-17\04 Rocklin Station PC Reso DL2016-
0003 - final.docx  

Packet Pg. 274

Agenda Item #8.d.



Page 1 of Exhibit A 
To Reso. No.  

EXHIBIT A 
 

ROCKLIN STATION TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP / DL2016-0003 
 

Map 
 
 

 
 

Packet Pg. 275

Agenda Item #8.d.



∆=

∆=

∆=

P
acket P

g. 2
7

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #8
.d

.

stemple
A

stemple
Typewritten Text
DL2016-0003



 
 

City of Rocklin Community Development Department 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Planning Commission 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary Addition - Time Extension 
Design Review, DR2014-0015 and Variance, V2014-0020 

 
August 10, 2017 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve the following: 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A TWO-
YEAR TIME EXTENSION FOR DESIGN REVIEW, DR2014-0015, (PC-2015-29) AND VARIANCE, 
V2014-0020 (PC-2015-30) TO ALLOW THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SANCTUARY ADDITION TO AN 
EXISTING CHURCH BUILDING AND TO EXCEED THE 30-FOOT HEIGHT LIMIT (Gracepoint 
Adventist Church Time Extension / DR2014-0015 and V2014-0020) 
 
Application Request 
 
This application is a request for approval of a two-year time extension of a previously approved 
Design Review, DR2014-0015, and Variance, V2014-0020, which allows for the development of 
a 23,910 square foot sanctuary addition to the existing church building with enhanced entry, a 
new driveway, new signage and new site landscaping. The approved variance allows the height 
to exceed the thirty-foot (30’) maximum, specified in the C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) 
zoning district, by eight  feet (8’)  for a total maximum height allowed of thirty-eight feet (38’).  
 
Location 
 
The subject property, 3500 Sunset Boulevard, is located on the southerly corner of the 
intersection of Springview Drive and Sunset Boulevard.  APN 016-030-023. 

 

Packet Pg. 277

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Gracepoint Adventist Church Time Extension 
August 10, 2017 
Page 2 
 

Figure 1 – Project Vicinity

 

Owner/Applicant 
 
The property owner is Northern California Conference Association of Seventh Day Adventist. 
The applicant is Steve Jones of Kelly Architects. 
 
Background and Site Characteristics 
 
The Planning Commission approved a Design Review (DR2014-0015) and Variance (V2014-0020) 
on June 2, 2015 via Resolution Nos. PC-2015-29 and PC-2015-30 to construct a new 23,910 
square foot sanctuary addition to the existing facility (Attachments A and B). The project 
approvals allowed the  development of a new sanctuary and a reconfigured parking lot and 
enhanced entry to the church, including a new driveway connection to Springview Drive, a new 
monument sign and new site landscaping.  
 
On June 1, 2017, the applicant requested a time extension to the original Design Review and 
Variance due to expire on June 2, 2017 (Attachment C). The fundraising for the project has 
been completed and the applicant now intends to submit construction documents and proceed 
through the building plan check process as the next step forward. The proposed two-year time 
extension would expire June 2, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
 

Project Site 

Packet Pg. 278

Agenda Item #9.



Planning Commission Staff Report 
Gracepoint Adventist Church Time Extension 
August 10, 2017 
Page 3 
 
Environmental Determination 
 
The project was previously determined to be exempt pursuant to the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines through Planning Commission Resolution PC-2015-28; the 
requested time extension is within the scope of the prior CEQA exempt determination.   
 
General Plan and Zoning Compliance 
 
The property is zoned Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) and Planned Development Commercial 
(PD-C). The underlying General Plan designation is Professional Office (BP) and Retail 
Commercial (RC). Staff reviewed the proposed project and found that it remains consistent with 
both the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 
Recommendation 
 
Based on the analysis presented above, Staff recommends that the Planning Commission 
approve a 24-month time extension as requested. 
 
 
Attachment A – Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2015-29 (June 2, 2015) 
Attachment B – Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2015-30 (June 2, 2015) 
Attachment C -  Time Extension Request (June 1, 2017) 
 
 
Prepared by Shauna Nauman, Assistant Planner 
 
 
 

 
 

Packet Pg. 279

Agenda Item #9.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2015-29 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN 

APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW 

(Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary Addition / DR2014-0015) 

The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 

Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 

A. Design Review (DR2014-0015) allows the development of a 23,910-
square-foot sanctuary addition to the existing church building with enhanced entry, a 
new driveway, new signage, and new site landscaping, at the southerly corner of the 
intersection of Springview Drive and Sunset Boulevard.  APN 016-030-023.  

B. The project exhibits and conditions of approval approved for Phases I and 
II of the Gracepoint Adventist Church (a.k.a. Sunset Oaks Adventist Church) as approved 
by Planning Commission Resolution PC-2000-56, shall remain in full force and effect 
except as modified and revised herein (conditions of approval and exhibits). 

C. A categorical exemption of environmental impact for this project has 
been certified by Planning Commission Resolution PC-2015-28. 

D. The design of the site is compatible with surrounding development, 
natural features and constraints. 

E. The height, bulk, area, color scheme and materials of the buildings and 
structures are compatible with surrounding development. 

F. The buildings and structures have been oriented with consideration given 
to minimizing energy consumption and maximizing use of natural lighting. 

G. Adverse light and glare impacts upon adjoining properties have been 
eliminated or reduced to a less than significant level by consideration and/or 
modification of the location and height of light standards, orientation of exterior lighting 
fixtures, and conditioning the project to use light fixtures that will direct light 
downward. 

H. The landscaping design is compatible with surrounding development and 
has been designed with provisions for minimizing water usage and maintenance needs. 

Attachment A

Packet Pg. 280

Agenda Item #9.



 
 I. The design of the site and buildings or structures is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the General Plan, as well as the Retail Commercial land use 
designation and Planned Development Commercial zoning proposed to be applied to 
the site via the concurrent General Plan Amendment (GPA2014-0006) and Rezone 
(Z2014-0008). 
 
 Section 2. The Design Review for the Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary 
Addition / DR2014-0015 as depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference 
incorporated herein, is hereby recommended for approval subject to the conditions 
listed below. The approved Exhibits shall govern the design and construction of the 
project. Any condition directly addressing an element incorporated into the Exhibits 
shall be controlling and shall modify the Exhibits.  All other plans, specifications, details, 
and information contained within the Exhibits shall be specifically applicable to the 
project and shall be construed as if directly stated within the conditions for approval. 
Unless otherwise expressly stated, the applicant / developer shall be solely responsible 
for satisfying each condition prior a final Building Permit Inspection or Issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy as applicable. The agency and / or City department(s) 
responsible for ensuring implementation of each condition is indicated in parenthesis 
with each condition. 
 
A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 

 
The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, 
dedication requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  
Pursuant to Government Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written 
notice of the amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, 
reservations, and other exactions. 
 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing 
from the date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a 
protest regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation 
requirements or other exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the 
requirements of Government Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred 
from later challenging such exactions. 

 
B. Conditions 
 
1. Utilities 

 
a. All utilities, including but not limited to water, sewer, telephone, gas, 

electricity, and conduit for cable television shall be provided to the 
project in compliance with all-applicable standards and requirements of 
the applicable provider.  (APPLICABLE UTILITY) 

Page 2  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 281

Agenda Item #9.



 
b. Solid Waste Disposal – The applicant shall install new masonry trash 

enclosures with solid metal gates, as indicated on Exhibit A, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director.  The 
location and design of trash enclosures shall provide for a minimum clear 
width and gate opening of 11 feet and gates designed to clear adjacent 
curbing to the satisfaction of Recology Auburn Placer. (RECOLOGY 
AUBURN PLACER, ENGINEERING, BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 
c.  Prior to issuance of a Building Permit, the project shall be included in the 

appropriate City financing districts as needed to most efficiently provide 
for maintenance of public landscaping and improvements such as street 
lighting and landscaping.  (FINANCE, PUBLIC SERVICES) 

 
It is anticipated that the following will be necessary: 

De-annexed out of:  Lighting & Landscaping District No. 2 
 
Annexation into: CFD No. 1, CFD No. 5, Lighting & Landscaping 

District No. 2 
 

2. Schools 
 
At the time of issuance of a building permit, the developer shall pay to the 
Rocklin Unified School District all fees required under Education Code section 
17620 and Government Code Section 65995. (ROCKLIN UNIFIED SCHOOL 
DISTRICT, BUILDING)  
 

3. Improvements / Improvement Plans 
 
Prior to any grading, site improvements, or other construction activities 
associated with this project improvement plans shall be prepared consistent 
with the exhibits and conditions incorporated as a part of this entitlement, and 
in compliance with all applicable city standards, for the review and approval of 
the City Engineer.  The project improvement plans shall include the following: 
 (ENGINEERING, PLANNING) 
 
a. A detailed grading and drainage plan prepared by a registered civil 

engineer, in substantial compliance with the approved project exhibit(s).  
The grading and drainage plan shall include the following: 
 
i) All storm drainage run-off from site shall be collected into a City 

standard sand and oil trap manhole (or an equal as approved by 

Page 3  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 282

Agenda Item #9.



the City Engineer) prior to discharge of storm run-off offsite.  Said 
sand and oil trap manhole shall be maintained by owner. 

 
ii) All storm drainage inlets shall be stamped with City Engineer 

approved wording indicating that dumping of waste is prohibited 
and identifying that the inlets drain into the creek system. 

 
iii) Provisions for detaining run off at pre-development levels. 
 
iv) The developer shall prepare a Storm Water Pollutant Protection 

Plan (SWPPP) for review and approval by the State Regional 
Water Quality Control Board as part of the project’s drainage 
improvement plans.  

 
v) Prior to the commencement of grading operations, and if the 

project site will not balance with respect to grading, the 
contractor shall identify the site where any excess earthen 
material shall be deposited. If the deposit site is within the City of 
Rocklin, the contractor shall submit a report issued by a technical 
engineer to verify that the exported materials are suitable for the 
intended fill and show proof of all approved grading plans. Haul 
routes to be used shall be specified. If the site requires importing 
of earthen material, then prior to the commencement of grading 
operations, the contractor shall identify the site where the 
imported earthen material is coming from and the contractor 
shall submit a report issued by a technical engineer to verify that 
the imported materials are suitable for the intended fill and show 
proof of all approved grading plans. Haul routes to be used shall 
be specified. 

 
vi) If at any time during the course of grading or construction 

activities evidence of the existence of old wells, septic systems or 
other similar features is encountered, work shall be halted within 
100 feet of the find and the City of Rocklin Engineer shall be 
notified. The City Engineer shall make a determination as to the 
nature of the feature (or features), the appropriate size for a 
buffer around the feature beyond which work could continue on 
the balance of the site, and which outside agencies, if any, should 
be notified and involved in addressing and/or remediation of the 
feature. At the discretion of the City Engineer and at the 
applicant’s expense, a qualified consultant(s) shall be retained to 
assess and characterize the feature and to determine appropriate 
remediation, if any. Remediation of the feature including 
obtaining any special permits and/or approvals as needed shall be 

Page 4  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 283

Agenda Item #9.



completed and documented to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer and any responsible agencies, such as but not limited to 
the Placer County Department of Environmental Health, prior to 
completion of grading/construction in the affected area 

 
b. All on-site standard improvements, including but not limited to:  

 
i) paving, curbs (including concrete curbs to contain all landscape 

areas adjacent to vehicle parking areas or travel lanes), gutters, 
sidewalks, drainage improvements, irrigation improvements 
(main lines and distribution where located under paved areas), 
utility improvements, parking lot lights, fire hydrants (where 
necessary), retaining walls, fences, pilasters, enhanced pavement 
treatments, trash enclosures, etc.  

 
ii) To the extent possible underground facilities such as but not 

limited to electrical, gas, water, drainage, and irrigation lines shall 
be located outside of or to the edge of areas designated for 
landscaping so as to minimize impacts to the viability of these 
areas.   

 
c. A detailed parking lot striping plan designed per City standards, which 

indicates all parking spaces, aisles, entrances, and exits. 
 
d. The following on-site special improvements:   

 
i. None.   
 

e. The following off-site special improvements:   
 
i. None. 

 
f. Provisions for dust control, re-vegetation of disturbed areas, and erosion 

control, in conformance with the requirements of the City of Rocklin, 
including but not limited to the following (which shall be included in the 
project notes on the improvement plans): 
 
1) The prime contractor shall submit to the District a comprehensive 

inventory (e.g., make, model, year, emission rating) of all the 
heavy-duty off-road equipment (50 horsepower or greater) that 
will be used in aggregate of 40 or more hours for the construction 
project.  If any new equipment is added after submission of the 
inventory, the prime contractor shall contact the District prior to 
the new equipment being utilized. At least three business days 

Page 5  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 284

Agenda Item #9.



prior to the use of subject heavy-duty off-road equipment, the 
project representative shall provide the District with the 
anticipated construction timeline including start date, name, and 
phone number of the property owner, project manager, and on-
site foreman. 

2) During construction, the contractor shall utilize existing power 
sources (e.g., power poles) or clean fuel (e.g., gasoline, biodiesel, 
natural gas) generators to minimize the use of temporary diesel 
power generators. 

3) During construction, the contractor shall minimize idling time to a 
maximum of five minutes for all diesel powered equipment. 

4) Traffic speeds on all unpaved road surfaces shall be posted at 15 
mph or less. 

5) All grading operations shall be suspended when fugitive dust 
emissions exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for having an individual who 
is CARB-certified to perform Visible Emissions Evaluations (VEE).  
This individual shall evaluate compliance with Rule 228 on a 
weekly basis. 

6) Fugitive dust emissions shall not exceed 40% opacity and shall not 
go beyond the property boundary at any time. If lime or other 
drying agents are utilized to dry out wet grading areas, the 
developer shall ensure such agents are controlled so as not to 
exceed District Rule 228-Fugitive Dust limitations. 

7) The prime contractor shall be responsible for keeping adjacent 
public thoroughfares clean of silt, dirt, mud, and debris, and shall 
“wet broom” the streets (or use another method to control dust 
as approved by the individual jurisdiction) if silt, dirt mud or 
debris is carried over to adjacent public thoroughfares. 

8) The prime contractor shall suspend all grading operations when 
wind speeds (including instantaneous gusts) are excessive and 
dust is impacting adjacent properties. 

9) The contractor shall apply water or use other method to control 
dust impacts offsite.  Construction vehicles leaving the site shall 
be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being released 
or tracked off-site. 

10) All construction equipment shall be maintained in clean condition. 

11) Chemical soil stabilizers, vegetative mats, or other appropriate 
best management practices, in accordance with manufacturers’ 

Page 6  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 285

Agenda Item #9.



specifications, shall be applied to all-inactive construction areas 
(previously graded areas which remain inactive for 96 hours). 

12) All exposed surfaces shall be revegetated as quickly as feasible. 

13) If fill dirt is brought to or exported from the construction site, 
tarps or soil stabilizers shall be placed on the dirt piles to minimize 
dust problems. 

14) Water shall be applied to control fugitive dust, as needed, to 
prevent impacts offsite. Operational water trucks shall be onsite 
to control fugitive dust. Construction vehicles leaving the site shall 
be cleaned to prevent dust, silt, mud, and dirt from being released 
or tracked off-site. 

15) Processes that discharge two pounds per day or more of air 
contaminants, as defined by California State Health and Safety 
Code Section 39013, to the atmosphere may require a permit.  
Developers / Contractors should contact the PCAPCD prior to 
construction or use of equipment and obtain any necessary 
permits. 

16) In order to minimize wind driven dust during construction, the 
prime contractor shall apply methods such as surface 
stabilization, establishment of a vegetative cover, paving, (or use 
another method to control dust as approved by the City).  

 17) Construction equipment exhaust emissions shall not exceed 
Placer County APCD Rule 202 Visible Emission limitations.  
Operators of vehicles and equipment found to exceed opacity 
limits are to be immediately notified by APCD to cease operations 
and the equipment must be repaired within 72 hours. 

18) Open burning of any kind shall be prohibited.  All removed 
vegetative material shall be either chipped on site or taken to an 
appropriate recycling site, or if a site is not available, a licensed 
disposal site. 

19) Any diesel powered equipment used during project construction 
shall be Air Resources Board (ARB) certified. 

 
20) If an inadvertent discovery of cultural materials (e.g., unusual 

amounts of shell, charcoal, animal bone, bottle glass, ceramics, 
burned soil, structure/building remains) is made during project-
related construction activities, ground disturbances in the area of 
the find shall be halted and a qualified professional archaeologist, 
the Environmental Services Manager and the Native American 
Heritage Commission shall be notified regarding the discovery. 

Page 7  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 286

Agenda Item #9.



The archaeologist shall determine whether the resource is 
potentially significant as per CEQA (i.e., whether it is a historical 
resource, a unique archaeological resource, or a unique 
paleontological resource) and shall develop specific measures to 
ensure preservation of the resource or to mitigate impacts to the 
resource if it cannot feasibly be preserved in light of costs, 
logistics, technological considerations, the location of the find, 
and the extent to which avoidance and/or preservation of the find 
is consistent or inconsistent with the design and objectives of the 
project. Specific measures for significant or potentially significant 
resources would include, but are not necessarily limited to, 
preservation in place, in-field documentation, archival research, 
subsurface testing, and excavation. The specific type of measure 
necessary would be determined according to evidence indicating 
degrees of resource integrity, spatial and temporal extent, and 
cultural associations, and would be developed in a manner 
consistent with CEQA guidelines for preserving or otherwise 
mitigating impacts to archaeological and cultural artifacts.  

 
In the event of the accidental discovery or recognition of any 
human remains, there shall be no further excavation or 
disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected 
to overlie adjacent human remains, until compliance with the 
provisions of Sections 15064.5 (e)(1) and (2) of the CEQA 
Guidelines, as well as Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, has 
occurred. If any human remains are discovered, all work shall stop 
in the immediate vicinity of the find and the County Coroner shall 
be notified, according to Section 7050.5 of the California Health 
and Safety Code. The City’s Environmental Services Manager shall 
also be notified. If the remains are Native American, the Coroner 
will notify the Native American Heritage Commission, which in 
turn will inform a most likely descendant. The descendant will 
then recommend to the landowner appropriate disposition of the 
remains and any grave goods, and the landowner shall comply 
with the requirements of AB2641 (2006). 

 
4. Improvements in the Public Right-of-Way 

 
The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit for all improvements within 
the public right-of-way.  Applicant shall post a performance bond and labor and 
materials payment bond (or other equivalent financial security) in the amount of 
100% of the cost of the improvements to be constructed in the public right-of-
way as improvement security to ensure the faithful performance of all duties and 
obligations required of applicant in the construction of the improvements.  Such 

Page 8  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 287

Agenda Item #9.



improvement security shall be in a form acceptable to the City Attorney.  Such 
security shall be either a corporate surety bond, a letter of credit, or other 
instrument of credit issued by a banking institution subject to regulation by the 
State or Federal government and pledging that the funds necessary to carry out 
this Agreement are on deposit and guaranteed for payment, or a cash deposit 
made either directly with the City or deposited with a recognized escrow agent 
for the benefit of the City. (PUBLIC WORKS) 
 

5. Landscaping 
 
a. Final landscape plans shall be provided by the developer and approved by 

the Director of Economic and Community Development.  The landscape 
plans shall comply with the following requirements (PLANNING): 

i) The landscaping plan shall be prepared by a landscape architect 
and shall include: 

(1) A legend of the common and botanical names of specific 
plant materials to be used.  The legend should indicate the 
size of plant materials. 

(a) Shrubs shall be a minimum five (5) gallons and 
trees a minimum of 15 gallons and meet the 
minimum height specified by the American 
Standards for Nursery Stock.  

(2) A section diagram of proposed tree staking. 

(3) An irrigation plan including an automatic irrigation system.  
The plan shall include drip irrigation wherever possible. 

(4) Berming or screen walls in landscape strips along the 
public right-of-way and the installation of shrubs to screen 
the undercarriages of vehicles as viewed from off-site. 

(5) Provision for the shading of the parking lot spaces by 
shade trees planted at a minimum of one for every five 
parking spaces. 

(6) Granite or moss rock boulders along the planting strips. 

ii) The plan shall be certified by the landscape architect that the 
landscape plan meets the requirements of the water Conservation 
and Landscaping Act. Government Code §65591, et seq. 

 
b. The parking lot lighting plan shall be designed to accommodate shade 

trees and provide for illumination of the parking areas. Light standards 
and underground utilities shall be located such that required parking lot 
shade trees can still be planted. (ENGINEERING, BUILDING, PLANNING) 

Page 9  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 288

Agenda Item #9.



 
c. All landscaping shall be installed and the landscape architect shall certify, 

in writing, that the landscaping and irrigation system have been installed 
in full compliance with the approved plans prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy. (PLANNING) 

 
6. Lighting 

 
a. All exterior lighting shall be designed and installed to avoid adverse glare 

on adjacent properties.  Cut-off shoebox type lighting fixtures, or 
equivalent, shall be used and mounted such that all light is projected 
directly toward the ground.  Light poles shall be a maximum of 20’ in 
height as measured from grade to the top of the light.  The lighting design 
plan shall be approved by the Director of Economic and Community 
Development for compliance with this condition. (PLANNING) 

 
7. Design 

 
a. The back or rear of any parapet wall that may be visible from an adjacent 

right of way or property shall be painted the same color as the front of 
the parapet wall to provide a more finished appearance. (PLANNING) 

 
8. Signs 

 
All signs shall conform to the Sign Ordinance of the City of Rocklin and the sign 
design(s) and location(s) as shown on Exhibit A, except as may be modified 
herein. (PLANNING) 
 

9. Screening of Mechanical Equipment 
 
a. All mechanical equipment, whether ground or roof mounted shall be 

screened from view from all public rights of way to the satisfaction of the 
Economic and Community Development Director.  The design of the 
screening shall be in harmony with the architectural design of the 
building. (PLANNING) 

 
b. The appearance of large utility features such as double detector check 

valves shall be minimized through the use of utility blankets or other 
acceptable screening methods. The developer shall also demonstrate 
that these facilities have been moved as far as possible from the public 
right-of-way. (PLANNING) 

 
 
 

Page 10  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 289

Agenda Item #9.



10.       Security  
 
a.         Prior to building permit issuance the applicant shall prepare a security 

plan for review by the Rocklin Police Department, and shall provide the 
Rocklin Police Department with the name(s) and telephone number(s) of 
a responsible party to contact. (POLICE) 

 
b.         Prior to building / unit occupancy the property owner, or each tenant, 

shall obtain and maintain at all times, an Alarm System Permit for each 
security system installed and operated in the building, if any, in accord 
with the requirements of Chapter 9.44 of the Rocklin Municipal 
Code.  (POLICE) 

 
11. Outdoor Storage 

 
All incidental and miscellaneous outdoor storage areas shall be completely 
screened from public view by a decorative masonry or concrete wall or approved 
equal.  All gates shall be solid and view obstructing, constructed of metal or 
other durable and sturdy materials acceptable to the Economic and Community 
Development Director. (PLANNING) 
 

12. Maintenance  
 
a. The property owner shall remove within 72 hours all graffiti placed on 

any fence, wall, existing building, paved area or structure on the property 
consistent with the provisions of Rocklin Municipal Code Section 9.32.  
Prior to removal of said graffiti, the property owner shall report the 
graffiti vandalism to the Rocklin Police Department. (PLANNING, POLICE) 

 
b. The project, including but not limited to paving, landscaping, structures, 

and improvements shall be maintained by the property owners, to the 
standard of similarly situated properties in equivalent use zones, to the 
satisfaction of the Economic and Community Development Director. 
(PLANNING) 

 
13. Air Quality 

 
a. Electrical outlets shall be installed in the exterior walls of the building(s) 

in this project to promote the use of electrical landscaping equipment. 
(BULDING, PLANNING) 

 
b. Low nitrous oxide (NOx) natural gas hot water heaters shall be installed if 

gas hot water heaters are to be used in this project. (BUILDING, 
PLANNING) 

Page 11  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 290

Agenda Item #9.



 
14. Noise 

 
a. All “self-powered” construction equipment and stationary noise sources 

(i.e. pumps, electrical generators, etc.) shall be equipped with noise 
control devices (e.g., mufflers). (ENGINEERING, BUILDING) 

 
b. Equipment “warm-up” areas, water storage tanks, equipment storage 

areas, and stationary noise-generating machinery (i.e. pumps, electrical 
generators, etc.) shall be located away from existing residences and other 
sensitive noise receptors to the extent feasible. (ENGINEERING, 
BUILDING) 

 
c. All phases of project development shall be subject to the City of Rocklin 

Construction Noise Guidelines, including restricting construction-related 
noise generating activities within or near residential areas to between 
7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on weekdays, and between 8:00 a.m. and 7:00 
p.m. on weekends.  The Economic and Community Development Director 
may grant exceptions to the Construction Noise Guidelines if, in the 
opinion of the Economic and Community Development Director, special 
and unusual circumstances exist that make strict adherence to the 
Construction Noise Guidelines infeasible. (ENGINEERING, BUILDING)  

 
d. Rooftop mechanical equipment shall be shielded from view of the 

nearest noise-sensitive receivers by intervening parapets. 
 

15. Monitoring 
 
Prior to any grading or construction activities on the property, the developer 
shall deposit with the City of Rocklin the current fee to pay for the City’s time 
and material cost to administer the Mitigation Monitoring Program.  The 
Economic and Community Development Director shall determine if and when 
additional deposits must be paid for administering the Mitigation Monitoring 
Program, including additional deposits on subsequent phases of 
construction.  These amounts shall be paid prior to grading or construction for 
additional phases on this project. (PUBLIC SERVICES, BUILDING, PLANNING) 

 

16. Indemnification and Duty to Defend. 

Within 30 days of approval of this entitlement by the City, the subdivider shall 
execute an Indemnity Agreement, approved by the City Attorney’s Office, to 
indemnify, defend, reimburse, and hold harmless the City of Rocklin and its 
agents, officers and employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the 

Page 12  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 291

Agenda Item #9.



City of Rocklin to set aside, void or annul an approval of the entitlement by the 
City’s Planning Commission or City Council, which action is brought within the 
time period provided for in Section 66499.37 of the Government Code. The City 
will promptly notify the applicant of any such claim, action or proceeding, and 
the City will cooperate in the defense of the claim, action or proceeding. Unless 
waived by the City, no further processing, permitting, implementation, plan 
checking or inspections related to the entitlement shall be performed by the City 
if the Indemnity Agreement has not been fully executed within 30 days.  (CITY 
ATTORNEY) 

 
17. Validity 

 
a. This entitlement shall expire two years from the date of approval unless 

prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a time extension 
has been granted. (PLANNING) 

 
b. This entitlement shall not be considered valid and approved unless and 

until the concurrent Variance (V2014-0020) has been approved. 
(PLANNING) 

 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of June, 2015, by the following roll call vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: Broadway, Martinez, Sloan, McKenzie, Whitmore 
NOES:  Commissioners: None 
ABSENT: Commissioners: None 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: None 
   
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
P:\PERMANENT PLANNING FILES\RESOLUTIONS\2015\PC-2015-29 - Gracepoint DR2014-0015 (PC 6-2-15).docx 

Page 13  
to Reso No. PC-2015-29 

Packet Pg. 292

Agenda Item #9.



P
acket P

g. 2
9

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.

jjuarez
Typewritten Text
Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary Addition 

jjuarez
Typewritten Text
Northwest Elevation

jjuarez
Line

stemple
A

stemple
PC APPROVED

stemple
Typewritten Text
DR2014-0015

stemple
Typewritten Text
June 2, 2015

stemple
Typewritten Text
Marc Mondell



P
acket P

g. 2
9

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.

jjuarez
Typewritten Text
Southeast Elevation

jjuarez
Typewritten Text
Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary Addition

jjuarez
Line



P
acket P

g. 2
9

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 2
9

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 2
9

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 2
9

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 2
9

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
ac

ke
t 

P
g.

 3
0

0

A
ge

n
d

a 
It

em
 #

9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

4

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

5

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

6

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

7

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

8

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
0

9

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
1

0

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
1

1

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
1

2

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



P
acket P

g. 3
1

3

A
gen

d
a Item

 #9
.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2015-30 

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN APPROVING A DESIGN REVIEW   

(Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary Addition / V2014-0020) 

The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 

Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 

A. This variance allows structures on the project site, located at 3500 Sunset 
Boulevard (APN# 016-030-023), to exceed the 30-foot height limit specified in the 
applicable zoning by eight feet (8’) for a total maximum height allowed of 38 feet (38’).    

B. A categorical exemption of environmental impact for this project has 
been certified by Planning Commission Resolution PC-2015-28. 

C. Due to special circumstances applicable to the construction of large open 
spaces for assembly use, a permitted use in the applicable zone district, specifically the 
floor-to-floor ceiling heights needed to accommodate efficient HVAC ducting and the 
need to adequately screen roof mounted HVAC equipment, the application of the 
standard thirty-foot height standard creates an unreasonable limitation on the design of 
the building that significantly limits the ability to comply with the design guidelines 
adopted by the City of Rocklin.  Granting of the variance will allow the project design to 
better comply with the adopted Design Guidelines and thereby enhance the appearance 
of, and quality of life in the City for residents and the general public. 

D. The proposed building height is consistent with that of other buildings in 
the City of Rocklin designed to accommodate similar uses. 

E. The granting of the variance would not authorize a use or activity which is 
not otherwise expressly authorized by the zoning applicable to the site.  

Section 2. The variance (Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary 
Addition / V2014-0020) is hereby approved by the Planning Commission, as depicted 
and further described in Exhibit A of the concurrent design review application, DR2014-
0015. 

Attachment B

Packet Pg. 314

Agenda Item #9.



 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of June, 2015 , by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners: Broadway, Martinez, Sloan, McKenzie, Whitmore 
 
NOES:  Commissioners: None 
 
ABSENT: Commissioners: None 
 
ABSTAIN: Commissioners: None 
 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 
 
 
 
P:\PERMANENT PLANNING FILES\RESOLUTIONS\2015\PC-2015-30 - Gracepoint V2014-0020.docx 

 

Page 2 of 
Reso No. PC-2015-30 

Packet Pg. 315

Agenda Item #9.



Attachment C

Packet Pg. 316

Agenda Item #9.



RESOLUTION NO. PC-2017- 
  

RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ROCKLIN  
APPROVING A TWO-YEAR TIME EXTENSION FOR A DESIGN REVIEW AND VARIANCE TO 

ALLOW THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SANCTUARY ADDITION TO AN EXISTING CHURCH 
BUILDING AND TO EXCEED THE 30-FOOT HEIGHT LIMIT  

 
Gracepoint Adventist Church Sanctuary Addition-Time Extension/DR2014-0015, V2014-0020 
 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin does resolve as follows: 
 
 Section 1. The Planning Commission of the City of Rocklin finds and 
determines that: 
 

A. A Design Review (DR2014-0015) and Variance (V2014-0020) were 
approved via Planning Commission Resolution No. PC-2015-29 and PC-2015-30 on June 
2, 2015 to allow the development of a 23,910 square foot sanctuary addition to the 
existing church building (with enhanced entry, a new driveway, new signage, and new 
site landscaping) and to exceed the 30-foot height limit specified in the applicable 
zoning district by eight feet (8’) for a total maximum height of 38 feet (38’), at  3500 
Sunset Boulevard, on the southerly corner of Springview Drive and Sunset Boulevard. 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 016-030-023. 

 
B. A Notice of Exemption has been approved for this project via Planning 

Commission Resolution No. PC-2015-28. 
 
 C. The design of the site and buildings or structures is consistent with the 
goals and policies of the General Plan, and with all of the zoning regulations, standards, 
and restrictions of the C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district. 
 

Section 2. The two-year extension of time for the Gracepoint Adventist 
Church Sanctuary Addition design review and variance (DR2014-0015 / PC-2015-29 and 
V2014-0020 / PC-2015-30),  as depicted and further described in Exhibits A & B, 
attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein, is hereby approved subject 
to the  terms and conditions in the previous approval.  Unless expressly stated 
otherwise, the applicant/developer shall be solely responsible for satisfying each 
condition and the conditions must be satisfied prior to issuance of the building permit, 
or issuance of certificate of occupancy as determined by the Economic and Community 
Development Director. The agency and/or City department(s) responsible for ensuring 
implementation of each condition is indicated in parenthesis with each condition. 

 
 
 
 

Packet Pg. 317

Agenda Item #9.a.



Page 2 of 
Reso. No. PC-2017- 

A. Notice to Applicant of Fees & Exaction Appeal Period 
 

The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions.  Pursuant to Government 
Code §66020(d), these conditions constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, 
and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. 

 
The applicant is hereby notified that the 90-day protest period, commencing from the 
date of approval of the project, has begun.  If the applicant fails to file a protest 
regarding any of the fees, dedication requirements, reservation requirements or other 
exaction contained in this notice, complying with all the requirements of Government 
Code §66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

 
B. Conditions 

 
1. Validity 
 

This entitlement shall extend the expiration date of Planning Commission 
Resolution No. PC-2015-29 for design review DR2015-0015 and Planning 
Commission Resolution No.  PC-2015-30 for variance V2014-0020 by two years 
to June 2, 2019, unless prior to that date a building permit has been issued or a 
further time extension has been granted. (PLANNING) 
 

2. The originally-approved resolutions and associated exhibits shall govern the 
design and construction of the project. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this        day of August, 2017, by the following roll call 

vote: 
 
AYES:  Commissioners:  

NOES:  Commissioners:  

ABSENT: Commissioners:  

ABSTAIN: Commissioners:  

      ____________________________________ 
        , Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
Secretary 

Packet Pg. 318

Agenda Item #9.a.


	AGENDA
	INTRODUCTION
	1. Meeting called to order at
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	4. Minutes
	5. Correspondence
	6. Citizens Addressing the Commission on Non Agenda Items

	CONSENT ITEMS
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	7. ITEM IS CONTINUED TO AUGUST 15, 2017

STANFORD TERRACE CONDOMINIUMS 
SUBDIVISION MAP, SD-2013-05
DESIGN REVIEW, DR-2013-12

This application is a request for a re-approval of a prior Design Review and Tentative Subdivision Map to develop 119 townhomes on 7.3+/- acres.  The subject property is approximately 7.3 +/- acres and is generally located on Stanford Ranch Road near the southwest intersection of Stanford Ranch Rd. and Sunset Blvd. APN 017-460-003. The property is zoned Planned Development 20 units per acre (PD-20).  The General Plan designation is High Density Residential (HDR).

A Mitigated Negative Declaration of Environmental Impacts was previously approved by the Rocklin City Council through Resolution No. 2014-234.  The project site is not on any of the lists enumerated under Section 65962.5 of the Government Code related to hazardous wastes.

The applicant is Chris Scerri with Golden State Lumber, Inc. The property owner is Golden State Lumber, Inc.

	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval A Tentative Subdivision Map (Stanford Terrace Condominiums / SD-2013-05)
	b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Recommending Approval A Design Review For Multi-Family Residential Homes (Stanford Terrace Condominiums / DR-2013-12)

	8. ROCKLIN STATION
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2016-0006
OAK TREE PRESERVATION PLAN PERMIT, TRE2016-0003
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP, DL2016-0003
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT, U2016-0005

This application is a request for approval of a Design Review, Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit, and a Tentative Parcel Map to re-divide the existing four parcels into five commercial parcels and to allow the construction of a commercial center including an automotive service use, retail space, and restaurant spaces, some with drive-through window service and/or outdoor dining, and associated site improvements, including parking and landscaping, and a freeway pylon sign exceeding 30 feet in height.  The subject site is located on the southwest corner of the Interstate 80 off-ramp and Sierra College Boulevard.  APNs 045-051-015, -019, -020, -021. The property is zoned Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Retail Commercial (RC).

Notice is hereby given that the City of Rocklin will consider adoption of a Mitigated Negative Declaration for the development project described above. The review period for the Mitigated Negative Declaration begins on July 6, 2017 and ends at 5:00 p.m. on August 4, 2017. The environmental document is available for review during normal business hours at the City of Rocklin Community Development Department, Planning Division, located at 3970 Rocklin Road, Rocklin, CA 95677 and online at http://www.rocklin.ca.us/depts/develop/planning/currentenvirondocs.asp. Written comments regarding the environmental document may be submitted to the attention of the Environmental Coordinator at the mailing address above or e-mailed to planner@rocklin.ca.us.

The applicant is Sam Thomas of Thomas Sierra, LLC.  The property owners are Cecil Finegold Family Receiving Trust and Cecil Finegold Charitable Remainder Trust.

	[01 Rocklin Station PC SR - final.pdf]
	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Mitigated Negative Declaration Of Environmental Impacts (Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006/TRE2016-0003, U2016-0005, DL2016-0003)
	[02 Rocklin Station Initial Study and MND FINAL 7-6-17.pdf]

	b. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Design Review And An Oak Tree Preservation Plan Permit (Rocklin Station / DR2016-0006/TRE2016-0003)
	[03 Rocklin Station PC Reso DR2016-0006 Final.pdf]
	[03a Rocklin Station DR Exhibit A Arch-Civil Final .pdf]
	[03b Rocklin Station DR Exhibit B Sign Package UPDATED Final.pdf]
	[03c Rocklin Station DR Exhibit C Renderings 11x17 Final.pdf]

	c. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Conditional Use Permit For A Freeway-Oriented Sign That Exceeds The Maximum Height Allowed By The City Of Rocklin Municipal Code (17.75.050) (Rocklin Station / U2016-0005)
	[05 Rocklin Station PC Reso U2017-0005.pdf]

	d. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Tentative Parcel Map (Rocklin Station / DL2016-0003)
	[04 Rocklin Station PC Reso DL2016-0003.pdf]
	[04a Rocklin Station DL2016-0003 Ex A 11x17 final.pdf]


	9. GRACEPOINT ADVENTIST CHURCH SANCTUARY ADDITION TIME EXTENSION
DESIGN REVIEW, DR2014-0015
VARIANCE, V2014-0020

This application is a request for approval of a one-year extension of time for a previously approved Design Review, DR2014-0015, and Variance, V2014-0020), which allows for the development of a 23,910 square foot sanctuary addition to the existing church building with enhanced entry, a new driveway, new signage and new site landscaping. The approved variance allows the height to exceed the thirty-foot (30’) maximum, specified in the C-1 (Neighborhood Commercial) zoning district, by eight feet (8’)  for a total maximum height allowed of thirty-eight feet (38’). The subject property is 3500 Sunset Boulevard, is located on the southerly corner of the intersection of Springview Drive and Sunset Boulevard.  APN 016-030-023.The property is zoned Neighborhood Commercial (C-1) and Planned Development Commercial (PD-C).  The General Plan designation is Business Professional (BP) and Retail Commercial (RC).

The project was previously determined to be exempt pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines through Planning Commission Resolution PC-2015-28.

The property owner is Northern California Conference Association of Seventh Day Adventist.  The applicant is Steve Jones of Kelly Architects. 

	[Gracepoint Church SR Complete.pdf]
	a. Resolution Of The Planning Commission Of The City Of Rocklin Approving A Two-Year Time Extension For Design Review, Dr2014-0015, (Pc-2015-29) And Variance, V2014-0020 (Pc-2015-30) To Allow The Development Of A Sanctuary Addition To An Existing Church Building And To Exceed The 30-Foot Height Limit (Gracepoint Adventist Church Time Extension / Dr2014-0015 And V2014-0020)
	[6 - RESO Gracepoint Adventist Church Time Extension Reso - final.pdf]



	NON PUBLIC HEARINGS
	10. Reports and Discussion Items from Planning Commissioners
	11. Reports from City Staff
	12. Adjournment


